Chorley

Council

Town Hall
Market Street
Chorley
Lancashire
PR7 1DP

07 August 2013

Executive Cabinet

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Executive Cabinet to be held in the Council Chamber,
Town Hall, Chorley on Thursday, 15th August 2013 commencing at 6.00 pm.

AGENDA

1. Apologies for absence

2. Minutes (Pages 5 - 16)

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Executive Cabinet held
on 20 June 2013 (enclosed).

3. Declarations of Any Interests

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any pecuniary interest in respect
of matters contained in this agenda.

If you have a pecuniary interest you must withdraw from the meeting. Normally you
should leave the room before the business starts to be discussed. You do, however, have
the same right to speak as a member of the public and may remain in the room to enable
you to exercise that right and then leave immediately. In either case you must not seek to
improperly influence a decision on the matter.

4. Public Questions

Members of the public who have requested the opportunity to ask a question(s) on an
item(s) on the agenda will be asked to put their question(s) to the respective Executive
Member(s). Each member of the public will be allowed to ask one supplementary
question within his/her allocated 3 minutes.

ITEM OF EXECUTIVE LEADER AND EXECUTIVE MEMBER (ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
AND GOVERNANCE) (INTRODUCED BY COUNCILLOR ALISTAIR BRADLEY)

5. Contract Award - Refurbishment Works 98-102 Market Street (Pages 17 - 20)

To receive and consider the report of the Chief Executive (enclosed).




ITEM OF DEPUTY EXECUTIVE LEADER AND EXECUTIVE MEMBER (RESOURCES, POLICY
AND PERFORMANCE) (INTRODUCED BY COUNCILLOR PETER WILSON)

6. Individual Electoral Registration (Pages 21 - 24)

To receive and consider the report of the Chief Executive (enclosed).

7. Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 Report 1 (end of June 2013) (Pages 25 - 40)

To receive and consider the report of the Chief Executive (enclosed).

8. Capital Programme Monitoring 2013-14 - 2015-16 (Pages 41 - 52)

To receive and consider the report of the Chief Executive (enclosed).

9. Chorley Council Performance Monitoring Quarter One 2013/14 (Pages 53 - 62)

To receive and consider the report of the Chief Executive (enclosed).

10. Chorley Partnership Performance Monitoring Quarter One 2013/14 (Pages 63 - 70)

To receive and consider the report of the Chief Executive (enclosed).

11. Contract Award - Energy Utility Contracts (Pages 71 - 74)

To receive and consider the report of the Chief Executive (enclosed).
ITEM OF EXECUTIVE MEMBER (PEOPLE) (INTRODUCED BY COUNCILLOR BEV MURRAY)

12. Park and Open Spaces Memorial Policy (Pages 75 - 86)

To receive and consider the report of the Director of People and Places (enclosed).

13. End of year core funding report 2012/13 (Pages 87 - 116)

To receive and consider the report of the Chief Executive (enclosed).

14. Clayton Brook Village Hall - Community Management (Pages 117 - 120)

To receive and condsider the report of the Director of People and Places (enclosed).

15. Allocation of Sagar House Section 106 Equipped Play Space Contribution (Pages
121 -132)

To receive and consider the report of the Director of Partnerships, Planning and Policy
(enclosed).

ITEM OF EXECUTIVE MEMBER (PLACES) (INTRODUCED BY COUNCILLOR ADRIAN
LOWE)

16. Land Drainage Act 1991 - Review of Land Drainage Policy (Pages 133 - 136)

To receive and consider the report of the Director of People and Places (enclosed).



17. Exclusion of the Public and Press

To consider the exclusion of the press and public for the following item of business on the
ground that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph
3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972.

ITEM OF DEPUTY EXECUTIVE LEADER AND EXECUTIVE MEMBER (RESOURCES, POLICY
AND PERFORMANCE) (INTRODUCED BY COUNCILLOR PETER WILSON)

18. Approval for the contract award procedure and evaluation criteria for resurfacing of
three Town Centre car parks (Pages 137 - 142)

To receive and consider the report of the Director of People and Places (enclosed).

19. Any other item(s) that the Chair decides is/are urgent

Yours sincerely

Gary Hall
Chief Executive

Ruth Rimmington

Democratic and Member Services Officer
E-mail: ruth.rimmington@chorley.gov.uk
Tel: (01257) 515118

Fax: (01257) 515150

Distribution

1. Agenda and reports to all Members of the Executive Cabinet (Alistair Bradley (Executive
Leader), Peter Wilson (Deputy Executive Leader) and Beverley Murray, Terry Brown,
Dennis Edgerley and Adrian Lowe for attendance.

2. Agenda and reports to Gary Hall (Chief Executive), Lesley-Ann Fenton (Director of
Partnerships, Planning and Policy), Jamie Carson (Director of People and Places),
Chris Moister (Head of Governance) and Ruth Rimmington (Democratic and Member
Services Officer) for attendance.

If you need this information in a different format, such as
larger print or translation, please get in touch on 515151 or
chorley.gov.uk



PROCEDURE FOR PUBLIC QUESTIONS/SPEAKING AT EXECUTIVE CABINET MEETINGS

« Questions should be submitted to the Democratic Services Section by midday, two working
days prior to each Executive Cabinet meeting to allow time to prepare appropriate
responses and investigate the issue if necessary.

« A maximum period of 3 minutes will be allowed for a question from a member of the public
on an item on the agenda. A maximum period of 30 minutes to be allocated for public
questions if necessary at each meeting.

« The question to be answered by the Executive Member with responsibility for the service
area or whoever is most appropriate.

« On receiving a reply the member of the public will be allowed to ask one supplementary
question.

« Members of the public will be able to stay for the rest of the meeting should they so wish but
will not be able to speak on any other agenda item upon using their allocated 3 minutes.

PROCEDURE FOR ‘CALL-IN’ OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS

« Each of the executive decisions taken at the Executive Cabinet meeting are subject to the
adopted ‘call-in’ procedure within 10 working days of the Executive Cabinet meeting at which
the decision is made, unless the decision has been implemented as a matter of urgency.

e Guidance on the ‘call-in’ procedure can be accessed through the following internet link:
http://chorley.gov.uk/Pages/AtoZ/K-O/Overview-and-Scrutiny.aspx

e If you require clarification of the ‘call-in’ procedure or further information, please contact
either:
Ruth Rimmington (Tel: 01257 515118; E-Mail: ruth.rimmington@chorley.gov.uk) or
Carol Russell (Tel: 01257 515196, E-Mail: carol.russell@chorley.gov.uk)
in the Democratic Services Section.




Agenda Page 5 Agenda ltem 2

Executive Cabinet

Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 20 June 2013

Present: Councillor Alistair Bradley (Executive Leader in the Chair), Councillor Peter Wilson
(Deputy Leader of the Council) and Councillors Beverley Murray, Terry Brown, Dennis Edgerley
and Adrian Lowe

Also in attendance

Lead Members: Councillor June Molyneaux and Danny Gee

Other Members: Councillors John Dalton, Alison Hansford, Harold Heaton, Steve Holgate,
Paul Leadbetter and Greg Morgan

Officers: Gary Hall (Chief Executive), Lesley-Ann Fenton (Director of Partnerships, Planning and
Policy), Jamie Carson (Director of People and Places), Cath Burns (Head of Economic
Development), Asim Khan (Head of Customer, ICT and Transactional Services), Jennifer Moore
(Head of Planning), Chris Sinnott (Head of Policy and Communications), Jamie Dixon (Head of
Streetscene and Leisure Contracts), Alex Jackson (Senior Lawyer) and Ruth Rimmington
(Democratic and Member Services Officer)

Members of the public: One.

13.EC.47 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
No apologies for absence were submitted.
13.EC.48 MINUTES

RESOLVED - The minutes of the meeting of the Executive Cabinet held on 21
March 2013 be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Executive
Leader.

13.EC.49 DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTERESTS
No Members declared an interest in respect of items on the agenda.
13.EC.50 PUBLIC QUESTIONS

The Executive Leader reported that there had been a request from one member of the
public to speak the agenda item relating to item 7: Chorley Council Performance
Monitoring Quarter Four 2012/13.

The question was read out by Alan Whittaker: How satisfied are you with the
performance of Chorley Council, the Planning Department and DC Committee in
particular.

Mr Whittaker explained that he spoke on behalf of Heskin Parish Council and as a
resident of the Borough. There were three aspects to the question.

Firstly in relation to Orcheton House which was a long standing issue relating to
planning enforcement.

He was secondly unhappy that the Council had not notified Heskin Parish Council of a
potential planning application on the former Camelot site. The Parish Council had
become aware of the issue via an article in the local press which had been instigated
by the developer.

The third aspect of the question related to a planning application for a slurry lagoon.
He felt that the Council had placed no importance on the feelings of the Parish Council
and the lack of amenity for the local residents.

Executive Cabinet 1
Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 20 June 2013



Agenda Page 6 Agenda ltem 2

Councillor Dennis Edgerley, Executive Member for LDF and Planning responded that
he was satisfied with the performance, although he felt part of his role was to identify
shortcomings and resolve them. Part of the agenda for the meeting included a report
which included the performance of the Planning Department which had enable Mr
Whittaker to ask his question. The issues which had been experienced by the
department were now being resolved as set out in the report.

Councillor Edgerley explained that the Council were proactive in consultation
processes. Steps were being taken to improve qualitative measures, including
through several corporate projects.

Councillor Edgerley noted that the Council received around 350 enforcement
complaints annually. The majority of these could be dealt with quickly; however, a few
of these were long standing and could be extremely complex. The case of Orcheton
House was one of the latter.

It was not possible for enforcement reports, which were presented to Development
Control Committee, to be made publicly available as this would inform the subject of
the enforcement of the Council’'s enforcement plans.

On the second point, in relation to the former Camelot site, Councillor Edgerley
explained that the Council had been in discussions with the developer and had told
them to consult with the Parish Council. At the current time a planning application had
not been submitted for the Council to consult on.

The site had not been allocated as part of the Local Plan process, which had been
widely consulted upon at various stages, including with all Parish Councils. The site
was considered a previously developed site within the greenbelt. The developer had
also attending the Local Plan hearing to make representations on the site. At the
current time the inspector had given an interim view on the Local Plan.

These facts meant that Councillor Edgerley could not accept that the Council had
failed to consult, as there was no application to consult upon.

On the third point, in relation to the slurry lagoon application, Councillor Edgerley
advised that slurry was already dealt with on the site. It was incorrect to say that the
views of local people had not been taken into account. Councillor Edgerley had
himself requested that the application be deferred from the last Committee to enable
Members to attend a site visit and to have a technical briefing on the matter.
Members had taken time to take all of the information on board. Councillor Edgerley
noted that a condition would be proposed that restricted the slurry to that generated
on the farm.

Mr Whittaker thanked Councillor Edgerley for his response. He commented it would
have been appreciated if the Council had kept the Parish Council informed of the
progress. He reiterated his view that the Council ought to have told the Parish Council
about the potential planning application on the former Camelot site and that
communication ought to be two way.

Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Leader, advised that the Council had a new
strategy, to be discussed later on the agenda in relation to communications. In
addition to this, the Council held regular meetings with the Parish Councils and held
Neighbourhood Meetings which had Parish Council representation. He accepted that
improvements could always be made.

Executive Cabinet 2
Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 20 June 2013



Agenda Page 7 Agenda ltem 2

13.EC.51 APPROVAL FOR THE PROCUREMENT APPROACH INCLUDING THE
AWARD PROCEDURE, EVALUATION METHODOLOGY AND CRITERIA TO
PURCHASE ONE LARGE (15T) AND TWO COMPACT MECHANICAL
SWEEPERS BY WORKING IN PARTNERSHIP WITH SOUTH RIBBLE
BOROUGH COUNCIL

With the agreement of the Chair this item was brought forward on the agenda.

The Executive Member for Places explained that although the decision fell within the
Resources, Policy and Performance portfolio it related to a purchase for within his own
portfolio of Places.

The report sought approval for a proposed joint procurement approach with South
Ribble Borough Council. This included the award procedure, evaluation methodology
and criteria to purchase one large (15 tonne) and two compact mechanical sweepers
for Chorley Council.

South Ribble Borough Council also needed to procure the same number and type of
vehicles and by working together the Council's were likely to achieve savings
compared to procuring the vehicles separately.

Members noted the percentage within the evaluation criteria allocated to
environmental / sustainability. It was noted that 10% was quite high when compared
with other Local Authorities and that the percentage set out for servicing /
maintenance and fuel (only 5% each) reflected the efficiency of the vehicles.

A query was raised in relation to the maintenance of the vehicles. The supplier would
be expected to train the drivers and fitters as part of the delivery of the vehicles. The
basic maintenance would be undertaken in-house, with specialist repairs brought in, if
required. This arrangement would be monitored over the life of the vehicles. The
vehicles had been depreciated over 5 years.

Decision made

1. Approval granted to working in partnership with South Ribble Borough
Council (SRBC) for the purchase of two large and four compact
mechanical sweepers.

2. Approval granted to the procurement approach of a joint procurement
with SRBC via a further competition conducted on behalf of Chorley
Council by ESPO (Eastern Shires Purchasing Organisation) through an EU
compliant public sector framework agreement.

3. Approval granted to ESPO as the lead body (in accordance with 36.4 of
Chorley Council’s procurement procedures) who would issue, receive and
open tenders on behalf of CBC/SRBC. Additionally for ESPO to carry out
key areas of the evaluation in accordance with the published evaluation
criteria.

4. Approval granted to the evaluation criteria of Cost 60% (including 40%
purchase price, 5% residual value, 5% basket of parts, 5% servicing&
maintenance, 5% fuel costs) and quality 40% (including 20% warranty and
technical support, 10% delivery and 10% environmental / sustainability)
with training an unscored specified requirement.

Reason(s) for decision

Under the Council’s contract procedure rules approval by the Executive Cabinet of
contract award procedure and evaluation criteria for tenders greater than £75,000 in
value is required.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
To not agree contract award procedure and evaluation criteria and fail to comply with
the Council procurement rules.

Executive Cabinet 3
Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 20 June 2013



Agenda Page 8 Agenda ltem 2

13.EC.52 RESPONSE TO OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
RECOMMENDATIONS ON PRIVATE RENTED SECTOR HOUSING
STANDARDS

With the agreement of the Chair this item was brought forward on the agenda.

The Executive Member for Places presented the report and explained that in April
2012 an Overview and Scrutiny Task Group had produced a report relating to ‘Private
Sector Housing Inspection’.

Within the report recommendations had been made to the Executive Cabinet that
additional resource be directed to establishing a programmed private sector housing
standards inspection service. This would supplement the existing reactive housing
standards work undertaken within the People and Places Directorate.

Since the Task Group findings and recommendations received and accepted for
consideration in June 2012 work had commenced within the Environment and
Neighbourhoods Team to establish a programmed inspection regime for the private
rented housing sector in Chorley. This utilised the existing resources of officers
trained to inspect housing to the required standard.

A new database system had been introduced and, since October 2012, officers had
undertaken over 50 programmed inspections. Work had commenced to build up a
database of private rented sector accommodation using local intelligence, housing
benefits information and council tax details.

As part of the Service Improvement Plan for 2013/14 and in line with the Corporate
Strategy there was a specific project in place within the Health Environment and
Neighbourhoods Team to ‘Develop and deliver a scheme to increase housing
standards’. This project would be delivered during 2013/14 and would redirect
existing resources to fully establish a programmed inspection regime for the private
rented housing sector. It would also develop a private rented housing standards
policy subject to Council approval against which housing standards compliance could
be measured.

A query was raised in relation to a Landlord Accreditation Scheme not being
introduced. Councillor Bev Murray, who had been the Chair of the Task Group,
explained that this was considered during the inquiry, but that Members felt there
would be a low take up of this kind of scheme. This could be revisited in the future.

The Executive Leader commented that the work being undertaken would help to
locate where the private rented houses were. The recommendation relating to the
development of a private rented housing standards policy would improve standards,
as would the inspection regime. Members could report issues, as could tenants.

Decision made

1.  Approval granted to accept the basic recommendation of providing a
proactive inspection programme for private rented sector housing
standards.

2. Approval granted that the resourcing of the inspection programme was
made through the utilisation of existing resources by shifting workloads
and using capacity created from the reduction in workload arising from
the transfer of private sewers to United Utilities as public sewers.

3. Confirmation that a Landlord Accreditation Scheme was not introduced in
Chorley at this time.

4. Approval granted that a private rented sector housing standards policy be
developed.

Executive Cabinet 4
Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 20 June 2013



13.EC.53

13.EC.54

Agenda Page 9 Agenda ltem 2

Reason(s) for decision

To respond to the Overview and Scrutiny Committees recommendations in regard to
the introduction of a proactive housing inspection programme in the private rented
housing sector.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
None.

Councillor Adrian Lowe left the meeting at 6.50pm.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY TASK GROUP - ADOPTION OF ESTATES FINAL
REPORT

The Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Councillor Steve Holgate,
presented the final report of the Overview and Scrutiny Task Group into the Adoption
of Estates.

The Task Group had been chaired by Councillor Matthew Crow. The topic had been
selected following numerous requests by residents across the borough to address the
growing number of estate and open space adoption issues.

In response to a query Councillor Holgate advised that the Task Group had identified
a mix of small and large housing estates across the Borough that had or were still
having adoption issues. These were used as case studies from which to identify the
concerns and issues that existed. The Group then interviewed the developers of
these estates, along with borough and county officers and residents.

The Task Group had, at the conclusion of the review, agreed 14 recommendations,
which had been endorsed by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

Councillor Bradley thanked Councillor Holgate, Councillor Crow and the Members and
officers for their input into the inquiry.

Decision made

To accept the report of the Overview and Scrutiny Task Group — Adoption of
Estates be received and accepted for consideration, with a view to the
Executive Cabinet’s recommended response to the recommendations being
reported to a future meeting.

CHORLEY INWARD INVESTMENT PLAN

The Executive Leader presented the report. He explained that Chorley needed to
compete for the creation of jobs in a busy region as jobs enabled residents to pay their
way and contribute to society.

The proposed strategy replaced a previous strategy which was not delivering. An
independent company had been commissioned to make recommendations for the

Plan. These were split into “must do”, “could do” and “should do”.

The Executive Leader outlined some of the recommendations, including the
development of a dedicated business website, a soft landing scheme and
downloadable marketing materials.

The Leader of the Opposition requested a copy of the full plan, which would be made
available to all Members. This included timescales for actions to be completed by. It
was hoped that over one hundred jobs would be created through the implementation
of the plan, with hopes that it could create hundreds.

Executive Cabinet 5
Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 20 June 2013



13.EC.55

13.EC.56

Agenda Page 10 Agenda ltem 2

With the action taken since the new administration in May about one hundred jobs had
been created already. This included action undertaken by the newly appointed
Business Advisor, a “Starting In Business Grant’, a business network and various
seminars.

Decision made
To note the contents of the report and to approve the delivery of the
recommended inward investment plan activities.

Reason(s) for decision

To realise our Corporate Strategy outcome to create ‘A strong local economy’ and to
deliver a key priority within the 2012 Economic Development Strategy which aims ‘to
promote and increase inward investment in Chorley to support economic growth in the
borough and provide a mix of well paid, high and low skilled jobs’.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
None.

CHORLEY COUNCIL PERFORMANCE MONITORING QUARTER FOUR
2012/13

The Executive Member for Resources, Policy and Performance presented a report
which set out the performance against the delivery of the Corporate Strategy and key
performance indicators during the fourth quarter of 2012/13, 1 January to 31 March
2013.

Overall performance of key projects was good, with a majority of the projects on track
or scheduled to start later in the year. One project, the trial reopening of Market Street
had been rated amber due to recommendations to amend the scheme, however
completion was due to happen by the end of the second quarter 2013/14.

Action plans had been developed to outline what action would be taken to improve
performance on the Corporate Strategy and key service delivery measures that were
performing below target.

Decision made
To note the report.

Reason(s) for decision
To facilitate the on-going analysis and management of the Council’s performance in
delivering the Corporate Strategy.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
None.

CHORLEY PARTNERSHIP PERFORMANCE MONITORING QUARTER FOUR
2012/13

The Executive Member for Resources, Policy and Performance presented a report on
the performance of the Chorley Partnership during the fourth quarter of 2012/2013,
from 1 January to 31 March 2013.

Members noted that the performance of the Chorley Partnership in achieving the key
performance targets remained good. The latest figures available for alcohol related
hospital admissions showed a year to date reduction of 5.3% at quarter two 2012/13.
Primary fires in Chorley were lower than anticipated and crime overall had shown a
decrease of 11.6% in quarter four compared to the same period last year. Following
the trend over the past twelve months this had resulted in an overall increase of 1%.

Executive Cabinet 6
Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 20 June 2013



13.EC.57

13.EC.58

Agenda Page 11 Agenda ltem 2

In response to a query Members noted that the Responsible Authorities Group were
encouraging people to report domestic violence which meant that the reported figures
had increased.

Decision made
To note the report.

Reason(s) for decision
To facilitate the on-going analysis and management of the Chorley Partnership’s
performance and delivery of funded projects.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
None.

CAMPAIGNS AND ENGAGEMENT STRATEGY

The Executive Cabinet considered a report which sought approval for a new
Campaigns and Engagement Strategy.

The strategy outlined how the Council would develop to where we want to be, in order
to achieve the objectives set out in the corporate strategy, rather than having an
external focus of improving and protecting the council’'s image and reputation.

Although there was a change of emphasis the strategy would play a central role in
improving residents’ satisfaction. If customers understood and were aware of the
services that were available to them, knew how to access them and were able to
communicate openly with the council, they were more likely to appreciate that they
receive value for money services in exchange for the council tax they pay.

Decision made
Approval granted to the Campaigns and Engagement Strategy.

Reason(s) for decision
To provide an up-to-date strategy that enables the council to best communicate with
local residents.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
To continue with the current Communications and Marketing strategy.

PROVISIONAL REVENUE OUTTURN 2012/13

The Executive Member for Resources, Policy and Performance presented a report
which set out the provisional revenue outturn figures for the Council as compared
against the budgets and efficiency savings targets it set itself for the financial year
2012/13.

The Council expected to make overall target savings of £200,000 in 2012/13 from
management of the establishment. As reported in September, the full savings target
for 2012/13 were achieved.

After taking slippage of budgeted underspends on committed items into account, the
Council’s initial net expenditure at the end of the year showed an underspend against
the budget of around £91,000.

The Council’'s Medium Term Financial Strategy proposed that working balances were
to be no lower than £2.0m due to the financial risks facing the Council. Should the
recommendations in this report be accepted, the level of balances proposed at 31
March 2013 would exceed the minimum of £2.0m by £0.060m. This placed the
Council in a strong position for the start of the next financial period.

Executive Cabinet 7
Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 20 June 2013



13.EC.59

Agenda Page 12 Agenda ltem 2

Decision made

1. To support the recommendation that Council approve slippage requests
outlined in Appendix 2 of the report to finance expenditure on specific
items or projects in 2013/14.

2. To support the recommendation that Council approve the transfer a sum
of £100,000 from general balances to a specific reserve to fund buildings
maintenance and improvement works.

Reason(s) for decision
To ensure the Council’s budgetary targets are achieved.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
None.

CAPITAL PROGRAMME PROVISIONAL OUTTURN 2012/13 AND
MONITORING 2013/14 - 2015/16 PROGRAMME

The Executive Member for Resources, Policy and Performance presented the
provisional outturn figures for the 2012/13 Capital Programme, which at this stage was
subject to scrutiny by the Council’s external auditor.

The report also updated the Capital Programme for financial years 2013/14 to 2015/16
to take account of the rephasing of expenditure from 2012/13 and other proposed
budget changes.

It was proposed that £163,000 of the £450,000 revenue budget savings
identified for debt reduction in 2012/13 should be used to finance capital
expenditure instead of incurring new borrowing. This helped to achieve the
savings in the capital financing revenue budget from 2013/14 onwards.

Decision made

1. To support the recommendation that Council approve the financing of the
2012/13 Capital Programme, as presented in Appendix 1.

2. To support the recommendation that Council approve the rephasing of
capital budgets between 2012/13 and 2013/14, as presented in column (2)
of Appendix 2.

3. To support the recommendation that Council approve the other
amendments to the Capital Programme for 2013/14 to 2015/16, as
presented in columns (3), (6) and (9) of Appendix 2.

4. To support the recommendation that Council approve the virement of
£40,000 from the Head of Governance’s Bengal Street depot revenue
budget to the budget for revenue financing of capital expenditure.

Reason(s) for decision

1. Itis necessary for Council to approve the financing of the 2012/13 Capital
Programme, and to approve the rephasing of budget provision between 2012/13
and 2013/14.

2. ltis also necessary for Council to approve the revised 2013/14 Capital
Programme, taking account of the rephasing of budgets, transfer of budgets
between projects, changes to resources, and the proposed use of uncommitted
budgets and resources.

3. The revenue consequence of adding £40,000 to the Capital Programme for
further modification of Bengal Street Depot, to be funded from savings, should be
reflected in the General Fund revenue budget.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
None.

Executive Cabinet 8
Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 20 June 2013



Agenda Page 13 Agenda ltem 2

13.EC.60 LOCAL ENFORCEMENT PLAN

13.EC.61

The Executive Member for LDF and Planning advised that the proposed Local
Enforcement Plan provided a framework to manage enforcement complaints in the
Planning Service. The report sought approval of the Plan and related performance
targets and service standards.

In March 2012, the National Planning Policy Framework introduced a new local
approach to enforcement. At Full Council on 17 July 2012, the Council adopted the
previous national planning policy guidance (PPG18: Enforcement), as an interim
approach to planning enforcement, and resolved to prepare a Local Enforcement Plan
to meet the requirements of the Framework.

The Local Enforcement Plan provided an opportunity for the Council to set out how it
would manage planning enforcement casework and to define local performance
targets and service standards.

Members noted that the initial assessment of the level of priority would be dependent
upon the information provided at the time the complaint was made. Once
investigations commenced, the priority level might change following the initial site visit,
after an initial assessment was made, or on receipt of additional information.

The Council aimed to visit in accordance with the following timescales:
. Category A: Same day or next working day

. Category B: Within 10 working days

. Category C: Within 20 working days

Members requested that the briefing paper on the revised permitted development
rights be recirculated via intheknow.

At the request of a Member Councillor Edgerley agreed to revisit the last two bullet
points within Category B as to the timescales before the report was taken to Council
for approval

Decision made

1. Endorsement of the Local Enforcement Plan, performance targets and
service standards.

2. To support the recommendation that Council approve and adopt Local
Enforcement Plan.

Reason(s) for decision

The delivery of the Local Enforcement Plan is a corporate project and must be
approved by the full Council in order to deliver decisions that are supported by an
authorised and transparent policy.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected

Continue with current position and use of PPG18 and Circular 10/97. However, the
Framework cancels a number of documents including PPG 18 and Chorley Council
must have a basis for making decisions on enforcement action.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

RESOLVED - To exclude the press and public for the following items of
business on the ground that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government
Act 1972.

Executive Cabinet 9
Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 20 June 2013



13.EC.62

13.EC.63

Agenda Page 14 Agenda ltem 2

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY BUSINESS CONTINUITY

The Executive Leader presented a confidential report which proposed a
comprehensive Disaster Recovery (DR) solution that would also support more
effective Business Continuity (BC) for the Council.

Councillor Morgan requested a copy of the ICT program and plan. This would be
forwarded to him before the next meeting of the Executive Cabinet.

Decision made

Approval granted to the proposed changes to build on the existing Disaster
Recovery infrastructure for Council Information Systems currently housed at
County Hall Preston and agreement to the required funding.

Reason(s) for decision

1. The Council has effective DR arrangements in place for protecting its data. The
need to enhance this would support more effective business continuity and
significantly speed up the process of recovering information systems in the event
of a disaster. If this work is not carried out, the Council would experience a delay
in the event of a disaster resulting in the provision of day to day business being
affected.

2. The changes that are being proposed are also part of the Internal Audit
recommendations made in September 2012.

3. The proposed enhancements would protect the investment already made to
improve the information systems and support remote working.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected

1. Accept the risk that whilst data is backed up off site there would be a significant
delay in operational access to it. This has been rejected on the basis that the
delay would be unacceptable to the Council’s business continuity plans.

2. To bring all DR infrastructure back to Chorley Council from County Hall. This
would remove the geographical distance between the live and DR solutions. A
Chorley wide incident could result in complete data loss which is the principle
reason for the rejection of this solution.

3. The procurement of Infrastructure and Disaster Recovery as an outsourced
service provided by a third party company; some testing of market costs for this
type of service has been undertaken. The significant cost of this type of solution
was the reason for its rejection.

HOUSING BENEFIT, COUNCIL TAX BENEFIT AND COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT
— SANCTION AND PROSECUTION POLICY

The Executive Member for Resources, Policy and Performance presented a
confidential report which highlighted legislative changes which affected the amount
of an Administrative Penalty

The report explained the changes and implications for customers who accepted
an offer of an Administrative Penalty as an alternative to criminal proceedings and
made Members’ aware of aspects of the Welfare Reform Act 2012 and Council
Tax Reduction Schemes (Detection of Fraud & Enforcement) (England)
Regulations 2013 which impacted on those who committed Housing Benefit,
Council Tax Benefit and Council Tax Support fraud.

Decision made

1. Approval granted to the revised and updated Sanction and Prosecution
Policy (Appendix A)

2. To note the effects of the Welfare Reform Act 2012 and the Council Tax
Reduction Schemes (Detection of Fraud & Enforcement) (England)
Regulations 2013 on benefit customers who commit benefit fraud.

Executive Cabinet 10
Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 20 June 2013



Agenda Page 15 Agenda ltem 2

Reason(s) for decision

1.

The changes to the Sanction & Prosecution Policy give the option of a financial
penalty being available for cases where fraud is attempted and there is no
overpayment.

The decision to prosecute or to offer a formal caution or an Administrative
Penalty or in fact to take no action at all is still at the Council’s discretion.

Where the offer of a sanction is appropriate the decision to offer a formal caution
or an Administrative Penalty is heavily influenced by whether customer admits
the offence at the interview under caution.

Attached to this report is a flow chart (Appendix B) which illustrates how the
policy is put into action. Although the policy may suggest criminal proceedings or
the offer of a formal caution or Administrative Penalty, each case is considered
individually with the most appropriate action being recommended for each case.

Alternative option(s) considered and rejected
The following options were considered but rejected.

Set a minimum overpayment for Administrative Penalties.

Set a minimum overpayment for both formal cautions and Administrative
Penalties

Take no action where an alternative to prosecution is appropriate but the offer of
a formal caution is not.

Adopting any of the above would restrict the Council’s discretion to take the most
appropriate action in each case. The Council’'s Sanction & Prosecution Policy
would also be out of step with the Sanction and Prosecution Policy of the
Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) if these options were adopted. This
could lead to inconsistency when deciding what action to take in cases where
there has been a joint investigation involving Chorley Council and DWP
investigators.

Executive Leader

Executive Cabinet

11

Public Minutes of meeting held on T hursday, 20 June 2013



Agenda Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 17 Agenda Item 5

Chor Iey

Council

Report of Meeting Date

Head of Governance
(Introduced by the Executive Cabinet 15 August 2013

Executive Leader)

REFURBISHMENT OF 98-102 MARKET STREET - CRITERIA
FOR THE AWARD OF THE WORKS CONTRACT

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.

To advise the Executive Leader of the tender procedure being used to procure this contract
and to obtain authority for the use of the criteria intended to award the contract.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.  That the tender process for the award of the contract be approved.

3. That the award criteria detailed at paragraph 24 be approved.

4. That the award of the contract be delegated to the Executive Leader for approval.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT

5.

In November last year the Executive approved in principle the refurbishment of the former
McDonalds site for retail use. This involved the demolition of 98 Market Street with a scheme
for the remaining buildings to be brought back to the Executive for consideration.

On 21 March this year Executive Cabinet decided to implement a scheme which would
deliver 3 retail units with shop frontage on Market Street. The building to the rear of 100-102
Market Street would be demolished (in addition to 98 Market Street) and a service yard
would be created in this area. This scheme has been properly worked up and designed.

In addition provision has been made for an additional retail unit, a kiosk, to be situated in the
area formerly occupied by 98 Market Street. The proposed layout has been submitted to
Planning and a consent for the demolition works, 3 units and additional kiosk has been
approved. There is no obligation to build the kiosk but the opportunity is there.

Based on the approved design and layout, invitations of interest were invited from
contractors who were asked to complete a prequalification questionnaire.

In all the Council received 25 responses and questionnaires. Those who are successful will
be invited to tender for the works. The assessment of these tenders will be based on the
following criteria:-

a. 80% Cost
b. 20% Quality

Confidential report Yes No
Please bold as appropriate

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)
(If the recommendations are accepted)

1

0. The Council's contract procedure rules require the procurement process and assessment
criteria to be approved by the Executive. The procedure implemented provides an open and
transparent process for the award of the contract. The use of the pre qualification
questionnaire enables the Council to limit the parties who are asked to tender for the works




11.

Agenda Page 18 Agenda Item 5

to those who satisfy preliminary tests. This will limit the number of technical bids meaning a
speedier and more efficient contract award process.
The Criteria are those suitable for this type of contract.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

12.

13.

Previous decisions relating to this site have addressed the type of works to be undertaken.
This report concerns the award of the refurbishment contract and the process to be followed.
The award could have been following a full tender process, but it was felt this would be
lengthy and more complicated due to the number of likely tenders. Each would have then
had to have had a technical bid to consider. This would have extended the time taken and
the cost to the authority.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES

14. This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives:

Involving residents in improving their local A strong local economy X
area and equality of access for all
Clean, safe and healthy communities An ambitious council that does more

to meet the needs of residents and

the local area

BACKGROUND

15. The former McDonalds building and neighbouring premises were purchased by the Council
with a view to renovating them into smaller units for let to starter businesses.

16. Having considered the site it has been decided to demolish 98 Market Street and a part of
the building to the rear of 100-102 Market Street and create 3 units with frontage onto
Market Street. In addition there will be a service yard to the rear of the premises.

17. There is an option to build a Kiosk type shop in the area formerly occupied by 98 Market
Street to provide another unit and improve the public realm.

18. Planning permission has been granted for the above proposals and the works have been
specified in outline with a view to operating a procurement process for the refurbishment
works contract.

19. In parallel to this the Council are working to redevelop the area to the rear of 98-102 Market
Street into a public car park and there is a report before Cabinet tonight updating on
progress.

20. The Units (including the kiosk) have been marketed for expressions of interest in taking
leases. This is with a view to working with any prospective tenants to ensure that the units
(the layout etc.) are appropriate for their needs.

PROCUREMENT

21. Due to the nature of the works the Council’'s property agents recommended that the
contract is awarded under a Pre-Qualification Questionnaire process which enables the
Council to then invite those who have expressed an interest and qualified to deliver the
works to provide a tender for the works.

22. This had the benefit of limiting the number who could provide a full tender to those
contractors who have satisfied the initial criteria. This means there would be fewer technical
bids to consider thus saving the council time and money.

23. The Council received 26 expressions of interest through the PQQ process. Of this number
there are 7 who have been selected to submit a full tender. We are advised that this will
ensure the market has been properly tested and the Council receive a competitive bid.

24. The bids will be assessed on the scoring matrix of

a. 80% cost
b. 20% quality.



25.
26.

27.

Agenda Page 19 Agenda Item 5

This is the usual split for this type of contract. As a local authority we are obliged to ensure
that cost is a significant consideration in any contract award.

Executive Cabinet are asked to approve this scoring matrix.

It is envisaged that the tenders will be assessed during the end of August beginning of
September with a contract being awarded after that period. Cabinet are asked to delegate
to the Executive Leader authority to agree to the award of the contract on the basis of that
scoring matrix. This will ensure that there are not any undue delays in progressing this
contract.

The contract award will be subject to the Alcatel 10 day standstill period and will be formerly
offered to the winning contractor if there are no challenges to the award.

PRE-LETS

28.

29.

30.

31.

Economic Development have undertaken a marketing exercise advertising the proposed
units as pre-lets to new or new to the area businesses.

The stated aim of the refurbishment is to provide starter units which are within the control of
this authority and can be used to stimulate the town centre economy and promote business
growth.

To date there have been 11 expressions of interest in taking a lease of the one of the
premises, including the kiosk. They are from a variety of businesses and represent the
aspirations for the town centre and include businesses that will contribute to bringing
customers into the town and the town centre offer.

These initial expressions are being pursued to a second stage where there will be greater
engagement with the businesses to establish their suitability.

THE KIOSK

32.

33.

34.

35.

As stated above, planning permission has been approved for the building of a kiosk in the
area currently occupied by 98 Market Street following its demolition. This proposal was
included in the application (although it didn’t form part of the recommendation adopted by
the Executive Cabinet) for 2 reasons.

Firstly, the condition of the gable wall of 100 Market Street is uncertain. Members may
recall from the previous report that despite it appearing that 98 and 100 Market Street
shared a party wall, they were in fact 2 wholly separate buildings with their gables built
against each other. The condition of the gable wall cannot be established until the
demolition of 98 has been completed. If the condition is poor, the addition of a kiosk,
coming off that wall, will limit the cost of improving it. There will be an additional spend to
building the kiosk, but this will be limited and the unit will provide an income.

The second reason is that some public realm works will be needed to address this space. A
kiosk would complement this reducing the cost of the public realm works and again provide
an income.

An estimated cost of the build of the Kiosk is £35,000. It is proposed to leave a decision on
the build of the Kiosk until such time as the condition of the wall has been assessed. Given
the relative spend, this is an issue that can be decided by an Executive Member Decision.

FINANCIAL UPDATE

36.

37.

The current estimate for the refurbishment to 3 units is £250,000 which includes £50,000 for
the demolition works. Liberata have advised that there may be an additional cost in relation
to the dividing wall in 102 Market Street. There is some concern that the foundations are
inadequate to take the weight of a solid (as opposed to stud) wall. A report has been
commissioned to consider the foundations.

The estimated rental incomes are -

a. £15,000 p.a. for each of the new units created within 102 Market Street;
b. £10,000 p.a. for the unit at 100 Market Street; and
c. £7,250 p.a. for the Kiosk.



Agenda Page 20 Agenda Item 5

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT

38. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are
included:
Finance X | Customer Services
Human Resources Equality and Diversity
Legal X | Integrated Impact Assessment
required?
No significant implications in this area Policy and Communications

COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER

39.

40.

41.

Council on 28" February 2013 approved a £1 million Regenerations Projects budget in the
2013/14 Capital Programme. The refurbishment (£200,000 estimate) and demolition
(£50,000 estimate) would be funded from the Regeneration Projects budget. Once the
contract has been awarded, the actual budget requirement will be identified separately in
Capital Programme monitoring reports.

My Capital Programme monitoring report on this agenda indicates that up to £165,000 of
the Regeneration Projects capital budget would be required for the project to surface and
resurface three Town Centre car parks, including the temporary car park to the rear of
these Market Street premises. The cost of the project would be reduced by £40,000 if
overnight working to resurface the Flat Iron car park is not required.

The uncommitted balance of the Regeneration Projects budget after approval of these
projects would be £585,000. However, there are issues to resolve in respect of the
refurbishment scheme, in particular the solution required for the gable wall of 100 Market
Street, the dividing wall of 102 Market Street, and the public realm works on the site of 98
Market Street. In addition, construction of a kiosk, if required, is estimated to cost £35,000,
though it should generate £7,250 rental income each year.

COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER

42.

The Council’'s contract procedure rules require that the Executive Cabinet approve the
contract award criteria. Once approved the award of the contract must be made within that
matrix and the award of the contract can be delegated to the Executive Member.

Chris Moister
Head of Governance

There are no background papers to this report.

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID
Chris Moister 5160 6 August 2013 *




Chor Iey

Council

Agenda Page 21

Agenda Item 6

Report of

Meeting

Date

Chief Executive
(Introduced by the Executive
Member for Resources, Policy
and Performance)

Executive Cabinet

15 August 2013

INDIVIDUAL ELECTORAL REGISTRATION

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.  To outline the details surrounding the introduction of Individual Electoral Registration (IER)
and the processes and timescales involved in the transition.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.  That the contents of the report are noted.

3. That the Executive Member (Resources, Policy and Performance) be granted delegated
authority to agree any additional funding for resources necessary for the implementation of
IER as required by the Electoral Registration and Administration Act 2013.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT

4.  The Electoral Registration and Administration Act received Royal Assent in January 2013. It
introduces a fundamental change to the way we register to vote, by introducing Individual

Electoral Registration (IER).

5. Each Local Authority Electoral Registration Officer is required to implement the new
arrangements before the 2015 UK Parliamentary Election.

Please bold as appropriate

provision that impacts upon
the service revenue budget by
£100,000 or more

Confidential report Yes No

Please bold as appropriate

Key Decision? Yes No

Please bold as appropriate

Reason 1, a change in service |2, a contract worth £100,000

or more

3, a new or unprogrammed
capital scheme of £100,000 or
more

4, Significant impact in
environmental, social or
physical terms in two or
more wards

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)
(If the recommendations are accepted)
6. Tofacilitate the full transition to IER in line with the legislation timescales.




Agenda Page 22 Agenda Item 6

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

7.  There are no alternatives as the Council is legally obliged to adopt the provisions as set out
in the Electoral Registration and Administration Act 2013.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES

8.  This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives:

Involving residents in improving their local J A strong local economy
area and equality of access for all
Clean, safe and healthy communities An ambitious council that does more
to meet the needs of residents and
the local area

CHANGES TO ELECTOR REGISTRATION

9.  The introduction of IER will be the biggest change to the voter registration process since the
universal franchise was introduced. At present, one person in every household is
responsible for registering everyone else who lives at that address.

10. Under the new system, individuals would be asked to provide “identifying information”, such
as a name, address, National Insurance Number and date of birth which will be cross-
checked with the Department of Work and Pensions before names are added to the register.
An individual unable to provide their date of birth or National Insurance Number will be
required to explain why they cannot do so, and to provide alternative evidence. At present
this may take the form of a passport or ID, or attestation from a person of “good standing”.
Other options may be adopted in the future.

11.  Once registered, individuals need only confirm annually, that their details have not changed.

12. Anindividual who has been required to register and fails to do so will receive a second and
third notice before a penalty arises. This will be a civil penalty (comparable in amount to a
parking fine) for a failure to register.

13. The transition to individual registration will commence in July 2014. A full IER Electoral
Register will be published on 1 December 2014 and by January 2016 the transition will be
complete.

14. People who fail to register under the new system in 2014 would have their registration
carried forward to 2015 ensuring that they would be registered to vote at the 2015 UK
general election. However, postal or proxy voters would need to register under the new
system from 2014 or they would automatically lose the right to use this method of voting.
Anyone who has moved house or changed their name would also be required to register
under the new system.

15. People who have not moved house or do not require a postal or proxy vote will have until the
end of the autumn 2015 annual canvass to register under the new system. Those who have
not registered individually and had their identity verified by then would be removed from the
register.



Agenda Page 23 Agenda Item 6

IMPLEMENTATION OF IER

16.

17.

The implementation of IER falls into five key stages. Alongside this work the Electoral
Registration Officers and Administrators will continue their work to run elections and carry
out other related activities, including the normal canvass process.

The key elements of the process include:
» 2012 - 13 : Designing, building and testing the new system;

» July — Dec 2014: Following European elections, transitional phase begins with the
confirmation of existing electors through data matching against information held by
DWP, and letters sent to those not confirmed by data-matching inviting applications for
registration.

» Dec 2014: New register comprises all electors confirmed by data matching, all those
who have made successful individual applications, and those on spring 2014 register
who have not yet reapplied and are carried forward.

 To March 2015: Completion of the transition, with targeted activity prior to March
inviting further missing electors and encouraging applications. May General Election.

* Autumn 2015: Full household canvass. Every household confirms who lives there,
anyone new invited to register individually. Re-canvass of electors carried forward from
March 2014 canvass who were not confirmed by data-matching and have not self-
registered — names removed from register in December 2015 of those who do not then
re-apply. (This removal of non-individually registered electors may lead to lower overall
levels of registration than at present). Possibility of final canvass being extended to
autumn 2016 should insufficient progress have been made at this point.

» 2016: New system in place — all new electors and those moving home will be required
to register individually. There will be an annual household canvass to ensure the
register is up to date.

Over summer 2013, a dry run of electoral registers against the Department for Work and
Pensions (DWP) data base will allow the Council to identify particular issues it faces in
creating a full and accurate local register, and will be used to identify any resource
implications. Information from this will also be used to determine future funding allocations.

The Electoral Registration and Administration Act came into force in January 2013 and aims
to modernise and improve the electoral registration system. It seeks to provide better
protection against electoral fraud and make it more convenient for eligible citizens to register
a vote by introducing Individual Electoral Registration

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

18.

19.

The Government has confirmed that £108M has been set aside for the implementation of
IER. Local authorities will receive funding directly through grants under Section 31 of the
Local Government Act 2003 to meet the costs of transition to Individual Registration and will
be paid separately to revenue support grant. Following implementation, there will be other
associated costs in respect of the maintenance of systems; scanning equipment, printing and
postage costs but there will be no additional funding to cover these.

There will be a substantial increase in the workload of Electoral Services. It is anticipated
that additional temporary staff will be required during the transition period to deal with the
processing of forms and dealing with an increase in the number of queries. The Electoral
Commission is also expected to provide guidance on how best to reach those who are least



Agenda Page 24 Agenda Item 6

likely to be registered or to respond to the change. Electoral Services will need to give
consideration as to what measures will be most suitable to encourage registration and under-
registration, which may involve input from the Counci’'s Communications Section.

19. The Cabinet Office has produced a Digital Design and Delivery Project, to provide a service
to support the implementation of IER. This will be funded centrally from the £108M budget.

20. A Member’s Learning Hour session will be held on this subject in the autumn of 2013.

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT

21. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are

included:
Finance J Customer Services
Human Resources Equality and Diversity J
Legal J Integrated Impact Assessment
required?
No significant implications in this area Policy and Communications J

COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER

22. 1t is unclear at the moment how much funding the Council will receive. Once known | will
report back to the Executive Cabinet on the resourcing and financial implications of these
arrangements for the Council.

COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER
23. There are no comments from the Monitoring Officer

GARY HALL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE & ELECTORAL REGISTRATION OFFICER

Background Papers

Document Date File Place of Inspection

http://www.legislation.go
Electoral Registration and Feb 2013 v.uk/ukpga/2013/6/conte
Administration Act 2013 ’ nts/enacted

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID
Phil Davies 5131 12 June 2013




Agenda Page 25 Agenda ltem 7

Cheorley

Council

Report of Meeting Date

(Introduced by the Executive
Member for Resources, Policy

Chief Executive
Executive Cabinet 15 August 2013

and Performance)

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2013/14
REPORT 1 (END OF JUNE 2013)

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.

This report sets out the provisional revenue outturn figures for the Council as compared
against the budgets and efficiency savings targets it set itself for the financial year 2013/14.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2. That Council should approve the use of £143,000 of the Town Centre Reserve for revenue
financing of the capital scheme for resurfacing of three Town Centre car parks.

3.  That Council should approve the use of the £40,000 one-off Minimum Revenue Provision
saving, relating to Regeneration Projects in the 2013/14 Capital Programme, to finance
revenue costs relating to the projects including the cost of business rates for 98-102 Market
Street outlined in paragraph 21.

4.  That Council should approve the use of the one-off £35,950 Minimum Revenue Provision

saving, arising from the rephasing of capital expenditure from 2012/13, for the reduction of
debt as detailed in paragraph 28.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT

5.

The Council expected to make overall target savings of £200,000 in 2013/14 from
management of the establishment. | am pleased to report that a total saving of £50,000 has
been achieved in the first quarter, leaving a further £150,000 remaining for the target to be
achieved for the year. Further savings should be made as the year progresses and more
vacancies occur but if the remaining target is not achieved, budget efficiencies will need to
be identified elsewhere to ensure the target for the year is achieved.

The projected outturn currently shows a forecast underspend of around £35,000 against the
budget. No action is required at this stage in the year.

The Council’'s Medium Term Financial Strategy proposed that working balances were to be
maintained at a level no lower than £2.0m due to the financial risks facing the Council. The
current forecast to the end of June shows that the General Fund balance will be around
£2.095m. This would reduce to around £2.019m should the recommendations outlined in
this report be approved. This puts the Council in a strong position and should help to
mitigate against future risks associated with the Local Business Rates Retention scheme
from April 2013.

Confidential report Yes No
Please bold as appropriate




Agenda Page 26

Agenda ltem 7

Key Decision?
Please bold as appropriate

Yes

No

Reason
Please bold as appropriate

1, a change in service
provision that impacts upon
the service revenue budget
by £100,000 or more

2, a contract worth £100,000
or more

3, a new or unprogrammed
capital scheme of £100,000 or
more

4, Significant impact in
environmental, social or
physical terms in two or more
wards

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)
(If the recommendations are accepted)

8.  To ensure the Council’'s budgetary targets are achieved.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

9. None.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES

10. This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives:

Involving residents in improving their local
area and equality of access for all

A strong local economy

Clean, safe and healthy communities

An ambitious council that does more | v
to meet the needs of residents and
the local area

Ensuring cash targets are met maintains the Council’s financial standing.

BACKGROUND

11. The Council’'s approved revenue budget for 2013/14 included the following savings
proposals required to balance the budget and maintain front line services. The majority of
these proposals had already been put in place by the start of the new financial year with the
remainder now implemented since April.

Savings £m

Staffing Restructures 0.392
Base Budget Review 0.133
Major Contracts 0.070
Planning Fees - 15% national increase in charges 0.075
Investments & Debt restructuring 0.135
Total Savings Achieved 2013/14 0.805




12.

13.

14.

15.

Agenda Page 27 Agenda ltem 7

In addition to the savings outlined above, the Council expected to make overall target
savings of £200,000 from management of the establishment.

The 2013/14 budget also included significant additional investment which focussed on the
Council’s corporate priorities. A sum of £1,348,500 was approved for investment in the
following areas:

INVESTMENT AREA Amg“"t
Neighbourhood working:

* Proactive clean up team 50,000

» Neighbourhood working pot 100,000

« Community development and volunteering 70,000
Support to the VCFS Network — Increasing volunteering in

15,000

the borough
Chorley Community Bank 50,000
16/17 year old drop in scheme 15,000
Tree Policy 30,000
Extension and improvement of street furniture 65,000
Active Generation 31,000
Street Games 50,000
Play area improvements 100,000
Free Swimming 7,500
Employee health scheme 20,000
Campaigns and events 40,000
Regeneration Projects 40,000
Car park pay and display income reduction 75,000
Inward investment delivery 350,000
Town Centre Masterplan 30,000
Support the expansion of local businesses 110,000
Implement a joint employment initiative with Runshaw 50,000
College
Private Property Improvement Scheme Trial 50,000
TOTAL NEW INVESTMENT 1,348,500

Details of the costs incurred and expenditure committed to date against these new
investment areas can be seen at Appendix 2.

Earlier this year the Council approved the virement of £40,000 from the Head of
Governance’s Bengal Street Depot revenue budget to undertake capital works to enable
the site to deliver the recycling business with Recycling Lives Limited. It is envisaged that
this sum can be generated from the part-year savings in 2013/14 from the arrangement with
Recycling Lives, though the actual saving will depend on the date of completion of the lease
agreement.

The Council also recently approved the funding required for the proposed enhancements to
deliver a more comprehensive ICT Disaster Recovery solution that will also support more
effective Business Continuity for the Council. The required sum of £220,000 has already



Agenda Page 28 Agenda ltem 7

been identified from in-year underspends within Customer, ICT & Transactional Services
and set aside to fund this project.

CURRENT FORECAST POSITION

16.

17.

18.

19.

Set out in Appendix 1 is the summary provisional outturn position for the Council based
upon actual spending in the first three months of the financial year, adjusted for future
spending based upon assumptions regarding vacancies and service delivery. No individual
service directorate figures are attached. These can be viewed at
http://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/documents/s38414/June%202013%20Monitoring.pdf and
are also available as hard copies for inspection in the Members’ Room.

In the period to the end of June we have already identified £50,000 of contributions towards
the annual corporate savings targets of £200,000 for 2013/14. The main savings that have
been identified are from vacant posts within the People & Places Directorate.

The directorate cash budgets have been amended for approved slippage from 2012/13 and
any transfers from reserves. The significant additions to the budget include:

* £162,450 investment in ICT communications and information management.
» £78,200 residual budget from the Neighbourhood/pump priming budget.
» £66,650 environmental clean-ups/grot spots.

The projected outturn shown in Appendix 1 forecasts an underspend against the budget of
£35,000. The significant variances from the Cash Budget are shown in the table below.
Further details are contained in the service unit analysis available in the members’ room:

ANALYSIS OF MOVEMENTS

Table 1 — Significant Variations from the Cash Budget

Note: Savings/underspends are shown as ().

£000 £000

Expenditure
Staffing costs (63)
Non-Domestic Rates (Empty Properties) 27
Non-Domestic Rates (Other Properties) 15

(21)
Income
Planning & Building Control Fees (15)
Welfare Reform Grant (24)

(39)
Other
Housing & Council Tax Benefits (73)
Net Financing Transactions (MRP) (76)
Other minor variances 24

(125)
Management of the Establishment (savings target) 150
Net Movement (35)




20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

Agenda Page 29 Agenda ltem 7

The forecast saving of £63,000 on staff salaries shown in the table above is in addition to
the contribution of £50,000 already made to the corporate savings target in quarter 1. The
additional saving comes from within the Chief Executive & Transformation and People &
Places Directorates.

Part of the Council’s Town Centre regeneration programme included the proposal to create
three retail units following the acquisition and refurbishment of 98-102 Market Street.
Following acquisition, the Council has subsequently become liable to pay non-domestic
rates on the empty properties until they are either let to tenants, in the case of 100 and 102
Market Street, or demolished in the case of 98 Market Street. The current estimated cost to
the Council is around £25,000 in 2013/14 but this will vary depending on the timescale for
occupancy and demolition. It is proposed that this cost is financed from the saving on MRP
outlined below (see paragraph 27). A further £2,000 is forecast for other properties
currently vacant within the Council’s investment portfolio and this again depends on the
actual dates of occupancy.

The Council will also incur an overspend against the budgets for non-domestic rates
chargeable on other Council owned land at property. Around £11,000 of the total forecast
overspend of £15,000 is in respect of charges against the Council’s car parks as a result of
changes in transitional relief for 2013/14.

The Council’'s income budget of £650,000 for Planning Application Fees in 2013/14
included an estimated additional £75,000 following the national increase in planning fees
implemented in November 2012. Income levels will be monitored closely throughout the
year to ensure this additional income is achieved but at this early stage, income for the first
quarter is higher than compared to the budget. Income from Building Control Fees also
compares favourably with the budget for the first three months of the year and at this stage
a combined surplus of around £15,000 over budget is forecast for the year.

The Council recently received a grant from the Department of Work and Pensions of around
£24,000 as additional funding to meet the costs of implementing welfare reform changes in
2013/14. It is anticipated that the impact of the changes can be met from within existing
staffing resources and that no additional external costs will be incurred.

One budget that could have a significant impact on the Council’s year-end position is the
budget for housing benefit payments. As we have seen in recent years it is extremely
difficult to accurately predict the level of expenditure due to the size and nature of the
budget in that it is very much demand driven. Figures for the first quarter show a slowdown
in the anticipated demand compared to 2012/13 and as a result the initial forecast is for an
underspend against budget of around £73,000. This position will be monitored closely
throughout the year and Members advised accordingly.

The Director of People and Places, in his report on this agenda, recommends approval of
the contract award procedure for the resurfacing of three Town Centre car parks (Portland
Street, Flat Iron and Fleet Street). In my capital programme monitoring report, | recommend
that the maximum estimated cost of £308,000 should be added to the 2013/14 Capital
Programme. The Regeneration Projects capital budget would provide £165,000 of the
funding. It is recommended that the balance should be provided from the Town Centre
Reserve, and it would be shown as revenue financing of capital if approved. Once tenders
are received, and the need for overnight working considered, any unused budget provision
would be reversed back to its source.

The Net Financing Transactions budget includes £40,000 estimated Minimum Revenue
Provision (MRP) in respect of borrowing to finance Regeneration Projects which are
included within the 2013/14 Capital Programme. This budget would not be required for
MRP in 2013/14, because the requirement to charge the revenue budget for debt
repayment arises from 2014/15 onwards. However, | suggest that the budget is earmarked
to cover any revenue costs relating to the Regeneration Projects in 2013/14, including the



28.

Agenda Page 30 Agenda ltem 7

cost of business rates for the empty retail units at 98-102 Market Street. | will report
specific proposals for further use of this budget in later monitoring reports.

Due to rephasing of capital projects that would have been financed by borrowing, from
2012/13 to 2013/14, there is a one-off £35,950 reduction in MRP this year. This is not a
recurring saving, just a result of incurring borrowing to finance some schemes a year later
than originally planned. | recommend that the saving is earmarked to reduce debt, which
will achieve revenue budget savings in subsequent years. This can be achieved in two
ways: (a) voluntarily setting aside of funds to restructure past debt already incurred, or (b)
using funds to finance capital expenditure in the current year via the revenue account thus
preventing borrowing being incurred from the outset. The option attaining the highest level
of savings at the point of transaction will be selected.

RETAINED BUSINESS RATES

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

The calculation of Retained Business Rates included in the 2013/14 approved budget is
attached as Appendix 3. These figures, with the exception of the estimated levy, were
provided to the Government on the NNDR1 return for 2013/14. Of the estimated net rate
yield of £26.027m, the Council would retain £2.740m after paying £20.685m to central
Government, £2.342m to Lancashire County Council, and £0.260m to the Fire Authority.
Much of the central Government share is reallocated to local authorities through other
funding mechanisms.

Actual figures will be reported to the Government on the NNDR3 return. However, NNDR3
figures can be produced throughout the year in order to review performance against
estimated figures. Figures produced at the end of July suggest that we are broadly on
target, with a projected net rate yield of £26.638m. However, there are a number of
variances to arrive at that total, some of which could be of concern.

The NNDR1 included a £1m adjustment due to successful appeals by businesses, but at
this point in the year most appeals would still be unresolved and would therefore not be
reflected in the calculation of the higher net rate yield. It would be more realistic to assume
that the final figure for appeals would be closer to the estimate than it is at present, and that
net rate yield would reduce because of the following variances. The end of July NNDR3
figures have therefore been amended to include £1m for appeals, and the net rate yield has
been reduced to £25.638m as a consequence.

The current projection of empty and partly occupied premises reliefs is £0.689m, which is
£0.266m higher than the £0.423m estimated for 2013/14; and £0.043m higher than the
2012/13 actual total of £0.646m. The total in 2013/14 would change as properties become
occupied, void periods expire, and new voids arise.

Small business rate relief is forecast to exceed the estimate by £0.082m; and mandatory
charity relief by £0.024m.

The net effect of all variances is a reduction in net rate yield of £0.389m, of which this
Council’s share would be a reduction of £0.078m. The impact of the reduction would be in
2014/15.

This is the first year of the new system of local retention of business rates, so monitoring of
performance against the estimates is especially important. Figures for 2014/15 will have to
be prepared before we have full year figures for 2013/14. The experience gained from
regular monitoring of net rates yield should help to improve the accuracy of estimates for
subsequent years.

OTHER ISSUES

36.

The Council recently granted temporary conditional planning approval for a residential
Gypsy and Traveller site at Heath Paddock, Hut Lane, Heath Charnock for a period of 2



Agenda Page 31 Agenda ltem 7

years. There is currently a balance of around £77k remaining in a specific earmarked
reserve for use in relation to potential appeals and enforcement costs relating to the Hut
Lane site. Although the issue has been temporarily resolved following the grant of planning
permission, the full financial impact of the decision is still to be assessed and as such | feel
it is prudent at this stage to retain this balance in reserve to meet any potential future costs.

GENERAL FUND RESOURCES AND BALANCES

37.

38.

39.

The current cash budgets for 2013/14 have been updated to take account of the transfer of
approved slippage of £518,850 from 2012/13 and for other transfers from reserves to
finance revenue expenditure in 2013/14.

With regard to working balances, and as per Appendix 1, we started the year with a balance
of £2.060m. The approved MTFS proposes that working balances are to be no lower than
£2.0m given the budgetary challenges facing the Council. The current forecast to the end
of June shows that the General Fund balance will be around £2.095m. Taking into account
the recommendations regarding the use of savings on MRP, the revised closing balance
would reduce to £2.019m as detailed in the table below.

Table 2 — Movement in General Fund Balance

General Balances £m

Opening Balance 2013/14 2.060
Provisional revenue budget underspend 0.035
Forecast General Fund Balance 2013/14 2.095
Use of MRP saving (0.076)
Proposed General Fund Balance 2013/14 2.019

Appendix 4 provides further information about the earmarked reserves and provisions that
are currently available during 2013/14.

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT

40.

This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are
included:

Finance v' | Customer Services

Human Resources Equality and Diversity

Legal v | Integrated Impact Assessment
required?

No significant implications in this Policy and Communications

area

COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER

41.

The financial implications are detailed in the body of the report.



Agenda Page 32

COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER
42. The Monitoring Officer has no comments.

GARY HALL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

There are no background papers to this report.

Agenda ltem 7

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID
Dave Bond 548 230713 | M e atoume e




APPENDIX 1

(1) (2) ) (4) (5 (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)
Original Cash Impact of Agreed Agreed Amended | Contribution to |Contribution to Current Cash
General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 gud ot Council Changes Changes Cash Corp. Savings | Corp. Savings Budget Forecast Outturn| Variance Variance
Forecast to end of June 2013 9 Restructure | (Directorates) (Other) Budget (Staffing) (Other) 9
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ %
Chief Executive & Transformation 6,005,490 257,310 6,262,800 6,262,800 6,237,800 (25,000)| -0.4%
Partnerships, Planning & Policy 1,417,850 12,890 1,430,740 1,430,740 1,448,190 17,450 1.2%
People & Places 6,560,040 203,330 6,763,370 (50,000) 6,713,370 6,710,520 (2,850)| 0.0%
Directorate Total 13,983,380 - - 473,530 | 14,456,910 (50,000) - 14,406,910 14,396,510 (10,400)| -0.1%
Budgets Excluded from Transformation Directorate Monitoring:
Pensions Account 243,970 243,970 243,970 243,970 - -
Benefit Payments 153,240 153,240 153,240 80,500 (72,740)| -47.5%
Corporate Savings Targets
Management of Establishment - (200,000) (200,000) 50,000 (150,000) - 150,000 | -100.0%
Reduction in Pension Rate - - - - 0 - -
Efficiency/Other Savings - - - - 0 - -
Total Service Expenditure 14,380,590 - - 273,530 | 14,654,120 - - 14,654,120 14,720,980 66,860 0.5%
Non Service Expenditure >
Contingency Fund - - - 0 - (@)
Contingency - Management of Establishment (200,000) 200,000 - - 0 - (_2
Efficiency/Other Savings - - - 0 - o
Revenue Contribution to Capital - 211,800 211,800 211,800 336,280 124,480 Q
Net Financing Transactions 261,350 40,000 301,350 301,350 235,400 (65,950) o
VAT Shelter Income - - - 0 - Q
Transfer to Earmarked Reserve - VAT Shelter Income - - - 0 - ‘?“D
Parish Precepts 530,240 530,240 530,240 530,234 (6) P
w
Total Non Service Expenditure/lIncome 591,590 - - 451,800 1,043,390 - - 1,043,390 1,101,914 58,524
Total Expenditure 14,972,180 - - 725,330 | 15,697,510 - - 15,697,510 15,822,894 125,384 0.8%
Financed By
Council Tax (6,340,200) (6,340,200) (6,340,200) (6,340,200) -
Grant for freezing Council Tax 2013/14 (64,570) (64,570) (64,570) (64,570) -
Revenue Support Grant (3,861,960) (3,861,960) (3,861,960) (3,861,957) 3
Retained Business Rates (2,740,260) (2,740,260) (2,740,260) (2,740,260) -
Council Tax Transition Grant (19,890) (19,890) (19,890) (19,890) -
New Homes Bonus (1,805,030) (1,805,030) (1,805,030) (1,805,040) (10)
New Burdens Grant (16,400) (16,400) (16,400) (16,402) (2)
Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit (77,000) (77,000) (77,000) (77,000) -
Use of Earmarked Reserves - capital financing - (171,800) (171,800) (171,800) (296,280) (124,480)
Use of Earmarked Reserves - revenue expenditure 67,630 (544,850) (477,220) (477,220) (461,220) 16,000
Conts in CGUA Reclassified as Revenue - (8,680) (8,680) (8,680) (60,280) (51,600) ~
Budgeted Contribution from General Balances (114,500) (114,500) (114,500) (114,500) - S~
e
D
Total Financing (14,972,180) - - (725,330)| (15,697,510) - - (15,697,510) (15,857,599) (160,089) 1.0% =S
(@]
Net Expenditure - - - - - - - (34,705) (34,705) QY
—
General Balances Summary Position Target Forecast (_2
£ £ =
General Fund Balance at 1 April 2013 2,000,000 2,059,860
Provisional (Over)/Under Spend 34,705
Forecast General Fund Balance at 31 March 2014 2,000,000 2,094,565




Agenda Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



New Investment approved in 2013/14 Revenue Budget

APPENDIX 2

'NEW | EXPENDITURE |cOMMITMENTS | ExPENDITURE | BALANCE
INVESTMENT AREA INVESTMENT TO DATE £ + COMMITMENTS REM/;INING COMMENTS
£ £ £

Proactive clean up team 50,000 13,429 26,859 40,288 9,712

Tree Policy 30,000 1,020 0 1,020 28,980 Tree works orders pending - going live in August. Budget expected
to be fully spent in 2013/14.

Regeneration of key town centre sites 40,000 0 0 0 40,000(No cost in 2013/14 - see recommendation in report.

Play area improvements 100,000 0 0 0 100,000 Work will start after consultation, spend expected in quarter four.

Community development and volunteering 70,000 0 0 0 70,000 There will be a saving in 2013-14. Work will be starting in August.

Unify Credit Union 50,000 14,739 27,334 42,073 7,927

Support to the VCFS Network 15,000 7,500 0 7,500 7,500

Neighbourhood Working 100,000 2,327 6,610 8,937 91,063 | Two of the 24 priorities have been completed and Lead Officers a}
finalising details and costs of the remaining Neighbourhood «Q
Priorities, spend is expected over the next three quarters. Q

16/17 year old drop in scheme 15,000 0 0 0 15,000|Service provided by the charity "Key" who will invoice quarterly. g

Extension & improvement of street furniture 65,000 0 0 0 65,000|The contract has been let and orders are being raised with spendﬁ
expected in quarters two and three. The contract value is around T
£60k, with the remaining £5k for fitting and parts. Py

Active Generation 31,000 10,942 20,058 31,000 0 6

Street Games 50,000 8,139 0 8,139 41,861 |Programme for the remainder of 13/14 should fully utilise the bud@gx.

Free Swimming 7,500 0 7,500 7,500 0[Program implemented with Active Nation for the summer period. ¢,

Employee health scheme 20,000 5,941 12,000 17,941 2,059 |Anticipated spend around £1,500 per month. ol

Campaigns and events 40,000 0 1,458 1,458 38,542 Astley Park events organised for Aug/Sept. Also Christmas events.

Car park pay and display income reduction 75,000 0 75,000 75,000 0

Inward investment delivery 350,000 22,564 0 22,564 327,436|Report to Exec Cabinet 20th June 2013 to approve the delivery of the
recommended inward investment plan activities. ~

Town Centre masterplan 30,000 11,385 22,700 34,085 (4,085)|Forecast overspend to be met from in year savings. ‘f

Support the expansion of local businesses 100,000 0 15,850 15,850 84,150 (A number of projects are in the pipeline %

Support the expansion of local businesses 10,000 175 712 887 9,113|Commitment to an annual business event in Autumn 2013 ‘—'§

Joint employment initiative with Runshaw College 50,000 20,625 0 20,625 29,375(Budget to be spent over two years. o

Private Property Improvement Scheme 50,000 0 0 0 50,000 |Currently 1 minor application under review for this trial scheme. Q)

TOTAL 1,348,500 118,786 216,081 334,867 1,013,633 —

(3[)
~




Agenda Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 37 Agenda Item 7 ,ppenpix 3

Calculation of Business Rates Retained Estimate 2013/14

Variance
NNDR1 NNDRS3 End from
2013/14 July NNDR1
£ £ £
Summary of NNDR1 2013/14 figures
Gross Rate Yield 31,520,861 31,529,000 8,139
Less:
- Small business rate relief -1,611,468 -1,693,000 -81,532
- Mandatory relief to charities -1,845,842  -1,870,000 -24,158
- Empty/partly occupied premises relief -423,355 -689,000 -265,645
- Other mandatory reliefs -34,168 -6,000 28,168
Mandatory Reliefs -3,914,833  -4,258,000 -343,167
Discretionary Reliefs -8,591 0 8,591
Gross Rate Yield after reliefs 27,597,437 27,271,000 -326,437
Losses in collection -350,000 -350,000 0
Cost of Collection Allowance -133,847 -134,000 -153
27,113,590 26,787,000 -326,590

Estimated change in receipts 1/10/12 - 30/9/13 -86,566 -149,000 -62,434
Estimated adjustment due to appeals -1,000,000 -1,000,000 0

Net Rate Yield (before transitional arrangements) 26,027,024 25,638,000 -389,024

Allocation of Net Rate Yield 2013/14

Amount of NNDR to be paid to central government 13,013,512 12,819,000 -194,512

Amount to be retained by Chorley under the rates S(Scfi?]rcetion of
retention scheme 10,410,810 10,255,200 -155,610 tariff/levy
Amount to be passed to Lancashire County Council 2,342,432 2,307,420 -35,012

Amount to be passed to Lancashire Fire Authority 260,270 256,380 -3,890

Total 26,027,024 25,638,000 -389,024

Calculation of Chorley retained business rates

Unadjusted total from above 10,410,810 10,255,200 -155,610

Tariff to be paid to central government -7,499,540 -7,499,540 0

Levy to be paid to central government -171,010 -93,203 77,807

Estimated retained business rates 2013/14 2,740,260 2,662,457 -77,803




Agenda Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 39 Agenda Item 7 pppenDIX 4

Analysis of Reserves and Provisions 2013/14 to 2014/15

Forecast Forecast
Reserve or Provision Purpose Balance Use in Balance
31/3/13 2013/14 31/3/14 Notes
£ £ £
Reserves
General Fund Balance 2,059,860 34,705 2,094,565 (1)
Restructuring Reserve Unused balance from 2012/13 22,990 22,990 (2)
VAT Shelter Income Capital/revenue financing 152,260 (152,260) 0
Provision for Pension Liabilities Payment to Lancashire Pension Fund 1,750,000 0 1,750,000
Non-recurring growth Budgeted financing of new investment 114,500 (114,500) 0
Non-Directorate Reserves 2,039,750 (266,760) 1,772,990
Chief Executive's Office
Slippage from 2012/13 21,670 (21,670) 0
Chief Executive's Office 21,670 (21,670) 0
Slippage from 2012/13 26,800 (26,800) 0
PRG - capital financing 50,720 (50,720) 0
PRG - uncommitted 29,350 (29,350) 0
Policy & Performance 106,870 (106,870) 0
Chief Executive's Office 128,540 (128,540) 0
Partnerships, Planning & Policy
Slippage from 2012/13 22,730 (22,730) 0
Government Grants 584,730 (274,740) 309,990
Handyperson Scheme 48,530 (2,660) 45,870
Capital financing 7,920 (7,920) 0
Housing 663,910 (308,050) 355,860
Town Centre Grants 188,540 (80,000) 108,540
Town Centre Reserve 233,330 (233,330) 0
Economic Development 421,870 (313,330) 108,540
Planning Appeal Costs 183,130 (100,000) 83,130
Government Grants 34,350 34,350 (2)
Local Development Framework 42,030 (42,030) 0
Planning 259,510 (142,030) 117,480
Partnerships, Planning & Policy 1,345,290 (763,410) 581,880
People & Places
Slippage from 2012/13 145,730 (145,730) 0
Astley Hall Works of Art 5,780 5,780 (2)
Neighbourhood Working 78,200 (78,200) 0
Allotment Development 10,720 (10,720) 0
Maintenance of Grounds 52,200 10,000 62,200 (2)

People & Places 292,630 (224,650) 67,980



Agenda Page 40 Agenda Item 7 pppenDIX 4

Analysis of Reserves and Provisions 2013/14 to 2014/15

Forecast Forecast
Reserve or Provision Purpose Balance Use in Balance
31/3/13 2013/14 31/3/14 Notes
£ £ £

Reserves

Transformation
Slippage from 2012/13 1,000 (1,000) 0
Legal Case Mgt System 2,350 (2,350) 0
Town Hall Roof Safety Boards 16,000 (16,000) 0
Union Street Roof Safety Boards 10,000 (10,000) 0
Clayton Brook Public House 73,760 (73,760) 0
Buildings Fund 100,000 (100,000) 0
Elections 0 85,000 85,000
Governance 203,110 (118,110) 85,000
Slippage from 2012/13 20,050 (20,050) 0
Shared Financial Services 20,050 (20,050) 0
Slippage from 2012/13 29,500 (29,500) 0
Additional NEETs 79,040 (79,040) 0
Human Resources & OD 108,540 (108,540) 0
Slippage from 2012/13 162,450 (162,450) 0
Capital financing 8,450 (8,450) 0
ICT Services 170,900 (170,900) 0
Transformation 502,600 (417,600) 85,000
Directorate Reserves 2,269,060 (1,534,200) 734,860
Earmarked Reserves 4,308,810 (1,800,960) 2,507,850
Total Reserves 6,368,670 (1,766,255) 4,602,415

Provisions

Insurance Provision Potential MMI clawback 15,000 0 15,000
Total Provisions 15,000 0 15,000

Notes
(1) Based on forecast as at 30 June 2013.

(2) Use of these reserves would be proposed in revenue budget monitoring reports
during 2013/14.



Agenda Page 41 Agenda Item 8

Chorley

Council

Report of Meeting Date

Member for Resources, Policy

Chief Executive

(Introduced by the Executive Executive Cabinet 15 August 2013

and Performance)

CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING 2013/14 - 2015/16

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.

To update the Capital Programme for 2013/14 and provisional budgets for 2014/15 and
2015/16, to take account of additional resources and other proposed budget changes.

2. To present an updated analysis of the receipt and use of developers’ contributions for the
financing of capital projects between 2013/14 and 2015/16.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.  That the Council be recommended to approve the amendments to the Capital Programme
for 2013/14, as presented in column (2) of Appendix 1.

4.  That the Council be recommended to approve the amendments to the provisional budgets

for 2014/15 and 2015/16, as presented in columns (5) and (8) of Appendix 1.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT

5.

Council of 16™ July 2013 approved amendments to the 2013/14 Capital Programme which
increased the budget from £11,951,340 to £12,853,770. Budget provision rephased from
2012/14 totalled £917,710; and other budgets reduced by a net total of £15,280.

The provisional Capital Programmes for 2014/15 and 2015/16 were each increased by
£4,720 on the assumption that Government funding of Disabled Facilities Grants (DFGs) in
those years would match the funding allocated for 2013/14.

Few changes are required to the 2013/14 Capital Programme at this stage. A net increase in
the programme of £102,720 is proposed, as shown in column (2) of Appendix 1. The
provisional budgets for 2014/15 and 2015/16 are each reduced by £50,120 because of the
estimated reduction in DFGs funded by housing associations.

The Director of People and Places reports a request that a S106 contribution received from
an Eccleston development should be used to provide a £77,000 grant to Eccleston Parish
Council. If agreed, the effect on the budget for Play, Recreation and Public Open Space
projects will be indicated in the next monitoring report.

Places for People have declined to sign the Local Adaptations Agreement relating to
Disabled Facilities Grants for housing association tenants. It is estimated that expenditure,




10.

11.

12.

13.

Agenda Page 42 Agenda Item 8

and the contribution that would finance it, would reduce by £52,440 in 2013/14 and £50,120
in subsequent years.

The main capital receipt required to finance new projects added to the 2013/14 Capital
Programme by Council on 28" February 2013 has not yet been received. Other capital
receipts totalling £42,044 were received in the first quarter of 2013/14; and the Council’s
share of Chorley Community Housing’s Preserved Right to Buy receipts in the quarter is
estimated to be £19,000.

Revenue budget savings could be achieved by financing replacement People and Places
directorate vehicles by borrowing rather than leasing. Additional vehicles are required for the
waste and recycling contract from 2014/15. Savings could be achieved if these vehicles are
purchased rather than being recharged by Veolia through the contract.

Also on this agenda, the Director of People and Places makes recommendations in respect
of the contract award procedure for the resurfacing of three town centre car parks. Though
contract figures have not yet been finalised, it is recommended that the estimated maximum
budget should be added to the 2013/14 Capital Programme, to be financed from the Town
Centre Investment Reserve (£143,000 revenue financing) and the Regeneration Projects
capital budget (£165,000 prudential borrowing).

Appendix 2 to the report indicates that an uncommitted balance of developers’ contributions
totalling £442,000 would be carried forward at the end of 2013/14.

Confidential report Yes No
Please bold as appropriate

Key Decision? Yes No
Please bold as appropriate

Reason 1, a change in service |2, a contract worth £100,000
Please bold as appropriate provision that impacts upon | or more

the service revenue budget by
£100,000 or more

3, a new or unprogrammed | 4, Significant impact in
capital scheme of £100,000 or | environmental,  social  or
more physical terms in two or more
wards

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)
(If the recommendations are accepted)

14.

15.

It is necessary for Council to approve the revised 2013/14 Capital Programme, to take
account of additional resources, the transfer of budgets to revenue, the allocation of budgets
to specific projects for monitoring purposes, and changes to the presentation of financing of
the programme.

Provisional budgets for 2014/15 and 2015/16 should be updated to reflect the resources
estimated to be available.



Agenda Page 43 Agenda Item 8

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

16.

None

CORPORATE PRIORITIES

17. This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives:
Involving residents in improving their [ ¥ | A strong local economy v
local area and equality of access for all
Clean, safe and healthy communities v | An ambitious council that does| v
more to meet the needs of
residents and the local area
BACKGROUND
18. Council of 16" July 2013 approved amendments that increased the 2013/14 Capital
Programme by £902,430 to £12,853,770. Budgets rephased from 2012/13 totalled
£917,710; and other amendments reduced the programme by £15,280.
19. The provisional Capital Programme budgets for Disabled Facilities Grants for 2014/15 and

2015/16 were each increased by £4,720. This was to match the Government funding
allocated in 2013/14, on the assumption that it would continue at that level. The actual
allocation of Government grant is unlikely to be known until March 2014, which would be
after approval of the Capital Programme for 2014/15.

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2013/14

20.

21.

22.

23.

If the changes presented in column (2) of Appendix 1 are approved by Council, the Capital
Programme for 2013/14 would increase by a net total of £102,720. The reasons for the
changes are as indicated in the following paragraphs.

The £3,330 ICT budget for Unified Intelligent Desktop costs not eligible for grant funding
should be transferred to the ICT revenue budget to contribute towards the cost of new
projects. Revenue financing of the capital programme would be reduced to match to
ensure that the budget impact would be neutral.

Presentation of the Affordable Housing New Development Projects budget has been
changed to show the schemes already approved at St. George’s Street and Halliwell
Street, and confirmation that the uncommitted budget provision is currently £73,650.

The budget for Disabled Facilities Grants for each year from 2013/14 to 2015/16 included
an estimate of expenditure and income in respect of housing association properties. Places
for People have declined to sign the Local Adaptations Agreement. This will affect the
budget provision required each year, and the estimated impact is that the budget in
2013/14 should reduce by £52,440. This expenditure would have been financed by the
housing association so there is no effect on the Council’s capital resources.




24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

Agenda Page 44 Agenda Item 8

Receipt of a S106 contribution not available for Borough-wide use means that the budget
for Play, Recreation and Public Open Spaces projects can be increased by £15,490, taking
the total to £232,280. When specific projects have been agreed, this budget will be split so
that they can be monitored separately. The Director of People and Places reports on this
agenda that the Council has received a request from Eccleston Parish Council for a
£77,000 grant to provide a multiuse ball court at Drapers Avenue, Eccleston. If approved,
this would be financed with a S106 contribution received from a development in Eccleston,
and would be reported as a separate budget. It is likely that the £8,590 balance remaining
of the particular contribution would be transferred to the revenue budget to fund
improvements to existing Council-owned facilities in or near to Eccleston.

The financing of the programme has been revised to move £124,480 from ‘external
contributions — other’ to revenue financing of capital. The contributions were received prior
to 2013/14 and have been brought forward in earmarked revenue reserves. In revenue
budget monitoring reports, the use of the earmarked reserves for revenue financing of the
capital programme will be shown.

The £360,000 capital receipt required to finance budget growth in 2013/14 approved by
Council on 28" February 2013 has not yet been received. Should the resource not be
received by 31% March 2014, and the budgeted expenditure is incurred, it could be
necessary to incur additional borrowing in 2013/14. The borrowing could be repaid by
voluntarily setting aside the capital receipt once received.

Capital receipts not reflected in the current estimate have been received. These total
£42,044. In addition, the Council’s share of Chorley Community Housing’s Preserved Right
to Buy capital receipts for the first quarter is estimated to be £19,000. The number of sales
is lower than achieved in the last four months of 2012/13, and will continue to be monitored
with CCH throughout the year.

Most vehicles used in the provision of Council services are leased or provided through the
waste and recycling contract. When replacement vehicles are required at the end of
leases, or additional waste/recycling vehicles are needed, it may be possible to achieve
revenue budget savings by funding purchases by borrowing. This option is currently being
evaluated and recommendations as to the most cost effective way of funding vehicle
acquisition will be presented at a later date.

The Director of People and Places, in a report on this agenda, has recommended a
contract award procedure and evaluation criteria for the resurfacing of the Flat lron,
Portland Street and Fleet Street car parks. This resurfacing work is not currently included in
the revenue budget or capital programme. The cost would depend on tenders submitted
and whether an option to resurface the Flat Iron car park overnight is pursued. To provide
budget cover so that the work could start promptly, it is recommended that the maximum
estimated budget of £308,000, excluding fees and surveys already funded in 2012/13,
should be added to the 2013/14 Capital Programme. In my revenue budget monitoring
report on this agenda, it is proposed that £143,000 of the Town Centre Reserve should be
used to finance the scheme. This would be shown as revenue financing of capital in
revenue budget monitoring. The balance of the funding (£165,000) should come from the
Regeneration Projects capital budget. Should tenders be less than currently estimated, or
the option of overnight working not be adopted, then any unused budget provision would be
transferred back.



Agenda Page 45 Agenda Item 8

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2014/15 and 2015/16

30. The budget for Disabled Facilities Grants in each of 2014/15 and 2015/16 should reduce by
£50,120 for the reasons explained above. The effect on the Council’s resources is neutral.

DEVELOPERS’ CONTRIBUTIONS

31. Appendix 2 presents the S106 and similar contributions from developers which are
budgeted to be received and applied in 2013/14. The uncommitted contributions are
£108,000 for play/recreation facilities (of which £22,000 has not yet been received); and
£334,000 of the Pilling Lane contribution. The latter could be used for purposes including
streetscape improvements, cycle network and public transport, community safety and
recreation facilities. Funding of highway improvements in the Pilling Lane area by
Lancashire County Council (£150,000), improvements to Rangletts Recreation Ground
(£221,660), and new CCTV in the area (£30,000) have already been included in the
2013/14 Capital programme.

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT

32. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are

included:
Finance v' | Customer Services
Human Resources Equality and Diversity
Legal Integrated Impact Assessment
required?
No significant implications in this Policy and Communications
area

COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER

33. Financial implications are set out in the body of the report.

COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER

34. The Monitoring Officer has no comments.

GARY HALL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

There are no background papers to this report.

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID
Michael Jackson 5490 23" July 2013 ST




Agenda Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



Capital Programme - 2013/14 to 2015/16

Scheme
Chief Executive
Head of Customer, ICT & Transactional Services
Thin Client/Citrix Virtual Desktop Infrastructure
Unified Intelligent Desktop (externally funded)
UID / Asidua Mobile
Head of Customer, ICT & Transactional Services Total
Head of Governance
Planned Improvements to Fixed Assets
Chorley East Health Centre - land purchase/construction
Regeneration Projects
- Resurfacing Town Centre Car Parks
Demolish Clayton Brook PH and landscape site
Grant to modify Bengal Street depot for charity use

Head of Governance Total

Head of Human Resources & Organisational Development

Integrated HR, Payroll and Training System

Head of HR & Organisational Development Total

Chief Executive Total

Director of Partnerships, Planning & Policy

Head of Economic Development

Climate Change Pot
Head of Economic Development Total

Head of Housing

Affordable Housing New Development Projects

- Affordable Housing St. George's Street Chorley
- Affordable Housing Halliwell Street Chorley
Disabled Facilities Grants

Housing Renewal

- Energy Efficiency Grants

Cotswold House Refurbishment

Bengal Street Depot Residential Accommodation

Head of Housing Total

2013/14 2013/14 2014/15 2014/15 2015/16 2015/16 Total
Current Revised Current Revised Current Revised 2013/14 to
Estimate Changes Estimate Estimate Changes Estimate Estimate Changes Estimate 2015/16
(1) 2 @®) 4 ®) (6) @ (8) (9 (10)
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
46,830 46,830 0 0 0 0 46,830
27,910 27,910 0 0 0 0 27,910
3,330 (3,330) 0 0 0 0 0 0
78,070 (3,330) 74,740 0 0 0 0 0 0 74,740
414,340 414,340 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 814,340
6,650,000 6,650,000 0 0 0 0 6,650,000
1,000,000 (165,000) 835,000 0 0 0 0 835,000
0 308,000 308,000 0 0 0 0 308,000
73,760 73,760 0 0 0 0 73,760
40,000 40,000 0 0 0 0 40,000
8,178,100 143,000 8,321,100 200,000 0 200,000 200,000 0 200,000 8,721,100
15,000 15,000 0 0 0 0 15,000
15,000 0 15,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 15,000
8,271,170 139,670 8,410,840 200,000 0 200,000 200,000 0 200,000 8,810,840
19,680 19,680 0 0 0 0 19,680
19,680 0 19,680 0 0 0 0 0 19,680
498,330 (424,680) 73,650 0 0 0 0 73,650
0 271,680 271,680 0 0 0 0 271,680
0 153,000 153,000 0 0 0 0 153,000
605,490 (52,440) 553,050 623,330 (50,120) 573,210 635,130 (50,120) 585,010 1,711,270
54,020 54,020 0 0 0 0 54,020
3,180 3,180 0 0 0 0 3,180
85,570 85,570 0 0 0 0 85,570
75,000 75,000 0 0 0 0 75,000
1,321,590 (52,440) 1,269,150 623,330 (50,120) 573,210 635,130 (50,120) 585,010 2,427,370

Appendix 1

L 9bed epuaby

g Wwa)| epuaby



Capital Programme - 2013/14 to 2015/16

Scheme

Head of Planning

Eaves Green Link Road - contribution to LCC scheme

Chorley Strategic Regional Site

Highway Improvements Pilling Lane area (S106 funded)

Puffin Crossing Collingwood Rd/Letchworth Drive (S106 funded)
Buckshaw Village Railway Station (S106 financed)

Buckshaw Village Cycle Network (S106 financed)

Head of Planning Total

Director of Partnerships, Planning & Policy Total

Director of People and Places

Head of Health Environment & Neighbourhoods

Pilling Lane CCTV (S106 funded)

Head of Health Environment & Neighbourhoods Total
Head of Streetscene & Leisure Contracts

Leisure Centres/Swimming Pool Refurbishment
Duxbury Park Golf Course/Access Rd capital investment
Replacement of recycling/litter bins & containers

Eaves Green Play Development (S106 funded)

Play and Recreation Fund projects

Common Bank - Big Wood Reservoir

Rangletts Recreation Ground/Duke Street Field (S106 funded)
Adlington Play Facilities (Grove Farm S106)

Play, Recreation and Public Open Space projects (S106)
Astley Hall/Park Development Works

Clayton Brook Village Hall Extension

Astley Hall Farmhouse

Yarrow Valley Country Park Reservoir Works

Head of Streetscene & Leisure Contracts Total
Director of People and Places Total

Capital Programme Total

2013/14 2013/14 2014/15 2014/15 2015/16 2015/16 Total
Current Revised Current Revised Current Revised 2013/14 to
Estimate Changes Estimate Estimate Changes Estimate Estimate Changes Estimate 2015/16
(1) 2 @®) 4 ®) (6) @ (8) (9 (10)
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
80,000 80,000 0 0 0 0 80,000
391,200 391,200 0 0 0 0 391,200
150,000 150,000 0 0 0 0 150,000
47,820 47,820 0 0 0 0 47,820
725,910 725,910 0 0 0 0 725,910
11,150 11,150 0 0 0 0 11,150
1,406,080 0 1,406,080 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,406,080
2,747,350 (52,440) 2,694,910 623,330 (50,120) 573,210 635,130 (50,120) 585,010 3,853,130
30,000 30,000 0 0 0 0 30,000
30,000 0 30,000 0 0 0 0 0 30,000
364,210 364,210 282,250 282,250 283,780 283,780 930,240
95,470 95,470 0 0 0 0 95,470
109,690 109,690 115,000 115,000 115,000 115,000 339,690
183,990 183,990 0 0 0 0 183,990
23,500 23,500 0 0 0 0 23,500
11,520 11,520 0 0 0 0 11,520
221,660 221,660 0 0 0 0 221,660
103,420 103,420 0 0 0 0 103,420
216,790 15,490 232,280 0 0 0 0 232,280
250,000 250,000 0 0 0 0 250,000
135,000 135,000 0 0 0 0 135,000
30,000 30,000 0 0 0 0 30,000
60,000 60,000 0 0 0 0 60,000
1,805,250 15,490 1,820,740 397,250 0 397,250 398,780 0 398,780 2,616,770
1,835,250 15,490 1,850,740 397,250 0 397,250 398,780 0 398,780 2,646,770
12,853,770 102,720 12,956,490 1,220,580 (50,120) 1,170,460 1,233,910 (50,120) 1,183,790| 15,310,740

Appendix 1

gf abed epuaby

g Wwa)| epuaby



Capital Programme - 2013/14 to 2015/16

Scheme

Financing the Capital Programme

Prudential Borrowing
Prudential Borrowing - Chorley East Health Centre

Capital Receipts

Revenue Budget - VAT Shelter income
Revenue Budget - virement from revenue budgets

Chorley Council Resources

Ext. Contributions - Developers
Ext. Contributions - Other

Government Grants - Disabled Facilities Grants
Government Grants - Housing Capital Grant

External Funding

Capital Financing Total

2013/14 2013/14 2014/15 2014/15 2015/16 2015/16 Total
Current Revised Current Revised Current Revised 2013/14 to
Estimate Changes Estimate Estimate Changes Estimate Estimate Changes Estimate 2015/16
(1) 2 @®) 4 ®) (6) @ (8) (9 (10)
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

2,406,880 2,406,880 597,250 597,250 764,690 764,690 3,768,820
6,650,000 6,650,000 0 0 0 0 6,650,000
360,000 360,000 0 0 0 0 360,000
152,260 (3,330) 148,930 0 0 0 0 148,930
59,540 267,480 327,020 0 0 0 0 327,020
9,628,680 264,150 9,892,830 597,250 0 597,250 764,690 0 764,690 11,254,770
2,303,890 15,490 2,319,380 0 0 0 0 2,319,380
252,310 (176,920) 75,390 68,670 (50,120) 18,550 68,670 (50,120) 18,550 112,490
323,460 323,460 311,270 311,270 273,720 273,720 908,450
345,430 345,430 243,390 243,390 126,830 126,830 715,650
3,225,090 (161,430) 3,063,660 623,330 (50,120) 573,210 469,220 (50,120) 419,100 4,055,970
12,853,770 102,720 12,956,490 1,220,580 (50,120) 1,170,460 1,233,910 (50,120) 1,183,790| 15,310,740

Appendix 1

61 abed epuaby

g Wwa)| epuaby



Agenda Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



S$106 and Similar Developers' Contributions

Balance 2013/14 Balance 2014/15 Balance 2015/16 Balance
1/4/13  Receipts Use 1/4/14  Receipts Use 1/4/15  Receipts Use 1/4/16 Notes
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Budgeted use of developers' contributions

Affordable Housing 499 0 (499) 0 0 0 (1)
Transport 785 80 (865) 0 0 0
Play/Recreation Facilities 618 44 (554) 108 108 108 (1) (2)
Various Purposes 735 0 (401) 334 334 334 (3)
Total 2,637 124 (2,319) 442 0 0 442 0 0 442

(1) Further contributions may be receivable between 2013/14 and 2015/16

(2) In addition to Chorley Council schemes included in the capital programme, Play and Recreation Fund grants to support other schemes would be included in the revenue budget
when approved.

(3) This contribution can be used for purposes including highway improvements, community safety and recreation facilities. Use of the balance will be proposed in future reports.

Use of Contributions Receivable from Developers 2012/13 to 2014/15

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000 £'000

Affordable Housing New Development Projects 499
Eaves Green Link Road - contribution to LCC scheme 80
Buckshaw Village Railway Station (S106 financed) 726
Buckshaw Village Cycle Network 11
Eaves Green Play Development (S106 funded) 184
Common Bank - Big Wood Reservoir 11
Play and Recreation Fund projects 24
YVCP Natural Play Zone

Rangletts Recreation Ground 221
Adlington Play Facilities (Grove Farm S106) 103
Play, Recreation & Public Open Space projects (S106) 232
Highway Improvements Pilling Lane area 150
Puffin Crossing Collingwood Rd/Letchworth Dr. 48
Pilling Lane CCTV 30

2,319 0 0

Appendix 2

TG abed epuaby

g Wwa)| epuaby



Agenda Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 53 Agenda ltem 9

Chor Iey

Council

Report of Meeting Date

Chief Executive

(Introduced by the Executive Member for Executive Cabinet 15 August 2013
Resources, Policy and Performance)

CHORLEY COUNCIL PERFORMANCE MONITORING QUARTER
ONE 2013/2014

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1. This monitoring report sets out the performance against the delivery of the Corporate
Strategy, the Residents Survey 2013 and key performance indicators during the first quarter
of 2013/14, 1 April to 30 June 2013.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.  That the report be noted.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT

3.  This report sets out performance against the Corporate Strategy, the Residents Survey
2013 and key performance indicators for the first quarter of 2013/14, 1 April to 30 June
2013. Performance is assessed based on the delivery of key projects, against the
measures in the 2012/13 — 2015/16 Corporate Strategy and key service delivery measures.

4. Overall performance of key projects is excellent, with a majority of the projects on track or
scheduled to start later in the year. One project, the trial reopening of Market Street has been
rated amber due to a further safety audit being required; however completion is due to
happen by the end of October 2014.

5.  Overall performance of the indicators in the residents’ survey 2013 is excellent with 91% of
the indicators performing above target or within the 5% tolerance.

6.  Overall performance on the Corporate Strategy measures and key service delivery indicators
is good. 79% of the Corporate Strategy measures and 80% of the key service measures are
performing above target or within the 5% tolerance.

7.  The Corporate Strategy measures performing below target are; the percentage of 16-18 year
olds who are not in education, employment or training (NEET), the percentage of domestic
violence detections, the percentage of residents who feel that Chorley Council provide value
for money, and the percentage of customers dissatisfied with the way they were treated by
the Council. Action plans have been developed to outline what action will be taken to
improve performance.




Agenda Page 54 Agenda ltem 9

8. The key service delivery measure performing below target is the time taken to process
Housing benefit /Council Tax benefit new claims and change event. Again, an action plan is
included within the report that outlines what actions are being taken to improve performance.

Confidential report
. Yes No
Please bold as appropriate
Key Decision?
Please bold as appropriate Yes No

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)
(If the recommendations are accepted)

9. To facilitate the on-going analysis and management of the Council’'s performance in
delivering the Corporate Strategy.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

10. None

CORPORATE PRIORITIES

11. This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives:

Involving residents in improving their local

. X | A strong local economy X
area and equality of access for all

An ambitious council that does more
Clean, safe and healthy communities X | to meet the needs of residents and X
the local area

BACKGROUND

12. The Corporate Strategy is the key strategic document for the authority and includes
performance indicators and key projects which focus on delivering the Council’'s four
priorities. The Corporate Strategy also continues to align to the priorities set out in Chorley’s
sustainable community strategy, delivery of which is taken forward by the Chorley
Partnership.

13. This report includes an update on the key projects and targets set out in the 2012/13 —
2015/16 Corporate Strategy.

PERFORMANCE OF KEY PROJECTS

14. Following the refresh of the Corporate Strategy in November 2012, there are 20 key projects
for 2012/13 — 2015/16. At the end of the first quarter overall performance of key projects is
excellent. 19 of the 20 projects (95%) are either on track or scheduled to start later in the
year.



Agenda Page 55 Agenda ltem 9

15. At the end of the fourth quarter, eighteen projects (90%) were rated green, meaning that they
are progressing according to timescale and plan:

Develop volunteering in the borough

Implement improvements to neighbourhood working

Launch the civic pride campaign

Establish a process to deliver WTWF's

Produce an inward investment plan

Implement a joint employment initiative with Runshaw College
Develop a Town Centre masterplan

Implement a programme to support the expansion of local businesses
Tackling fuel poverty (Phase 2)

Establish a Chorley Council Youth Council

Deliver a project to improve the productivity of council services
Migrate services into the front office

Chorley sports village

Deliver affordable homes through the use of Council assets
Develop and deliver a scheme to improve housing standards
Produce a development plan for Astley Park

Introduce local solutions to address homelessness

Support the development of Friday Street Health Centre

16. One project (5%) had not started by the end of the first quarter, as it is scheduled to start
later in the year in order to balance out project work with core business and manage staff
capacity.

Improving access to services

17. One project (5%) is currently rated as ‘amber’, which is early warning that there may be a
problem with this project.

Project Title Project Status

Trial re-opening of Market Street Amber

Explanation

Lancashire County Council has taken responsibility for finalising the design and
delivering the scheme. LCC have instructed Jacobs Consulting to carry out a
further safety audit, and following the redesign of any amended scheme
additional consultation may be required.

Action

Required

The safety audit will take place in July. If all is approved, whilst a formal
programme is awaited, it is anticipated that the project will progress as planned
with contract tendering in August, experimental order awarded in late
September and anticipated completion date of October 2013. If following the
audit substantial change to the design is recommended then further
consultation may be required impacting on project timescales.




Agenda Page 56

RESIDENT SURVEY 2013

Agenda Item 9

18. A postal survey was undertaken between May and June to gather the views of residents
about; satisfaction with the council overall, how residents contact the council and views on
Chorley town centre. The survey was a random postal survey sent to around 6,000
households across the borough. A total of 1,234 responses were received and these have
been weighted to make the results representative of the borough population.

19. Based on the design of the survey, the most reliable comparison is with the 2008 Place
Survey, so that is the one which has been used.

20. One element of the questionnaire asked residents for their views of the local area, the
council and the services that it provides. Many of these questions form the basis for key
measures of performance of the corporate strategy; the table below shows the results for all

of these indicators.

Indicator Target Outturn | Symbol 2008 Trend
results

% of people satisfied with their

neighbourhood as a place to live. 85% 83.9% ‘ 83.8% >

% of people who regularly participate in

volunteering 25% 24% ‘ 22.8% 0

% of people who feel that they cannot | Less than

influence decision making in their local area 50% 31% * N/A N/A

% of the population satisfied with street

cleanliness 65% 67.5% * 55% O

% of the population feeling safe during the 90 91.1% * 91 1% >

day (o] . (o] . (o)

:fi)gcr)]{ the population feeling safe during the 70% 68.5% ‘ 56.1% "

% of the population satisfied with parks and

open spaces 75% 72% O 72% >

% of residents satisfied with the way the

council runs things. 65% 73.2% * 50% *

% of residents who feel that the Council

provides value for money. 55% 51.1% A 41.4% O

Satisfaction with waste and recycling 759 83.19% * 67% A

collection ° e °

Satisfaction with sports and leisure facilities 53% 52.1% ‘ 53% >

21. Ten (91%) of the eleven indicators performed above target or within the 5% tolerance, and all
of the indicators have either maintained or improved performance when compared to 2008.




Agenda Page 57 Agenda ltem 9

PERFORMANCE OF CORPORATE STRATEGY MEASURES

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

At the end of the first quarter, it is possible to report on 19 of the key performance indicators
within the Corporate Strategy. 12 indicators (63%) were performing on or better than target.
The full outturn information for the performance indicators is included at Appendix A.

The following indicators are performing better than target:

* % of people who feel they cannot influence decision making in their local area
e Overall employment rate

» Satisfaction with street cleanliness % of working age people on out of work
benefits

* Number of long term empty properties in the borough

* % of the population feeling safe during the day
* The number of visits to Council's leisure centres
* Number of young people taking part in 'Get Up and Go' activities
* Number of Homelessness Preventions and Reliefs
* % residents satisfied with the way the council runs things
Three indicators are baseline indicators in order to establish a meaningful target:
» Average length of stay (town centre)
* Number of jobs created through targeted interventions

* Number of jobs created through inward investment

Three indicators (16%) are performing slightly below target, but are within the 5% tolerance
threshold:

* % people satisfied with their neighbourhood as a place to live
* % of people who regularly participate in volunteering

* % of the population feeling safe at night

Four indicators (21%) performed below target; the percentage of 16-18 year olds who are not
in education, employment or training (NEET), the percentage of domestic violence
detections, the percentage of residents who feel that Chorley Council provide value for
money, and the percentage of customers dissatisfied with the way they were treated by the
Council,.

The table below gives the reasons for this worse than anticipated performance, and the steps
that are being taken to improve performance. A brief analysis of trend has also been
provided to give some context to the performance value:



Agenda Page 58 Agenda ltem 9

Performance Indicator Target Performance

% of 16-18 year olds who are not in education, employment
or training (NEET)

5% 6.1%

Reason
below
target

The counting methodology has changed for 2013/14. LCC has a statutory
responsibility to track young people and ascertain their destination on an ongoing
basis, if however they are unsuccessful in contacting them then their destination will
be updated to “Not Known”. From 2013/14 onwards, the Department for Education
have announced that NEET young people will no longer become “not known” even
if contact with them is lost. They will stay NEET until confirmation that they have
moved into another destination is received. Therefore, the 8% not knowns who
were previously EET have been counted back into the NEET numbers.

Also between May and September there is generally a peak in performance due to
College leavers, and it is anticipated that performance will improve by the end of
quarter two.

Action
required

Positive activities continue by the Children’s Trust. The NEET Task and Finish
Group have developed new content on the Young Peoples Service website
specifically aimed at young people in Chorley to help them with employment,
education and training options. Supporting material has also been produced such
as posters to promote the new facility locally.

The project to implement a joint employment initiative with Runshaw College aims
to reduce the NEET figure, this commenced delivery in quarter one. Initial set up
of the project is complete and Runshaw College are now undertaking work to
promote the fund to employers and young people. Work and promotion of the
scheme will increase in advance of the September in-take.

Trend

Quarter one 2012/13 was 5.2%, and the year end figure for 2012/13 was 5.3%.
Performance at year end was better than the Lancashire County Council target of
6.2% which has been set at a more challenging level of 5.2% for 2013/14.

Performance Indicator Target Performance

% of domestic violence detections 70% 66%

Reason
below
target

There are several factors influencing the level of detections including the time
available for officers to carry out investigation in order to achieve a detection and
also insufficient evidence, which could be due to none cooperation of the victim.

Action
required

Ensure that investigating officers are following the Domestic Violence
investigation procedure. This process is to be reinforced and communicated at
team briefings and tasking meetings.

Trend

Quarter one 2012/13 was 76%, and the year end figure for 2012/13 was 70.5%.




Agenda Page 59 Agenda ltem 9

Performance Indicator Target Performance
o . . .
% residents who feel that Chorley Council provide value for 55% 51.1%
money
The target set in the corporate strategy for residents who feel that the council provides
value for money was set using the last available information, which was from a survey
Rbee:son of citizens' panel members in 2010. There is research that shows that people who feel
t:rg:; more informed, such as members of a Citizens' Panel, are more likely to believe the
council delivers value for money. The latest results are best compared to the Place
Survey undertaken in 2008, which was a randomised postal survey.
The council continues to have plans in place to meet the budget reductions in the
. coming years. These are set out in the medium term financial strategy. Research
r:\c::i?: d suggests that people feel that they get better value for money when they feel better
9 informed about what the council does. Work on engaging and informing residents
about services will continue.
Trend The latest results are 10% better than the response received in 2008 (51%

compared to 41% in 2008).

Performance Indicator Target Performance

% of customers dissatisfied with the way they were treated
by the Council

20% 27.4%

The main reason for dissatisfaction identified by customers continues to be that they
did not receive a response or did not receive a response in a timely manner. This is
often in relation to more complex enquiries where officers need to consult with other

Rbeeaizsvn agencies to determine an accurate response. The issue has been addressed at
target Information Exchange for Heads of Service to take back and disseminate to their
managers and teams. This is in combination with a number of new measures
including reports on call backs and correspondence to provide more visibility over the
customer contact process.
Service heads and managers have been challenged to make significant
. improvements over the coming weeks to ensure that customers are kept informed of
r:\::i?: d progress. New technology currently in testing is soon to be made available via the
website which will give customers the ability to track the progress of their query
online.
Trend | In comparison at the end of quarter one 2012/13 dissatisfaction was 30.5%.

PERFORMANCE OF KEY SERVICE DELIVERY MEASURES

29. There are some important indicators that are not included within the Corporate Strategy, but
are measured locally as indicators of service performance. There are five indicators that can
be reported at the end of the fourth quarter. The full outturn information for this is included at
Appendix B: Key Service Delivery Measures.

30. The following are performing better than target:

Processing of planning applications as measured against targets for 'minor'
application




Agenda Page 60

Agenda Item 9

. Processing of planning applications as measured against targets for 'other'

application types

. Number of families in temporary accommodation

31. One indicator is performing slightly below target, but within the 5% tolerance threshold:

. Processing of planning applications as measured against targets for 'major'

application types

32. There is currently one indicator that is performing worse than target. This indicator relates to
the time taken to process housing and council tax benefit new claims and change events.
The table below gives the reasons for this worse than anticipated performance, and the steps
that are being taken to improve performance:

Performance Indicator

Target Performance

Time Taken to process HB/CT benefit new claims and

change events

10 days 12.53 days

Reason

The first quarter is always the busiest period for the Benefit processing team as the
annual billing process generates high volumes of claims and queries.

below In addition, Welfare Reform changes have placed additional demand on the service,

target

increasing the numbers of outstanding queries and creating high volumes of
discretionary housing applications.

One of the processes is being automated using the facility available on Academy

Actions | software. This will free up resources to be used on clearing outstanding manual work.
required | Service managers will continue to closely monitor demand and it is anticipated that

performance will be on track during quarter two.

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT

33. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are

included:
Finance Customer Services
Human Resources Equality and Diversity

Legal

Integrated Impact Assessment required?

No significant implications in this area

Policy and Communications

GARY HALL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

There are no background papers to this report.

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID
Louise Wingfield 5061 25 July 2013 First Quarter Performance Report




Agenda Page 61

Agenda Item 9

Appendix A: Performance of Corporate Strategy Key Measures

Performance is better . Worse than target
but within threshold

than target

A

Worse than target,
outside threshold

Indicator Name Polarity '{',aarl?;zt Perf\t;;lr::nce Symbol | Trend
% people satisfied with their neighbourhood Bigger is 85% 83.9% . >
as a place to live better ? e
% of people who regularly participate in Bigger is o o
volunteering better 25% 24% . 0
% of people who feel they cannot influence Smaller is o o
decision making in their local area better 50% 31% N/A
Average length of stay (town centre) Baseline 1-2 hours N/A
Bigger is o o
Overall employment rate better 80% 80.1% N
Number of jobs created through targeted .
interventions Baseline 35 N/A
Number of jobs created through inward Baseline 20 N/A
investment
The % of 16-18 year olds who are not in Smaller is o o
education, employment or training (NEET) better 5% 6.1% A v
Satisfaction with street cleanliness Bigger is 65% 67.5% A
better
Number of long term empty properties in the | Smaller is
borough better 240 237 0
% of the population feeling safe during the Bigger is o o
day better 90% 91.1% > 4
. . . Bigger is
0, o o
% of the population feeling safe at night better 70% 68.5% . A
o : Bigger is
0, o 0,
% of domestic violence detections better 70% 66% A 7
The number of visits to Council's leisure Bigger is
centres better 250000 267374 0
Number of young people taking part in 'Get Bigger is 3750 6858 ¥
Up and Go' activities better
Number of Homelessness Preventions and Bigger is
Reliefs better 50 148 0
% residents satisfied with the way the council | Bigger is 65% 73,29, A
runs things better ? e
% residents who feel that Chorley Council Bigger is o o
provide value for money better 55% 51.1% A 0
% of customers dissatisfied with the service Smaller is o o
they received from the council Better 20% 27.4% A 0




Agenda Page 62

Appendix B: Performance of key service delivery measures

Performance is better .

Worse than target

A

Agenda Item 9

Worse than target,

but within -
than target threshold outside threshold
Indicator Name Polarity UZEGS || FEOhENEE Symbol | Trend
Value Value
NI 181 YTD Time Taken to process HB/CT Smaller is
benefit new claims and change events better 10Days 12.53Days A v
(NI 157a) Processing of planning applications : :
as measured against targets for 'major’ Blbgegt(taerrls 70% 66.67% . 7
application types
(NI 157b) Procesglng of plannlnq appll?atlons Bigger is 65% 76.92% A
as measured against targets for 'minor better
(NI 157¢) Processing of planning applications Biqger is
as measured against targets for 'other' bgegtter 80% 82.64% N
application types
Number of households living in Temporary Smaller is o5 14 ¥
Accommodation (NI 156) better




Agenda Page 63 Agenda ltem 10

Chor Iey

Council

Report of Meeting Date

Chief Executive
(Introduced by the Executive Member for Executive Cabinet 15 August 2013
Resources, Policy and Performance)

CHORLEY PARTNERSHIP PERFORMANCE MONITORING
QUARTER ONE 2013/14

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.  To update the Executive on the performance of the Chorley Partnership during the first
quarter of 2013/2014, from 1 April to 30 June 2013.

RECOMMENDATION(S)
2.  That the report be noted.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT

3.  This report is the first in a new format of partnership performance reports. It sets out the
priorities and performance of the Chorley Partnership for the first quarter of 2013/2014,
from 1 April to 30 June 2013.

4. The report presents to Members the priorities of the partnership groups and how
successfully they have been delivering against those priorities in that quarter. This is a
move away from using performance indicators towards placing some contextual information
regarding the work that has been delivered and what impact and outcomes this has
achieved.

5. Overall progress against priorities is excellent, of the nineteen priorities identified across the
partnership, seventeen are rated as green and two are rated as not started.

Confidential report
. Yes No
Please bold as appropriate
Key Decision?
Please bold as appropriate Yes No

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)
(If the recommendations are accepted)

6. To facilitate the on-going analysis and management of the Chorley Partnership’s
performance.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED
7. None.




Agenda Page 64 Agenda ltem 10

CORPORATE PRIORITIES

8.

This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives:

Involving residents in improving their local v
area and equality of access for all

A strong local economy v

Clean, safe and healthy communities v" | to meet the needs of residents and 4

An ambitious council that does more

the local area

PRIORITIES FOR PARTNERSHIP WORKING FOR 2013/14

9.

During the quarter one report, it is useful to present the priorities for 2013/14 and how the
groups agreed these priorities. This section of the report considers the priorities of each
group, the decision making process and agreed method of delivery.

CHORLEY PARTNERSHIP EXECUTIVE

Chorley Partnership Executive Priorities for 2013/14

10.

11.

12.

The Partnership Executive will focus on one main priority for 2013/14, to mitigate the impact
of welfare reforms on vulnerable people.

This was agreed by the Partnership Executive following their priority setting meeting held in
November. At this meeting, they considered a state of the borough assessment and shared
information about the challenges of the year ahead. It was agreed to focus on welfare
reforms considering the changes that were planned during 2013/14 and the cross cutting
nature of the work.

The Partnership Executive also agreed to reconfigure the way they managed their business
as usual. It was agreed that better links into the sub groups would enable them both to
challenge and support the work of partners at that level. An integrated delivery plan was
developed and agreed by the Partnership Executive in April. The first performance report
(Quarter One 2013/14) enabled them to challenge the sub groups, for example the
Community Safety Partnership on reoffending, and to raise issues at a more strategic level,
for example the role of the county wide health and wellbeing board.

Chorley Children’s Trust

Chorley Children Trust Priorities for 2013/14

1. Things to do and places to go for children, young people and families
2. ldentify and respond to the emotional and social wellbeing of children and young

Priorities people

3. Prevention & Early Intervention Support for Children, Young People and Families
4. Reducing Young People Not in Education, Employment or Training

These priorities were chosen by the Trust during a panel meeting in February at which

Decision they reviewed progress against last year’s action plan, and considered the current

making information available to them regarding the children and young people in Chorley. This

process included JSNA data which informed them of how well performing Chorley was in specific
areas. The priorities were agreed at a full Trust meeting.

Delivery The Children’s Trust has an action plan which they will use to ensure that they deliver on

these priorities. Progress against this action plan is reported quarterly at the Trust.




Agenda Page 65 Agenda ltem 10

Chorley and South Ribble Community Safety Partnership

Chorley and South Ribble Community Safety Partnership Priorities for 2013/14

Domestic Violence and Violent Crime

Reduce Anti-Social Behaviour

Child Sexual Exploitation

Reoffending - Young Offenders

Acquisitive Crime (Burglary dwelling and vehicle crime)
Killed and Seriously Injured (road traffic)

Priorities

oM~

These priorities were chosen by the Partnership based on the 2013/2014 strategic
Decision | assessment. This considers the current intelligence on crime and community safety
making | issues and proposes what the priorities should be going forward. New priorities for this
process | year are acquisitive crime (burglary dwelling and vehicle crime) and killed and seriously
injured (road traffic). The priorities were agreed at the full partnership meeting.

A partnership action plan has been developed and each priority has a lead agency and
professional. There are fifteen actions contained within the plan to deliver the priorities.
The quarterly performance reports show progress against these priority projects, key
performance indicators and identified threats.

Delivery

Chorley and South Ribble Health and Wellbeing Partnership

Chorley and South Ribble Health and Wellbeing Partnership Priorities for 2013/14

1. Accessibility — ensure high quality health services and interventions are readily
available to our citizens

2. Independence — provide services, interventions and support that enables of citizens
to live independently in the community

3. Activity — provide the infrastructure and incentives for citizens to undertake activities
that promote good health and wellbeing

Priorities

The partnership plan has been developed to be delivered over a five year period (2013 —
2018). The priorities have been chosen by the group based on the understanding of local
health profiles and the projected work programmes of the Clinical Commissioning Group
and other agencies. The priorities were then agreed at a full partnership meeting.

Decision
making
process

Progress against the plan is discussed at every meeting, and agencies have taken a lead

Delivery | " tions within the plan.

Chorley Economic Development Group

Chorley Economic Development Group Priorities for 2013/14

1. Thriving town centre
2. Promote and increase inward investment
Priorities | 3. Business support to new and existing businesses
4. Supporting young people through education, training and fostering entrepreneurism
5. Reducing the gap in our most deprived communities
Decision These priorities form th_e I_Econ_omic Development St_ra_tegy, which has be_en developed
making based on local economic mtelhgence. The overall vision for thg economic development
Process strategy is ten years, to be achieved by 2022; however the actions identified for each of the

priority areas cover a two year period from 2012 -2014. This has been agreed by the group.

In order to monitor the progress in delivering against the priority areas, key long term
Delivery | outcomes and measures have been identified, and progress is provided against these at
group meetings.




Agenda Page 66 Agenda ltem 10

WHAT HAS BEEN ACHIEVED IN QUARTER ONE?

CHORLEY PARTNERSHIP EXECUTIVE

13.

14.

15.

16.

During the first quarter of 2013/2014, the partnership have;

a. Developed the Annual Report. This has brought together the achievements of the
partnership over the past year, but also has refreshed the challenges for partnership
working looking forward. One of the challenges was the increasing rate of alcohol
misuse in under 18’s and it was agreed to devolve this to the Children’s Trust for
action.

b. Developed a new form of performance monitoring for the partnership. This enabled
the Executive to discuss and find solutions to three issues raised by the sub groups;

i. Relationship between county wide Health and Wellbeing Board and local
health and wellbeing partnerships (Lancashire County Council Public Health
attended the meeting to be held to account on this issue and have agreed an
on-going dialogue on progress)

ii. Involvement of Job Centre Plus in the Chorley Works Project (DWP
representative agreed involvement where possible)

iii. Engagement of Schools in the Schools Enterprise Challenge (agreed to be
raised at Children’s Trust)

The priority for the Executive for 2013/14 is to mitigate the impact of the welfare reforms on
vulnerable people. In the first quarter, they have delivered the following;
a. A launch event for the credit union was held in May to share progress and gain
commitment from partners across the partnership
b. Discussions are underway with Lancashire Teaching Hospitals Trust to look at the
possibility of extending the Credit Union to their employees (7000 staff)
c. 56 families have received financial capability training from Citizens Advice
Bureaux in a project funded by Chorley Council and registered social landlords.
d. A pilot Welfare Reform Roadshow was held in Tatton Community Centre in May
which was well attended by a range of partners
e. The Welfare Reform Partnership which has attendance from a number of key local
partners including RSL’s and advice providers has developed a service directory
for use for partners to refer customers for support
f. Lancashire County Council, Age UK Lancashire and Chorley Council are looking
at the meals on wheels / befriending provision in the borough

They are delivering a project which has assessed the increased demands on services across
partner agencies following changes to welfare reform. There is a substantial amount of
evidence which shows that the impact is far reaching on our communities. The project is
now considering what solution could be put in place to support these people and the first
point of contact, looking at a central resource across Chorley to support people in a
consistent and cost effective way.

SUB GROUP PERFORMANCE AGAINST PRORITIES

The following tables show the delivery of the sub groups against their priorities. It indicates if
progress is green (progressing according to plan), amber (the priority has a problem with
achieving the aims and action is being taken to resolve this), red (the priority has a problem
with achieving the aims and requires action to achieve its objectives) and not started. It
provides an update on the outputs of the work in the first quarter, and where possible
provides a performance indicator to demonstrate progress against targets. There is work
being done with the sub groups to attempt to match an indicator to every priority.



Agenda Page 67 Agenda ltem 10

Chorley & South Ribble Health & Wellbeing Partnership

Priority Status Performance
Health impact assessment training has been undertaken
and plans are in place to assess the adopted Central
Lancashire Core Strategy (CLCS) and planning policies.
Accessibility — ensure high A health impact assessment has been produced on the
quality health services and Green CLCS to look at hot food takeaway provision near
interventions are readily schools. Discussions are underway to consider how to
available to our citizens address new large scale development health
infrastructure requirements. Chorley and South Ribble
Partnership Executives are to look at forming a joint multi
agency group in the next quarter.
I . Performance information is being collected on health and
ndependence — provide . . ) .
. . . wellbeing to form an information sharing programme down
services, interventions and to a neighbourhood level. The working together with
support that enables of citizens | Green famili g A «ng togetner wi
to live independently in the amilies programme is on-going as is the time credits
community programme. Dlscu33|ops are be!ng had at a gounty level
linked into health, housing and disabled facilities grant.
There is a programme of events scheduled including free
Activity — provide the swimming sessions provided at All Seasons, a health
infrastructure and incentives event calendar developed to promote a specific health
for citizens to undertake Green | issue each month during 2013/14, a health literacy
activities that promote good project in progress in Chorley Town East, sport and
health and wellbeing activity for all event programmed and establishing a
health hub in Chorley East (Tatton Community Centre).

Chorley Children’s Trust

Priority Status Performance
A programme of activities for children and young people aged 0-11
Thinds to do and and 11-18 has been developed. The activities are online on the
g Chorley Council website and a specific booklet is being produced for
places to go for S i L
. Green | 11-18 for distribution in targeted areas. Mapping of activities has
children, young '
cople and families been done down to a ward level. The Making It Happen Youth
peop Ambassador project is ready to be launched and the Youth Council
have taken up a regular presence at the trust meetings.
Identify and respond Services for young carers have been examined in light of a recent
to the emotional and decommissioning and the Trust is working with the Barnardos young
) - Not ) . ;
social wellbeing of started | €@rers project to ensure that young carers are directed towards this
children and young service. The main bulk of this priority, to consider the data available
people in this area, has not yet started.
Prevention & A range of prevention and early intervention initiatives are in place
Early Intervention including the familywise project which is delivered by child action
Support for Children, | Green | North West. These commissions end in September at which point
Young People and new contracts will be tendered for. There are also a number of small
Families grants that have been made and delivered.
Reducing Young Numbers of NEET young people have reduced and the NEET
People Not in Strategy group continues to meet to ensure that momentum is kept up
Education, Green | with delivering initiatives to support these young people.
Employment or
Training Chorley NEET June 2013 (June 2012 5.2%) 6.1%




Agenda Page 68 Agenda ltem 10

Chorley & South Ribble Community Safety Partnership

Priority Status Performance
Of the five actions for this priority in 2013/14, three are rated as green
Domestic Violence G and two have not started. Projects have been initiated in reduce repeat
- . reen o . . :
and Violent Crime offending in non-statutory perpetrators and improving multi agency
communication.
Of the three actions for this priority in 2013/14, two are rated as green
and one is rated as amber - this regards school safeguarding leads
having access to level 2 Child Sexual Exploitation training by Lancashire
Child Sexual Constabulary Public Protection Unit. Due to very recent changes within
o Amber | the Police Public Protection Unit, a level 2 training is unlikely to be
Exploitation . . ) . .
available in the near future however there are on-going discussions and
developments have been made in creating a ‘short session’ which can be
delivered in a multi-agency capacity of which safeguarding leads at
schools will be the priority.
Both actions are green and projects are underway to reduce the number
Reduce Anti-Social of ASB incidents especially in vulnerable groups and locations and
Behaviour Green | reduce crime and ASB associated with fire setting during key periods.
Anti-Social Behaviour quarter one 2013/14 (compared to quarter one
2012/13) -12.1%
There are three actions, one of which is green and two are not started.
. This is because the actions relate to the youth offending conditional
Reoffending - Not . L . . ) .
cautions and this will not be introduced into Lancashire until autumn at
Young Offenders | started ) . . )
the earliest. Once implementation plans have been agreed actions can
commence.
Three actions have been identified, two of which are green and one is not
Acquisitive Crime started. Operations are in progress aiming to reduce thefts by insecurity
(Burglary dwelling | Green | and disrupting cross boarder criminals.
and vehicle crime) Burglary Dwelling quarter one 2013/14 (compared to quarter one
2012/13) -32.4%
Killed and G Of the three actions, all are green. Work is on-going to increase
h - reen AN )
Seriously Injured participation in the promotion of road safety messages.
Economic Development Partnership
Priority Status Performance
. . The Town Centre Masterplan is in development, and other projects have
Thriving town
centre Green | begun, such as .the remodelled town centre grants programme and the
new car park pricing trial.
The Inward Investment Plan has been developed and work has been
Promote and undertaken to look at bringing forward employment land for inward
increase inward Green | investment and investigating a grant / reward scheme
investment Number of jobs created through Inward Investment (quarter one 2013/14)
20
Business support Business Advisors are in place for start-up and existing businesses.
to new and existing | Green | Support for businesses includes a programme of workshops, the Choose
businesses Chorley Business Network and a number of grant programmes
Supporting young Delivery of the Partnership NEET project with the Children’s Trust has
people through . ; .
. L2, been completed and the Apprenticeship Programme and the Joint
education, training | Green e X
- Employment Support Initiative with Runshaw College have been
and fostering
. developed
entrepreneurism
Reducing the gap in Work is on-going to develop the Credit Union, to further develop the time
our most deprived | Green | credits volunteering programme in Chorley, and a host of initiatives with

communities

regards to welfare reforms are on-going.




Agenda Page 69 Agenda ltem 10

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT

17. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are

included:
Finance Customer Services
Human Resources Equality and Diversity
Integrated Impact Assessment
Legal 4
required?
No significant implications in this area v | Policy and Communications

GARY HALL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

There are no background papers to this report.

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID

Sarah James 5779 18th July 2013 Chorley Partgzr:gritp 1st Quarter




Agenda Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



Chor Iey

Council

Agenda Page 71

Agenda Iltem 11

Report of

Meeting

Date

Head of Governance

(Introduced by the Executive
Member for Resources, Policy
and Performance)

Executive Cabinet

15 August 2013

CONTRACT AWARD - ENERGY UTILITY CONTRACTS

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1. To update members on the process of appointing a new electricity supplier for the Council.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.  That authority be delegated to the Executive Member for Resources, Policy and
Performance to award a contract for the supply of electricity to Council buildings for the
period April 2015 — March 2019 to the preferred contract proposed by the YPO.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT

3. The Executive Member for Resources Policy and Performance has recently approved the
continued use of the Yorkshire Purchasing Organisation for the procurement of the Council’s

energy utility suppliers.

4. At the same time the Executive Member approved a scoring matrix for the consideration of
any bids made within the YPO Framework.
5. The bids are being assessed and it is envisaged that the YPO will recommend to this Council
a preferred (winning) bidder in mid to late August.
6. In order to facilitate the award of the contract Executive Cabinet are asked to delegate
authority to the Executive Member for Resources Policy and Performance, to award the
contract to the preferred bidder.
7. In the event the preferred bidder is identified before the Cabinet meeting on 15 August, an
addendum report will be brought confirming the preferred bidder and seeking authority to

award the contract.

Please bold as appropriate

provision that impacts upon
the service revenue budget by
£100,000 or more

Confidential report Yes No

Please bold as appropriate

Key Decision? Yes No

Please bold as appropriate

Reason 1, a change in service | 2, a contract worth £100,000

or more

3, a new or unprogrammed
capital scheme of £100,000 or
more

4, Significant impact in
environmental, social  or
physical terms in two or more
wards

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)




Agenda Page 72 Agenda Iltem 11
(If the recommendations are accepted)
8.  The award will provide a continued utility services provision for the council.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED
9. None

CORPORATE PRIORITIES

10. This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives:

Involving residents in improving their local A strong local economy
area and equality of access for all
Clean, safe and healthy communities An ambitious council that does more

to meet the needs of residents and
the local area

BACKGROUND

11.  The Council currently utilises energy framework agreements put in place by YPO (Yorkshire
Purchasing Organisation) for its energy requirements and has done so for a number of years.

12.  Approval was first given in 1998 to allow YPO to act as Agent for Chorley Council for the
procurement of its energy requirements. As this historical approval is now in excess of 10
years old and in view of the up and coming tender exercise for electricity which will equate
to in excess of £600,000 worth of spend, it is timely to re-affirm Member approval to
continue to use YPO as Chorley’s Agent for the procurement of its energy requirements.

13. YPO are a Public Sector Buying Organisation who procure energy on behalf of in excess of
80 Public Sector Bodies.

14. YPO procure energy on a flexible basis i.e. purchasing varying tranches of energy
throughout the year to take advantage of fluctuations in energy prices and to mitigate the risk
of buying all its energy requirements on a fixed date when energy prices might be high, as
outlined below:

Energy markets are extremely volatile and prices can vary significantly on a daily basis thus
making it extremely difficult to control costs and manage budget. One way of mitigating this
risk is to adopt a flexible, aggregated, risk managed approach to energy procurement.
Adopting a flexible approach to energy procurement allows the purchase of raw energy to be
fixed over a number of trades from the wholesale market.

The benefits of adopting this method of procurement over the traditional fixed price, fixed
term are:-

The purchaser is not solely reliant on the supplier's view of the market

All costs that make up the delivered price are fully transparent

Flexible purchasing allows for the adoption of a risk management strategy
A single procurement from the market may tie you to an unfavourable price

VVYY

15. YPO will shortly be going out to tender for electricity for the period April 2015 to March 2019.

16. The evaluation criteria to be used as part of the tendering exercise will be:

Cost 35%
Customer Service 20%



Agenda Page 73 Agenda Iltem 11

Trading Support 15%
Account Management  15%
Billing 5%
Validation of Pricing 5%
Metering 5%

17. Itis anticipated that tenders will be evaluated in August 2013 and contract documentation will
be sent out shortly thereafter for sign off by Chorley Council and other Public Sector Bodies
participating in the tender exercise to allow YPO to procure electricity on a flexible basis
from April 2014 ready for a contract start date of April 2015.

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT
18. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are

included:
Finance X | Customer Services
Human Resources Equality and Diversity
Legal X | Integrated Impact Assessment
required?
No significant implications in this area Policy and Communications

COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER

19. The costs of the procurement exercise and contract will be met from existing and future set
budgets.

COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER

20. The scoring matrix adopted is appropriate to this type of contract. The proposed
recommendations concerning the award of the contract are acceptable.

Chris Moister
Head of Governance

There are no background papers to this report.

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID

Chris Moister 5160 6 August 2013




Agenda Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 75 Agenda Iltem 12

Chor Iey

Council

Report of Meeting Date

Director of People & Places
(Introduced by the Executive Executive Cabinet 15 August 2013

Member for People)

PARKS AND OPEN SPACES MEMORIAL POLICY

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.  To provide an update following consultation on the Parks and Open Spaces Memorial
policy and seek approval for the adoption of the policy.

RECOMMENDATION(S)
2. That the consultation and responses are noted and that the amended policy is formally

adopted with immediate effect.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT

3. The report details the consultation that has taken place on the draft policy agreed as
Executive Cabinet 18" October 2012.

4. The report details the consultation feedback and policy changes and the revised policy
recommended for approval.

Confidential report Yes No
Please bold as appropriate

Key Decision? Yes No
Please bold as appropriate

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)
(If the recommendations are accepted)

5.  To clarify the Council's position regarding memorials and to provide officers with an approved
mechanism for accepting / refusing requests, and to manage on-going memorial
maintenance.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

6. Continue to consider requests for memorial items on an ad-hoc basis. A shortage of
remaining space and the suitability of some requests would make this option unsustainable.

7. No longer accepting any form of memorial requests for any of our sites - an unnecessary
measure.




Agenda Page 76 Agenda Iltem 12

CORPORATE PRIORITIES

8.

This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives:

Involving residents in improving their local v
area and equality of access for all

A strong local economy

Clean, safe and healthy communities v" | to meet the needs of residents and

An ambitious council that does more

the local area

BACKGROUND

9.

The Council has for many years received a number of requests for memorial items in the
parks and open spaces.

10. Many of the appropriate locations within the various sites are now taken and as a result
very few spaces remain. Requests for memorials, which are often emotionally sensitive,
can be difficult for staff to manage, especially when they are not in keeping with the site and
there is no policy in place to provide guidance.

11. A policy is needed to clarify the Council's position regarding memorials and to provide
officers with an approved mechanism for accepting / refusing requests, and to manage on-
going memorial maintenance.

12.  Following approval of the draft policy for consultation on 18" October 2012, consultation
has now taken place.

CONSULTATION

13. The public consultation period started in December 2012 until the end of January 2013.

14. The draft document and consultation was sent out to key stakeholders and discussed at
group meetings such as Astley Advisory Group and Yarrow Valley Advisory Group.

15. Press releases, social media and the Councils website were used to promote the
consultation.

16. A total of 7 responses were received as detailed in Appendix 1.

17. The maijority of the responses are broadly in favour and supportive of the policy. However,
requests for greater flexibility of memorial requests, including non-military items have been
made for Astley Park.

18. The feedback regarding Yarrow Valley includes concerns regarding the number of benches
and a request to allow memorial trees. The number of benches at Yarrow Valley will be
managed appropriately and memorial trees are not included in the policy as the significant
existing tree stock is already difficult to manage.

19. The request regarding Whittle-le-Woods has been passed to and dealt with by the Parish

Council.




Agenda Page 77 Agenda Iltem 12

20. Inlight of the consultation, the draft policy has been amended as follows:

» Slight change to phrasing in paragraph one and change to front cover.

» Provision for military and non-military related memorial requests in Astley Park in
separately defined areas. From the Memorial Arch to Pets Corner only applications
from military or ex-military personnel will be considered to reflect the parks war
memorial status. Non-military related applications will only be considered for other
areas of the park from Pets Corner to the Hallgate and Ackhurst Lodge entrances.

 Rewording of the exceptional circumstances to allow for greater flexibility and
consideration of both other and exceptional circumstances.

21. The amended policy is attached in Appendix 2. Following approval the policy will be
implemented with immediate effect.

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT

22. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are

included:
Finance v’ | Customer Services
Human Resources Equality and Diversity v
Legal ~ | Integrated Impact Assessment
required?
No significant implications in this area Policy and Communications v

COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER
23. There are no financial implications associated with this report.
COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER

24. The policy will provide consistency and clarity for officers and residents and will assist the
Council in discharging their functions.

COMMENTS OF THE HEAD OF POLICY AND COMMUNICATIONS

25. The policy should not pose any issues for the Council in meeting the objectives of its
equality scheme and statutory responsibilities.

JAMIE CARSON
DIRECTOR OF PEOPLE FOR PLACES

There are no background papers to this report.

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID
Jamie Dixon 5250 17-07-2013 EC 15—08—20P13"|;(IDS Memorial




Agenda Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 12

Agenda Page 79

iSS9|
Buiyiou 10adxa pjnom | JoAed xe} pue juapisal e sy “Aem Jiay) Buiwod abejueape ajqissod AlsAs Jo Jsown 8y} 8jew jsnw ‘jdsp und ||am pue
Jabeuepy Aue nq ‘Jouop ay) yum “o3s Bunenobau pue suolsabbns yym dn Buiwod ul ygeis Dgo Joj HJom aiow sueall AjgeliAsUI SIY} Jey) Mouy
| "seiued yloq sHNS uopoesuel} B Yyons aiaym Ajjeioadse ‘a|qissod aisaym pasIpisSqns YJom pajnpayos Aue aAey 0} Allunuioddo AleAs aye) 1snw
pue pibl 00} 8q 0} pioye jouued Hgo alaymAlons syoeg-nd |epueul yum sAep aaisuadxa asay) ul jeyl Si jaij2q Aw jey) pueisispun fjim NOA

,/duop aq jouued jsenbal jeuibuo ay) asoym
suoljsebbns aAjjeuss)e 0} 198(qns aq Aew pue JUsW UO PaIsPISUOD 8 ||IM S|eLoWwsaW JBYJ0, JO saull 8y} Buole Bulyiawos jnduj  "onJ) ji usAs Aes
0} aAfisod 1o poob jou st siyl s MYied Asjisy ulyim pajdeooe aie Swa)l [BLOWSW JBYJ0 OU, 8)918Q 'SWwa)| [eUOWs Jayl0 MHVd ATTLSY 'S

, paideooe aq Jouued esapl [eulblio 8y} alaym (eale ay) JO JUSWSIUBAPE By} U}IMm

Buidaay ul sI yoIym MJom 'l -0} abpliq ‘@ousy ‘aal) ‘|lem e ‘6'9) saAljeuls)je Jouop 8y} 0} }sebbns |jim sny} pue sjge Ji }senbas Aleas inouoy
0} 9Yl] pINOM DED JOASMOH Payse Jewluoj) ay) ul,}sanbai AJoAs Jaye ppe pue ‘Juejsisel sS9| spunos se Aew, ojul |[m, ebueyd (¢ aul) |
NOILONAOHLNI

" Jou 1o uonsabbns siy) 1dedoe 0} ysim Asy) Jayjaym Jouop ayj 0} dn 8sinod
Jo s1})] "AgJesu Jo eale Jey) Ul usyeuapun aq o} si jey) (‘018 seousy ‘seal) ‘s|jem ‘sajeb) yiom Jo 10adse Jayjo awos 0} [edowaw ay) Buibueyd
1s8b66ns 01 A5y M DgD 1senbal oioads e sulosp uey) Jayies os ‘way) Ind o} seoejd ou pue seyoueq Jo SQQL SABY jouued am ‘sidwexe
o} Ing ‘epew }senbai Aiene sjejjioe) pue A M Og AspoyD, - SB Yons saul| 89s 0} YSIM pPinom | pue ‘aw o} ybnous piny wiess Juseop |

‘|lauuosiad Jem 0] pelolsal 8q sjelowsw Yied As|isy aaibe asivmuaylO “sysed o} Ajdde jou jey} seop
Jo ‘yjedioo} a1 Joplo j01u0d Bop Jad se |04uod Jepun aqg o) Jeadde Jou ss0p }I - pasels aq pinod ainjoid ayy ul Bop sy} Jeyjeuym Buliepuom isnp

& |BLOWBN JBAA S,UMO] BY)
se uonisod syed ay) Bunosyjel pue Bunoadsal ‘Yied Assy ul j[puuosiad Aejjiw-xs / Aueyjiw 1o} sayouaq Buimoije isnl jo yoadsal ul |esodoud s |1ouno)
8y} 8sJopud | A\ "BlSgam s,|IounoD 8y} Uo Juswnoop Aojjod Yelp e ul paulino ‘sjelowaw Jo Joadsal ul sjesodoid s,|lounoD ay) 1saisjul Yum peal |

[ENpIAIpU|

SJUSWILIOD BU) WOJ} PAAOLISI UBaq Sey uonewlojul [euossad Auy

S3ISNOJdS3d NOILVLINSNOD
S3DOVdS NIdO ® SV — ADIT0d TVINOWIIN - L XIANIddV




Agenda Page 80

Agenda Item 12

T B AT N\NAATBNANA |

TEBIY »vetus O \\J\)on\o* -\JMV)\IJU«V\. %\/) .\4)\/fV e S s i B e ¥ RN LN T - T S

|
‘R oSS TSRO ey Y & maaeadoacwa, Gy |

WIS S scren | D < e

VO~ - O ATV O ©y S ST YD e et .i/\uv\/ﬂv D TNTAB oAAN \

>4 R =Y D~ a G WEYO S A T~ nf\, J}ﬂv\w‘ n))\v OB\ T A A O _

TONCED A & AAWTTR AR

|

B = Baa L a o O\AQ/\I\/nur\ml, TEAN —~an JwJquJO/Auv TRLENNI O S DAARTB CAANAA ST |
N OSS\ b " AEDNA - AN —nvxw\‘ L AV O o\ SN O oA

,u
|

ety 1}

L N e N e T IEN

* RN I Sl AN Tl ™R TN LA CONN A AN

i
\\VIW onsa WM rlw,\. dv\lﬂU\dﬂWL- Dlvod?g e A SRSV {

hd./l\ Ed e, = N~ BT AN AN \ e mxf\t\gllo\N-L RLE--L=% - Tan = e Wl /




Agenda Iltem 12

Agenda Page 81

‘'Seale |BllUBIBAS) JO |euollealoal ui paleodol Ajgieldoidde siow
pue Jajes yonw ag pjnom sjsanbal pue sueu)sspad 0} pJezey asnes pue sjsuojow oy Buioelsip
8q 0} anoid ueo sjeuowaw AemybiH Aemybiy ay) uo peoejd Bulaq sjeloOWSW 0) SAljBUIS)E
ue apinoid 0} seAles ) se Apenoiued aAleiIul SIOUNOD JOUlSIP 8y} awodem pue Aolod
8y} Hoddns | "JBAO0 |0JjJu0d BABY NOA Seale uiylim sieuowaw Buiepowwodoe Jo Aem Jus|jeoxe
ue s| siy} Juiyy | -Aojjod pasodouid 1noA uo Juswiwod o} Ajunuoddo ay) sw BuiAlB o) NOA juey |

[1ouno) Ajunog adiyseoue]

"dn jue|d 0y spieh 0oL AgQ 0z @Aey pinom noA usy) pue yjed diyopoom ajesld
‘Plol 8y} Yo spiehk oz aye) ‘st 1oep painidinos ay) aseym pial ay) ojul ayeb Buissy :eapl AN

"9JI|PIIM JO} SO1IBQ puE 82.1n0s JejosaN poob sonpoud jey)
S99} Jue|d "SouUBUSIUIBW UO SABS AJUIBLSD JSOW PINOM SIU} 198} UsIOE Jo ybiay Alunjew e yym
soaJ) ue|d seoeds uado Buiaes| ‘us|el eAeY SaaU) p|o aIBYAA :SoaJ) |euowsw Buipiebal seap)

'abpo| |jews sy} Jo apis yuUou 8y} 0} pajue|d 881} yosaq o'l ‘eale Jey} JO JUsJU0D JaMoj}
pIm 8y} 8so| ‘Buipeys Ajiaesy ybnouyy uiny Buoj ay) ul Jou saop eyl ease Aue ul umolb sAljeu
‘@0IN0s aAljeU ‘s@al) [euowsly jo Bunueld ay) abeinooua pinom dnosb INQ :S981] |BUOWS

¢,SBuipuno.lINs 8y} JO 00| [BJnjeu 8y} Wwouy J8)ap
pinom yoiym soejd ui Ind sayouaq Jo saniuenb ssew aas 0) buiob am auy ‘sayousag Buipiebay

: @J9M sJaquiaW |je Jo suoluido sy |

dnols) uoneAlasuo)) smopesiy ybing Jomo

uonesiuebiQ / dnoio

. ed oy

Yum ‘puiyaq yoj asoy) Aq ‘paxuil si Aiowsw asoym ‘puno.ibxoeq 1o builjed jo ssejpieba. ‘suoAue ioj pamoje aq pinoys yied AsfjSy Ul sjeliowapy

‘awioy Xoeq ajdoad jo sjybil ay) sjoLsed ) Ji Buiyjou suesw ajif JO SSO] 18y}
nq ‘pejoadsal pue painouoy 8q pinoys Aunoo Ino Jo 82IAIBS dY] Ul 8ji] JO SSOJ ¥ ‘8njea) auo AJUo sI [eLiowawW Jem ay) ‘punod Jesh |je pasn
s1 yJed ayj - Aspioyn jo ajdoad ayj sdjey UoIIOL)SS. SIY) MOY 888 J,UBd | Usy) [eliowaw jem e Jnq Buyjou o} JeAo pauin) 8q o} si yed sy} sssjun
'SYoNnp 8y} Buipasy pue syjem Joj uaipjiyd Buie] sjussedpuelb Jo Saliowsw Joyjo SSejjunod yim buole - yued ayj ur “o3e ‘bulfofo ‘bunjiem ‘simoq
‘siuusa} ‘leqiooy buifeyd dn umoub arey oym sjdoad Auew sie aiay] "8jqejdosse ‘Maia AW ul Jou S| S8210) paulie 8yl Yjim pajosuuod sjeliowsl
0] yied ayj Bunolises ‘eLiowsw Jjem ayj Ylm Uoioauuod ayj jdesse | ISiiyMm dded Aosy - eade auo Inq (e ul Jiej SWess Juswnoop ayj,




Agenda Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 83 A@Hte 1ik

Council

Memorial Policy
Parks & Open Spaces




1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

2.2

3.1

Agenda Page 84 Agenda Iltem 12

INTRODUCTION

Across the borough the Council manages a variety of public open spaces that receive
frequent requests for memorials. The most popular sites have very few spaces remaining
and while on-going development work will create new locations it may not be possible to
accept every request.

In order to offer the most appropriate memorial opportunities across the Council sites and
retain the true character of these areas of public open space, a policy is needed to determine
the forms of memorial that are appropriate.

On specific sites existing agreements are in place regarding memorial maintenance. This
policy will replace those agreements going forward.

The policy for Council-owned sites is detailed below.

YARROW VALLEY COUNTRY PARK

Benches

Remaining locations for memorial benches are available from the Parks & Open spaces
team. Due to the nature of the site only steel benches are acceptable and must be of a
previously agreed design. Any purchased benches will become the responsibility of the
Council and be maintained in line with other benches on site. If they are vandalised or
require replacement, the donors will be asked if they wish to replace the bench.

Other Memorial ltems

Applications for other forms of memorial (e.g. carvings and sculptures) will be considered on
an individual basis by the Parks & Open Spaces team. Any such items of memoria must be
in keeping with the location and add value to Yarrow Valley Country Park. Potential locations
for these are available through the Parks & Open spaces team. However, memorial trees
are no longer permitted due to the difficulty in managing the significant existing tree stock.

ASTLEY PARK

Benches

From the Memorial Arch to Pets Corner only applications from military or ex-military
personnel will be considered to reflect the parks war memorial status. Non-military related
applications will only be considered for other areas of the park from Pets Corner to the
Hallgate and Ackhurst Lodge entrances. Plagues may be attached to existing benches, or
additional benches may be purchased to complement the existing provision. Any purchased
benches will become the responsibility of the Council and be maintained in line with the other
benches on site. If they are vandalised or require replacement, the donors will be asked if
they wish to replace the bench.

Other Memorial ltems

3.2 No other memorial items are accepted within Astley Park.

10of3

Cherley

Council



4.2

5.1

5.2

6.2

Agenda Page 85 Agenda Iltem 12

CHORLEY & ADLINGTON CEMETERIES

Remaining locations for memorial benches are available from the Parks & Open Spaces
team. Due to the nature of the site a standard timber bench is available and can be
purchased through the cemetery office. Any purchased benches will become the
responsibility of the Council and be maintained in line with the other benches on site. If they
are vandalised or require replacement, the donors will be asked if they wish to replace the
bench.

Other Memorial ltems

Applications for other forms of memorial (e.g. carvings and sculptures) will be considered on
an individual basis by the Parks & Open Spaces team. Any such memorial item must be in
keeping with the existing features of the cemetery and locations for these are available
through the Parks & Open Spaces team.

NATURE RESERVES

Benches

The siting of memorial benches will be considered on a site-by-site basis. Benches must be
of a robust nature and be in keeping with the site. Any purchased benches will become the
responsibility of the Council and be maintained in line with the other benches on site. If they
are vandalised or require replacement, the donors will be asked if they wish to replace the
bench.

Other Memorial ltems

Applications for other forms of memorial (e.g. carvings and sculptures) will be considered on
an individual basis by the Parks & Open Spaces team. Any such memorial item must be in
keeping with the location and add value to it.

OTHER COUNCIL-OWNED SITES

Any requests for memorial items outside of the sites listed will be considered by the Parks
and Open Spaces team on an individual basis, taking into account the following criteria;

. Requested item e.g. bench / tree / other
. Appropriate for site - design

. Appropriate for site - material

. Existing site provision

. Likely impact

Only requests that are able to fully meet the criteria will be considered.

20of 3

Cherley

Council



Agenda Page 86 Agenda Iltem 12

OTHER & EXCEPTIONAL CIRCUMSTANCES

The Council recognises that there may be other or exceptional circumstances that may
require the Policy to be deviated from. These requests will be considered on a case by case
basis and applicants will need to demonstrate the reasons for an alternative memorial type or
location. They would then be considered by the Executive Cabinet prior to a decision being
taken at a Council meeting.

30of3

Cherley

Council



Agenda Page 87 Agenda Item 13

Chor Iey

Council

Report of Meeting Date

Chief Executive

(Introduced by the Executive Executive Cabinet 15 August 2013

Member for People)

END OF YEAR CORE FUNDING REPORT 2012/13

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.

To update the Executive on the performance of the core funding recipients during 2012/13.

RECOMMENDATION

2.

That the report be noted.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT

3.

4.

In 2012/13 19 organisations were funded through the Core Funding Process, with 21 grants
and funding awarded, totalling £107,996.

The attached report highlights the performance of the core funding recipients in achieving
their outputs. In summary:

. Out of the ten large core funding contract recipients nine (90%) are rated green
which means they completed on track. One was reported as amber due to minor
issues however the service still managed to achieve the aims as set out in the
Core Funding contract and further information is provided within the report.

. Out of the four core funding projects, 100% were completed on time.

. Out of the seven small community funding grant recipients six (86%) are rated
green which means they completed on track, with one reported as amber due to
a reduced amount of funding being awarded and again further information is
provided within the report.

At the Executive Cabinet meeting in March 2013, the core funding allocation for 2013/14 was
agreed by members. These recipients are now in the process of delivering, and are subject
to quarterly monitoring. This monitoring is proportional based on the value of the grant, and
increases to detailed quarterly monitoring reports for the larger contracts.

For 2014/15, it has been recognised that to ensure that this funding is directed to where
needs are greatest, there is a requirement to review the current process. At the moment,
applications are assessed on a number of factors including value for money and their ability
to deliver the Sustainable Community Strategy. Over the next year, we will review this
process to make recommendations as to how any funding to this sector can be aligned to a
more effective commissioning model. This will ensure that any funding spent within this
sector achieves outcomes in the areas of greatest need. A new process will be agreed and
adopted in time for the next application round in January 2014.




Agenda Page 88 Agenda Item 13

Confidential report Yes No
Please bold as appropriate

Key Decision? Yes No
Please bold as appropriate

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

(If the recommendations are accepted)
7.  To facilitate the on-going analysis and management of the Council’s Core funding process.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED
8. None.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES

9.  This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives:

Involving residents in improving their local | x A strong local economy X
area and equality of access for all
Clean, safe and healthy communities X An ambitious council that does more | x

to meet the needs of residents and
the local area

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT

10. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are

included:
Finance X | Customer Services
Human Resources Equality and Diversity
Legal X | Integrated Impact Assessment
required?
No significant implications in this area Policy and Communications

COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER
11.  There are no comments.

COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER

12. There are no comments.

GARY HALL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

There is one background paper attached to this report.

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID

Louise Wingfield 5061 25/07/13 Core Funding End Report 12/13




Agenda Page 89 Ag&iF‘Item :T

Council

Core Funding
End Report 2012/13




Agenda Page 90 Agenda Item 13

Core Funding 2012/13

In 2012/13 1:9 orgawisatiows were funded through the core funding process,
with 21 grants and contracts awarded.

A total of £107,99& was awarded broken down into three categories:




Agenda Page 91 Agenda Item 13

Performance 2012/13

This report highlights the performance of the core funding recipients in achieving
their outputs. In summary:

4 )
Out of the ten Large core fuwdiwg contracts nine are rated green

which means they completed on track. The one which was rated as amber was due to
minor issues however the service still managed to achieve the aims as set out in the

core funding contract and exceeded the majority of outputs and targets for 2012/13.

\_ J
( )
core funding projects
all four were completed on time.
g J
- N Large Project
Six out of the seven
small community funding

grant recipients are rated green which
means they completed on track. The
one which was rated as amber was due
to a reduced amount of funding being
awarded.

Cho,—|ey

Council



Agenda Page 92 Agenda Item 13

Large Core Funding

In terms of outputs, all contracts were on track and some even exceeded targets
such as Homestart, Chorley Lifestyle Centre and Chorley Street Pastors.

e
core
o
=

Chorley Women's Centre £4,641 aqreen
el
=
eron
oo
==

More detail on each of the funding recipients is provided in the report.



Agenda Page 93 Agenda Item 13

Project Funding

In terms of outputs, overall performance is excellent with all projects complete.
The Arts Partnership
£1,500 w
PROJECT: Young Leaders S
MACY
. n
PROJECT: Making Macy Matter Gree

Adlington and District in Bloom Action Group
PROJECT: Improvements to war Memorial qreen
grounds, and Memorial Garden

Disability and Equality North west
PROJECT: Reach

More detail on each of the funding recipients is provided in the report.

Swall Community Funding

All services achieved their aims, and more detail on each of the funding recipients is
provided in the report.

Chorley Pensioners qreen

Yow're Amazing qreew

Green

H

MACY (Music and Arts for Creative Youth)

villages in Partnership

Chorley and District Sports Forum

Chorley Contemporary Crafters £1,865

Chodey

Council



Agenda Page 94 Agenda Item 13

Sustainable Community Strategy Priorities

All applicants are asked which of the Sustainable Community Strategy priorities their
organisation contributes to. These indicate which of the three themes each
organisation helped to deliver.

HYou and Your Family
M You and Your Community

HYou and Chorley

Genesis Care

Asian Womens Forum
Central Lancs Dial a Ride
Crossroads Care

Circle Counselling
Chorley Womens Centre
Street Pastors

Sports Forum

Lifestyle Centre
Homestart

Arts Partnership

T T T T T T T T T T 1

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%



Agenda Page 95 Agenda Item 13

Large Core Funding

The Arts Partnership
Status: Green

Overview: The Arts Partnership provides opportunities for young people (but not exclusively) to take

part in all aspects of the arts; by providing workshops projects and accredited outcomes. They have
developed many programmes to work with young people in Chorley’s varied areas, tackling issues such as
anti social behaviour, disability and rural isolation. They are able to engage young people and work with
them not only to develop their skills on arts based projects but to increase self-confidence and social skills
which are important for them to become part of their community, by encouraging and supporting them in
attaining their goals. The Arts Partnership also looks after a community centre based in Chorley Town
Centre which gives everyone an accessible affordable venue for almost any project/meeting.

Performance and Achievements

Outputs Target | | Actual

Initial contact with new young people ow art based activities g0 150

Maintain regular contact on activities with young people 30 32

Bnsure 25% of young people have a disability or challenging behaviour 20 14*

work with adults with disabilities on art/drama/music activities 50 é3

Work with new groups to use the centre 4 5

*Anticipated amount is slightly less as some of the young people are in the process of diagnosis

Nuwmbers of beneficiaries Target | | Actual

Total number of people benefiting 130 400+

Total number of volunteers 7

The Arts Partnership achieved its aims as set out in the Core Funding Contract and was on track throughout
2012/13 exceeding its targets and outputs.

Over 400 people have accessed the community centre (and projects), and at least 45-50 of those are now
regularly attending sessions/events.

In 2012 The Arts Partnership provided 38 weeks of after school music, art, dance and drama to over 30
children and young people with a variety of needs and abilities at its MADD sessions, as well as providing
drama workshops for adults with disabilities. They also worked with Rathbones, the Young People’s Service
and children from the Bridge supported housing. Live music events for older people were provided which
attracted.over 500 people.

Chorley

Council



Agenda Page 96 Agenda Item 13

Howmestart Chorley and South Ribble

Status: Green

OVerview: HomesStart enables parents to build better lives for their children by offering practical help,

support and friendship to families who have at least one child under five years of age and who may need
support for a variety of reasons. This might be because of illnesses, disability, bereavement, isolation,
domestic abuse, multiple births, post natal iliness, or people who may just be finding parenting a struggle.
Support is offered through either the home visiting service, structured Family Support Groups, Positive
Parenting Courses and Cookery Workshops, or a combination of these.

Performance and Achievements

Outputs Target | | Actual

pelivery of two volunteer preparation courses (RL § @3) 2 3

Families 150 152

Children 330 337

Run two Family Support Groups weekly - term time only b o b o

Numbers of beneficiaries Target | | Actual
Total number of people benefiting 480 429
Total number of volunteers ¥0 F1

HomeStart has achieved its aims as set out in the Core Funding Contract, and was on track throughout
2012/13 meeting its targets and outputs. Since April 2012 they have received 94 new referrals in the
Chorley area and supported a total of 152 families. They have two Family Support Groups running in the
Chorley area one at the Home-Start office base and one at Clayton Brook Village Hall.

They currently have 71 volunteers and during this year have recruited 39 new volunteers. Twenty
volunteers have been awarded a Level Two certificate in ‘Developing the Children’s & Young People’s
Workforce’, while three volunteers are undertaking Level 3 training.

They have run several Family Fun sessions in partnership with the Council during summer 2012 and
October and February half term holidays, the playtime in Astley Park event, as well as several school
holiday activities. Some feedback from families has been:

“Home-Start building is wonderful with some very caring and enthusiastic volunteers.”

“Once again thanks to Home-Start for organising another super day at the Zoo. Even the rain did not
dampen our spirits and the Home-Start girls were still smiling at 5pm.”

Chorley

Council



Agenda Page 97 Agenda Item 13

Chorley Lifestyle Centre (Age UK Lancashire)

Status: Green

Overview: The Lifestyle Centre is based on Gillibrand Street in Chorley and organises events for older
people. The range of activities focuses on enabling older people to live healthier and have more involved
lives and includes:

* Computer lessons

* Artclasses

* Keep Fit

* Games Morning

* Lunch club

e Special Christmas dinners and Entertainment in December

* Bingo

e Gardening course

e Mobile phone

They also hold a Tuesday and Thursday drop in café and organise day trips.

Performance and Achievements

Target | | Actual

Number of activities /classes delivered 208 231

Nuwmber of lunch clubs held at the Centre 23 26

Nuwmber of meals sold 5215 5409

zlz]z|z
i
i

Number of trips out 6 F

Nuwmbers of beneficiaries Target | | Actual

Total number of people benefiting 310 357

Total number of volunteers 15 16

The Lifestyle Centre achieved its aims as set out in the Core Funding Contract, and was on track throughout
2012/13 exceeding the outputs and targets.

Over the year they have set up a new ‘singing group’, offered family history lessons and delivered specialist
IT sessions in addition to their regular programme of chair-based exercises, art classes, computer lessons
and games mornings. Lancashire College have facilitated gardening sessions and digital camera courses at
the centre. This year the following day trips were organised; 2 visits to the Bourne Poacher, Rivington Barn,
Liverpool, Conishead Priory Buddhist Temple, Carlisle and Llandudno. Also at Christmas the centre
provided free Christmas dinners for one week. Weekly footcare service clinics are also held at the centre.

The centre is also involved in the Lancashire Time Credits scheme and some of the volunteers spent their
time credits on a trip to the Lake District.

Chorley

Council



Agenda Page 98 Agenda Item 13

chortcg Street Pastors

Status: green

overview: Chorley Street Pastors is a group of local church members who work with the Police and Council
to engage with members of the public in the evening on the streets and in night time venues. They provide
support when necessary to vulnerable people ensuring they get home safely, accompanying them to
hospital, calming situations etc in Chorley town centre, Clayton Brook, Coppull and Buttermere.

The Street Pastors work in partnership with the local police to create peace and stability in the town centre,
the main focus being to help reduce underage drinking. The police have been an active partner in training
and the development of operating protocols.

The funding provided contributes to the overall cost of providing the service. When combined with the
other match funding received, it provides running costs for the town centre base, coordinators salary,
uniforms, ongoing training (including sending delegates to national conferences), and marketing and liaison
costs to the ascension trust.

Performance and Achievements

Outputs Target | | Actual
o ][ =
s ||
][ =
o | e
*This is a reduction which is encouraging

Numbers of benefictaries Target | | Actual
Total number of people benefiting 2699 3702
Total number of volunteers 41 41

Chorley Street Pastors have achieved their aims under the Core Funding Contract, and were on track
throughout 2012/13 exceeding the outputs and targets. They continue to patrol the streets of Clayton
Brook, Buttermere, Coppull and Chorley every Friday night using volunteer Street Pastors, they experience
a high rate of achievement of their outputs, and feedback from local people, Police and the Community
Safety Partnership continues to be positive. Extra patrols were provided to cover Chorley Town Centre
over Christmas on Boxing Night and New Year's Eve from midnight until 6am. In 2012/13 they recruited
and trained a further intake of Street Pastors, bringing the total up to 40.

Chorley

Council



Agenda Page 99 Agenda Item 13

chorch wowmen's Centre

Status: Green

Overview: Chorley Women's Centre opens 3 days a week, offering drop in sessions, a library of books and

DVDs, and self-help groups; as well as running courses on relaxation stress management, assertiveness,
relationships and other topics to promote self-awareness and mental health. The centre offers free
counselling to women and specialist counselling to those who have been sexually abused (including men).
They also provide pregnancy and Chlamydia testing. They are able to give information and signpost women
to other local services and voluntary groups. The centre supports the women of Chorley and surrounding
districts and indirectly their families. Apart from one part time coordinator the service is run by volunteers
who help to keep the centre open and provide a welcoming and friendly setting.

Performance and Achievements

-
2
&

Target | | Actual

Attendance at drop in sessions / number of phone calls received 1120 1116

Number of Library / BVD's borrowed 204 206

Attendance on courses 332 302

Provision of counselling and relaxation sessions 994 1136

Numbers of beneficiaries Target | | Actual

Total number of people benefiting 3000 || 2943
Total number of volunteers 15 12

Chorley Women’s Centre achieved its aims under the Core Funding Contract, and has met most of the
outputs and targets for 2012/13.

Many attendances are due to G. P and other service referrals particularly in relation to personal problems,
loss, anxiety / stress and depression. These women gain support and information from trained volunteers.

Some of the comments from Women helped by the Women’s Centre include:
“You helped me through a very bad time and now I’m reunited with my family. Thank you!”

“I don’t know what | would do without the help and support | received and continue to receive..... in a very
difficult time. Thank you so much”

“Thank you so much for all the help and support I've received over the past six months..... I’'m very much
looking forward to a lovely bright future with my husband and my three gorgeous babies. Thank you x”

“Thank you so very much! | would have been lost without you!! Thank you x”

Chorley

Council



Agenda Page 100 Agenda Item 13

Circle Counselling

Status: Green

Overview: Circle Counselling provides advocacy and counselling to women who have experienced

domestic abuse, and is based within Chorley Women’s Centre. They take referrals and provide a specialist
counselling service for the victims of Domestic abuse, providing advocacy and advice.

They have close links with the IDVA (Independent Domestic Violence Advisor) in the area, receiving
referrals from them and the local Refuge’s. They provide advocacy to support these women in building a
new life for themselves and their children. This can include issues like the criminal justice process, personal
safety, housing, schooling and access to further health care services. They also work closely with other
organisations such as Chorley Women’s Centre and Victim Support, and receive referrals from the police
following a MARAC (Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conference), GP’s and health visitors.

Performance and Achievements
Outputs Target | | Actual
‘ Nuwmber of sessions 456 426

Hours of service provided 504 5315

Referrals (Approx. 5 per month) é0 59

Numbers of benefictaries Target | | Actual

Total number of people benefiting 180 ee
Total number of volunteers 4 5

Circle Counselling achieved its aims under the Core Funding Contract, and has met most of the outputs and
targets for 2012/13. Circle have offered 486 counselling sessions to women who have experienced
domestic abuse and increased their opening times to help those who work and those with child care issues.
The service have seen a number of women move on from the refuge to be housed and settle their children
in the local schools, this requires confidence and is a huge step in re-building their lives.

The service originally offered each client six sessions but is now offering them up to a maximum of 12. This
decision was made as the best results of self development and improved confidence are achieved by the
longer term clients; this has therefore resulted in a reduced number of anticipated beneficiaries.

Feedback received about the service includes:
"Please could you tell [NAME]. Today is first day | came out and felt bit better"

"Please will you thank [NAME] for me and tell her thanks for everything, she did an excellent job"

"I just wanted to get in touch to thank you... for your support today. Feeling worn out but in a good way. I'm
more settled just knowing that someone believes me!"

Chorley

Council



Agenda Page 101 Agenda Item 13

Chorley and South Ribble Crossroads Care

Status: Green

Overview: Chorley and South Ribble Crossroads Care is a voluntary organisation providing a support

service to carers of children and adults who have care needs. The service supports carers to carry out their
caring role through the provision of a respite service. Crossroads provides a range of care and support to
the 'cared for' person during the respite period. Services are provided to all age groups with differing needs
and disabilities throughout the Chorley area.

The funding enables them to continue their friendship circle for carers of people with dementia, by
supporting carers and looking after the cared for. They hold meetings for the carers as well as days out.

Performance and Achievements
Outputs Target | | Actual

Hours of meetings including & meetings at the Community Centre, 2 =g se
home meetings and two outings

Chorley carers taking part 36 32
cared for in Chorley Looked after by carer support workers 20 30

Numbers of beneficiaries Target | | Actual
Total number of people benefiting 16 18

Total number of volunteers 4 5

Crossroads Care has achieved its aims under the Core Funding Contract, and has met most of the outputs
and targets for 2012/13. Carers have continued to participate in the circle throughout the year and
numbers have increased.

[CLIENT A] is a lady aged 80 who cares for her husband with dementia. She heard about the Friendship
Circle from the Alzheimer’s Society and joined the group in the autumn last year. “I felt socially isolated
that there was ‘nothing’ but now | feel that | belong. | have made new friends and joined them for lunches
in the fortnight between the circle meetings. The Circle has given me a better quality of life.”

[CLIENT B] is now a widow. “Having carers from Chorley & South Ribble Crossroads Care when caring for my
husband was a life saver as these were people who supported carers and at the time there was little support
out there. When | joined the Friendship Circle they were a group of strangers all with their own frets and
worries, but with a common need; someone to listen to and pick each other up when feeling low.”

“There are four of us now who have lost our husbands and we all help each other in our grief. We know that
there are more people out there that need support, advice and a shoulder to lean on. The four of us see our
role as helping the current carers and giving back some of the support we had and still have from the
friendship circle. The carers and ex carers now feel like an extended family. We are grateful to the helpers
for their hard work not just for us and our families but for future carers.”

Chorley

Council



Agenda Page 102 Agenda Item 13

Central Lancs Dial a Ride

Status: Green

OVerview: Central Lancs Dial a Ride provide a door to door accessible community transport service in the

Chorley and South Ribble area. The funding is used to help with the running cost of their Evening and
Weekend service which is provided for residents of Chorley who cannot access public transport and is not
covered by the funding given by LCC. The service provides safe accessible transport for residents enabling

them to go out in the evenings.

Performance and Achievements
Outputs Target | | Actual
x|
Nuwmber of return trips for shopping excursions to Chorley and its 936 1619
w |
Nuwmber of return trips to get people to educational classes g1 192
Nunber of return trips tncluded tn the above by wheelchatr users go 98
Numbers of beneficiaries Target | | Actual
won || e
[

Central Lancs Dial a Ride has achieved its aims under the Core Funding Contract, was on track throughout
2012/13 and has met most of the outputs and targets for 2012/13 in some cases exceeding them. They
have provided a service between 16.30 and 21.30 Monday to Friday and 9.00 to 17.30 Saturday, taking
people shopping, to social events and evening classes. Some customers report that they can only get out
and about because of the service provided by Dial a Ride.

As well as providing the Transport service, they have next of kin contacts for members and on a few
occasions have had to report that the client was not answering the door when they should be there, only to
find out later that they had been taken ill or in one case stuck in the bath for 16 hours.

Chorley

Council



Agenda Page 103 Agenda Item 13

sahcugaaw Astan Women’s Forum

Status: Green

OVverview: Saheliyaan Asian Women'’s Forum aim to improve the quality of life for Black, Minority Ethnic

(BME) women and families in Chorley and South Ribble by empowering & engaging them in social, learning
and economic opportunities, and improving health and well-being. They work very closely with the public
sector to raise the awareness of health and social care issues. Asian communities are very reluctant to take
up public services because of cultural, religious, social and language barriers and of course the lack of
awareness of services. There is also a common myth among them that public services are not culturally
appropriate and also discriminate BME communities. Health inequality impacts on the community as a
whole, in particular concerns older people. The Asian Women’s Forum supports women from BME
communities to break down the barriers to healthy living for them and their families, by promoting
preventative approaches with regards to cancer and long term illness and campaigning against drugs and
alcohol abuse and smoking. Although their core work is with women, they also have a men’s group with
whom they organise separate health and social events.

Performance and Achievements

Outputs
Raise the confidence of women from BME communities through

Target | | Actual

training courses (W of courses)
Training for volunteers and staff
Awareness of health issues to improve health and wellbeing of the

E N
E N

isolated BME communities (W of events/awareness days) + s
Developing and delivering culturally appropriate and efficient services 305 asy
to customer’s satisfaction
Nuwmbers of beneficiaries Target | | Actual
e ofpapetonctiing 0 (R
‘1uummmwﬁwmuws 10 1

Saheeliyaan Asian Women’s Forum has achieved its aims under the Core Funding Contract, and was on
track throughout 2012/13 achieving the outputs and targets. During 2012/13 the Asian elders set up a
luncheon club together with some community members to help tackle isolation, and mental and physical
well-being. The Asian Women’s Forum also delivered a number of events, including:

* 6 health awareness events; cancer, stroke, vaccination and immunisation, healthy heart, mental
health and well-being, diabetes awareness

¢ 1 community cohesion event

* 1 domestic violence awareness/support event

Chorley

Council



Agenda Page 104 Agenda Item 13

qenesis care

Status:

OVerview: Genesis Care is a person centred wellbeing service for vulnerable older people, such as those

who have dementia or physical disabilities through a stroke who live in the borough of Chorley. Which is
affordable to all. Funding was provided in 2012/13 to provide an additional day for the Wellbeing Service
for older people.

Performance and Achievements

Target | | Actual

Increase attendance through the provision of additional days 650 413

Additional carers attending the support group 20 2

The recruitment of additional volunteers g 9

FIHH:
i
i

Numbers of beneficiaries Target | | Actual

Total number of people benefiting 100 102
Total number of volunteers 15 16

Genesis Care has achieved its aims under the Core Funding Contract, and was on track throughout 2012/13
and has met most of the outputs and targets, however due to the targets around attendance on Thursdays
not being achieved Genesis awarded their overall status as amber.

The additional day, Thursday, is now well established with a register of 13 service users attending the
centre on this day on a regular basis. Genesis have found that the service users who attend on this day
have greater needs regarding the level of their dementia and this has meant that some service users were
sign posted to an alternative day as they needed the stimulation of a more mixed client group . Over the
twelve month period 35 service users registered for Thursdays. Unfortunately 8 of these service users have
died, 5 have become residents in a care home, three decided to postpone attending the centre and two
could not continue to access the service as their dementia required a more secure environment. Another
factor affecting the numbers attending on Thursdays is that Community Transport (Dial-a Ride) are unable
to accommodate requests for transport on that day. The service on Thursdays is still advertised as having
vacancies and Genesis are trying to find a solution to the transport problem.

In 2012/13, in addition to the 2 Managers Genesis employs 3 part time support workers, 1 cook and1
kitchen assistant. Volunteers include 2 different students from Albany High School every half term.

Chorley

Council



Agenda Page 105 Agenda Item 13
Project Funding

The Arts Partnership
Project: Young Leaders
Status: Green

OVerview: The Arts Partnership is an organisation which provides opportunities for young people (but not

exclusively) to take part in all aspects of the arts; by providing workshops projects and accredited
outcomes.

They have developed many programmes to work with young people in Chorley’s varied areas, tackling
issues such as anti-social behaviour, disability and rural isolation. They are able to engage young people
and work with them not only to develop their skills on arts based projects but to increase self-confidence
and social skills which are important for them to become part of their community, by encouraging and
supporting them in attaining their goals.

The project was to provide training for a group of young people aged 15-17 to become leaders, this in turn
would enable the Arts Partnership to expand the group participation at their Music, Art, Dance and Drama
(MADD) sessions.

Performance and Achievements

Q
p
¥

Target | | Actual

Work with young people aged 15 years + to become yYoung Leaders g 13

Hold weekly planning meetings for the young Leaders 36 37
Undertake a feedback session and a final assessment of the young

Leaders * *
Numbers of benefictaries Target | | Actual
‘Tuﬂmmwuﬁw@uMmﬁm@ 42 43
‘Tuﬂmmwuﬁwmuws 5

The Arts Partnership has achieved its aims under the Core Funding Contract, was on track throughout
2012/13 exceeding its targets and outputs. 13 young people have taken part on the AQA Young Leaders’
vocational award. All have been successful and are now helping out as assistants at the regular MADD
sessions, this has enabled the Arts Partnership to expand their group and they now have over 40 young
people attending weekly sessions. More of the young people have expressed an interest in taking part on
future training programmes and the young leaders are happy to undertake more training where possible.

Chorley

Council



Agenda Page 106 Agenda Item 13

MACY (Music and Arts for Creative Youth)

Project: Making MUSIC Matter

Status: Green

oOverview: MACY is a community group run by volunteer adults and young people whose aim is to
identify and develop young people’s talent for music arts dance and drama within Chorley.

They provide opportunities such as project workshops, events, and accreditation through the Arts Awards
for young people to express and develop their talents for their own professional aspirations, enjoyment
and for the enjoyment of the community as a whole. They provide opportunities for those young people
who are unable to afford commercial provider rates with discounted or free sessions.

Performance and Achievements

Outputs Target | | Actual

Young people engaged tn music making workshops >0 &4

Sigw post to voluntary opportunities, employment, further education . .
or tratning 7 7

Showease events -4 5

Young People attending showease events including Llive nights g00 611

Young People achieving at least thelr Bronze Arts Award 17 29
Young People aged 1€ - 25 NEET or having recently set up home or 20 13

attending university with Little or no disposable income

New Musiec Commissions or Music Products ine CD’s and EP’s 24 41

Numbers of benefictaries Target | | Actual
Total number of people benefiting g70 5l

Total number of volunteers 15 x

MACY has achieved its aims under the core funding contract, and has met most of the outputs and targets
for 2012/13.

The project provided a comprehensive programme of music workshops and activities based around Rock
School, Vocal Groups and Street Style Music during weekday evenings and at weekends for young people
aged between 11 and 25.

This included song writing and arranging, stage craft, music production and provided an insight into
potential career opportunities or further education in the industry, and covered a cross section of popular
music styles.



Agenda Page 107 Agenda Item 13

Adlington and District in Bloom Action Group

Project: Improvements to Adlington and District war Memorial
grounds, and the Leonard Fairclough Memorial Garden

Status: Green

overview: The purpose of the Adlington & District in Bloom Action Group is to improve the amenity

spaces of Adlington, Anderton & Heath Charnock by providing & maintaining floral displays & keeping the
public areas of the villages tidy & litter free.

The project was to remove the remainder of the overgrown shrubbery from the grounds of the War
Memorial and plant replacement shrubs and perennials, thereby opening up the area making it a more
inviting place to rest and reflect.

Performance and Achievements

Outputs Target | | Actual
Two amenity areas improved § made more attractive by this project, 2 2
providing quality opew spaces

ot | 2wt

o ||

Numbers of benefictaries Target | | Actual

oot

||

The Adlington and District in Bloom Action Group has achieved its aims under the Core Funding Contract,
and and has met most of the outputs and targets for 2012/13. Due to bad weather over summer 2012 the
project was scaled back, this has also resulted in reduced numbers of beneficiaries and members of the
community using the areas. The majority of new planting has now taken place which has improved both
gardens, and residents will be able to benefit in Summer 2013.

Some very large trees were removed from the Leonard Fairclough Memorial Garden. Small trees, shrubs &
perennials were provided to replace these trees to make the garden more attractive & welcoming to
residents & visitors.

Chorley

Council



Agenda Page 108 Agenda Item 13

Disability equality North west
Project: REACH 2012

Status: Green

OVverview: 'Reach' is an annual programme of Disability Awareness Events taking place across Chorley &

South Ribble. It is planned and managed by a multi-agency group, including representatives from Chorley,
South Ribble and Lancashire County Councils, Central Lancashire PCT, Lancashire Constabulary and local
voluntary sector organisations.

This project was to hold an Information Day on 10 August in Chorley Town Centre, with stalls staffed by
local statutory, voluntary and private sector organisations, offering information and advice for disabled
people and carers.

Performance and Achievements

Target | | Actual

Information Day tn Chorley Town Centre on 10 August 2012 1 1

organisations offering services for Disabled People taking stalls in a5
Chorley Town Centre on the Information Day =

H®
2
&

People actively attending the information Day (ie take leaflets, tnteract
with stallholders)

8
8

Volunteers involved in planning and delivering the event

Nuwmbers of beneficiaries Target | | Actual
Total number of people benefiting 5;;0- 1000+
‘ Total number of volunteers 20 20

The REACH project has achieved its aims under the core funding contract, and has met most of the outputs
and targets for 2012/13. The event generated a positive overall response and approximately 1,000 people
actively attended. At the 10 August event, all of the 27 stalls were booked up and there were no free
spaces left due to the constraints of space allowed, hence the actual of 27 rather than the target of 35.

Chorley

Council



Agenda Page 109 Agenda Item 13

Swall Community Funding

chorLeg Pensioners

Status: green

overview: Chorley Pensioners seek to improve conditions for the elderly in Chorley. The funding provides

financial support for their meetings. They hold regular meetings with speakers, tea and coffee, this enables
the elderly to get out of their houses and meet with others.

Performance and Achievements: The Chorley Pensioners has achieved its aims under the core funding

contract for 2012/13. The funding enabled the group to hold 10 meetings with speakers. The group also
held a Christmas lunch as Shaw Hill with transport provided by Dial a Ride, and produced two quarterly
newsletters.

You're Amazing
Status: green

overview: You're Amazing is a community interest company who deliver development, support and

coaching programmes for young women across Chorley, Wigan and Lancashire. They are based in the
Homestart premises on Market Street.

Performance and Achievements: You're Amazing has achieved its aims under the core funding contract

for 2012/13. Over the year they have grown their capacity by securing additional funding to develop their
pilot programmes, recruit volunteers and also recruit a sessional member of staff. They have designed and
delivered personal development programmes for local women, provided one to one support, hosted
several crafts & engagements workshops to reduce isolation, and created a young women’s drop in.

Throughout the programmes, You’re Amazing has seen increase in confidence, self-esteem, life goals and
decision making from all participants. Four participants on the Butterflies programme have started their
own businesses and another three are looking for support in starting businesses. 12 participants have
become volunteers locally, four within the organisation, two participants have returned to college and five
have progressed into work.

SambAfriq
Status: Green

overview: SambAfriq is a community band based in Chorley who play a mix of Samba and African drums

and percussion. The group entertain at Festivals, Carnivals, Fetes and Fairs to bring about enjoyment in the
community, including Chorley’s Big Drum Day.

Performance and Achlevements: SambAfriq has achieved its aims under the core funding contract for

2012/13. The funding enabled them to replace and mend a lot of instruments. They also purchased some
new equipment and 20 waterproofs.

Chorley

Council



Agenda Page 110 Agenda Item 13

MACY (Music and Arts for Creative Youth)

Status: green

overview: MACY is a community group run by volunteer adults and young people whose aim is to identify

and develop young people’s talent for music arts dance and drama within Chorley and surrounding areas.

They provide opportunities such as project workshops, events, and accreditation through the Arts Awards
for young people to express and develop their talents for their own professional aspirations, enjoyment
and for the enjoyment of the community as a whole. They provide opportunities for those young people
who are unable to afford commercial provider rates with discounted or free sessions.

Performance and Achievements: MACY has achieved its aims under the core funding contract for

2012/13. The funding enabled them to increase membership, including vetting procedures, training and
development and Arts Award Advisor Training. The group also developed their safeguarding policies and
promoted the group with a better website, posters and flyers.

villages in Partnership
Status: green

overview: Based in Croston, Villages in Partnership’s aim is to improve life for residents of the villages in

South Lancashire. They provide many services which benefit the local community such as helping groups
apply for funding for projects, hosting community coffee mornings and hot pot lunches. They are
responsible for the Croston Heritage Trail booklet which contains a map of the trail and a full guide to the
history of Croston including points of historical interest. The funding was to enable them to reprint the
guide.

Perfomam and Achievements: Villages in Partnership has achieved its aims under the core funding

contract for 2012/13. 5,000 copies of the leaflet were printed in October, and the group delivered them to
various locations in Croston, so that the leaflet can now be picked up by any resident or visitor.

Chorley Sports Forum

Status:

overview: Chorley and District Sports Forum is a voluntary community group whose aim is to support and

promote the provision and development of sport within the borough of Chorley. The forum awards grants
to individuals and clubs across the borough, as well as helping to organise the annual sports awards. The
funding was awarded to deliver an Olympic themed sports awards in 2012.

Pevformawce and Achievements: Chorley Sports Forum has achieved its aims under the core funding

contract, which was to deliver the Olympic themed sports awards.

The Sports Forum however reported that it had not fully achieved the aims due to the reduced amount of
money awarded by Chorley Council. Work is on-going to support the group in 2013/14.

Chorley

Council



Agenda Page 111 Agenda Item 13

Chorley Contewmporary Crafers

Status: green

overview: Chorley Contemporary Crafters support and promote the development of contemporary art
and craft initiatives in Chorley and its surrounding areas. They providing regular social and creative network
meetings for members, and facilitate local contemporary craft events and exhibitions. The funding enabled
the group to set up a wide range of free craft activities to families to learn new skills and develop creativity,
encouraging them to enjoy crafts they may not otherwise have the opportunity to try.

Per{-‘ormame and Achievements: Chorley Contemporary Crafters has achieved its aims under the core
funding contract for 2012/13. They provided free family craft workshops at Create (the Farmhouse, Astley
Park) every Thursday-Sunday from 18 October until 23 December. Working in conjunction with Duke Street
SureStart Children’s Centre, they provided three workshop sessions aimed at low-income families including
a family Decoupage workshop at Cotswold House.

The group managed to achieve their aims using only 65% of the budget, therefore Chorley Council has
allowed them to extend their contract until September 2013, in order to facilitate more workshops using
the remainder of the budget.

Chorley

Council



Agenda Page 112

Agenda Item 13

Looking Forward - Core Funding 2012/14

In 2013/14 funding has been provided for the following:

Large Core Funding 2013/14

Amount  Funded

Organisation Awarded  tn12/43 Brief Overview
The funding will contribute to the overall cost of providing the
chorlcg Street service. To provide running costs for town centre base, coordinators
Pastors £7#,000 Yes salary, uniforms, presentations, on-going training, including sending
delegates to national conferences. Showcase events, marketing
materials and license fee costs to Ascension Trust.
Homestart £20,000 yes The funding will contribute to the overall core costs of running the
service.
Age UK - £10.000 Yes The funding will provide a contribution to the running costs of the
Ltfestgte centre ! Lifestyle Centre including the cost of a co-ordinator.
Groundwork is an independent registered charity operating across
the west of Lancashire who helps people and organisations to
Groundwork £5,000 No improve their local environment. The funding would provide support
towards the costs of their Chorley young person employment and
skills programme
The funding will pay for the co-ordinators role; receiving and
Cirele £10,708 yes organising referrals, risk assessing and sign posting, advocacy and
counsel,ung - advice, telephone support, administration and data collection, and
fundraising.
The funding will be used to help with the running cost of their
Central Lanes Evening and Weekend service which is provided for residents of
plal a Ride £4,000 Yes Chorley who cannot access public transport and is not covered by the
funding given by LCC. The service provides safe accessible transport
for residents enabling them to go out in the evenings.
chortcg women's £4.641 yes The funding is for the general running costs including utility and
centre ! phone bills, insurance and office expenses.
The funding would contribute to the overall cost of providing the
G {s care £7,100 yes service. Together with match funding received it would cover the
cost of rent for accommodation, utilities, equipment and
maintenance, staff & food costs, office expenses and activities .
Chorley § South o . L
Ribble Crossroads £3,793 Yes The fundl.ng will help to contmtlJe the Friendship Circle for carers of
care people with dementia, by funding the carer support workers.
The funding is for the Managers salary who oversees all the day to
day running of both the centre (looking after the maintenance, hirers
The Arts £5,000 es and cleanliness) and all the projects, funding etc of the Charity. This
Partwershtp ! Y funding would pay towards the salary and they would continue to
seek funding from other sources as well as from the projects and
hirers of the centre.
The funding will pay for a Luncheon Club, Community Events,
Aslan Women's £10.000 Yes Provision of courses in the community — for example confidence
Forum. ! building courses such as English as a second language, learning new

skills or hobbies, and Intergenerational Projects.

Chorley

Council




Agenda Page 113 Agenda Item 13

Project Funding 2013/14
Amount Funded

organisation

Brief Overview

Awarded in12/13

Project: *Heritage Chorley' event
Chomﬂ mmge Use afthe A 5-day event to be held in the Lancastrian Room, aimed at raising
Centre Support | Lancastrian Yes awareness of Chorley’s rich heritage. The event will consist of
Group (cHCsqg) Suite exhibited artefacts and ephemera relating to the borough’s
industrial and cultural past, scheduled talks and presentations.
Project: REACH
Ohoruu § South The project is to .orga.r.1i5e the REACH event which is an annual
Ribble Disabilit £1,500 yes programme of Disability Awareness Events across Chorley and
South Ribble. The funding is for the information day held in
Forum . -
Chorley Town Centre and includes car park passes, stalls, publicity
and flyers, lip speakers/interpreters, and a marquee.
Project: Life Changes (Brop In § Coaching)
This project is to provide a drop in service, this would provide a
follow on to the ‘Butterflies’ project it enables those who have
YO“-'YCAMQZLWQ £4,281 Yes participated in 'Butterflies' to get additional support in achieving
their goals, to seek further advice, ‘catch up’ and build a local peer
support network. It would also enable past participants to
volunteer and share their story.
Project: Hollday Camps
£1,000 The project will provide holiday activities which will be art based,
match . . . . . .
_ﬁ‘w, _ arts and crafts, music, drama (including reading skills and script
, c:m.g writing), and dance for children in Chorley, offering week long
4 camps'. The activities will work on hand eye coordination,
Partnership sarly Ne icati ial interacti ticularly developing self
Inkervention communication, .soua in e‘ra'c ion, par ICL'J arly ‘eve (?plng tse
fuvwlmg esteem and confidence building, the sessions will be inclusive,
secured aIIowmg‘chlldren Wlt‘h mild to moderate dlsak?|l|t|es to take part.
£3,650 The sessions are designed to help towards child care so that
parents and carers will be able to continue work.

Chorley

Council




Agenda Page 114

Agenda Item 13

Swmall Community Funding 2013/14

organisation

Amount  Funded

Brief Overview

Awarded tn12/13

The organisation was set up in Nov 2012 to provide activities

Asptre clagtow £1,340 yes for yf)ung'people in and around the Clayton Efrook area. The
Brook funding will pay for all the resources and equipment, eg CD
player, bean bags, crafts, toys, sports equipment etc.
Musie and Arts fbr The funding will pay for room hire and refreshments, training
GN?::OYYD;L& £é=0 Yes costs, book keeping, and stationary.
The funding will help towards the on-going replacement and
.SambAfriq £500 Yes renewal of equipment, annual public liability insurance, web
hosting and to subsidise rent.
The aim of Jennings CBA is to provide a safe environment for
youngsters to keep fit and learn about boxing, and in time
Jewwiwgs produce some amateur boxers. The Academy is a not for profit
Oommuwﬁta £500 No community group with a constitution aimed at young people.
Boxing Aoademg The funding is for the general running costs including CRB
checks, meeting expenses, book keeping, general office
expenses, as well as training and development.
Help the Homeless £2.000 No The c.>rgan.isation prevents and reIi.eves homelessness.. The
(Ohorua) funding will pay towards the running costs of the service.
MS .Soeid:a - The organisation provides support to people affected by MS in
Ohoruu and EF5 No the Chorley & District area. The funding is to provide free
Dlstrict branch transport to members, and to produce a regular newsletter.
‘”“’mﬂ PCV\«SE:'MYS £4¢0 Yes The funding will provide financial support for their meetings.
CSRDF focus on supporting disabled people and their wellbeing
chomﬂ § South in Chorley and South Ribble, they hold monthly meetings and
Ribble Disability £500 No run the REACH event. The funding will enable the Forum to
Forum, participate in the Council’s Equality Forum and to access the
committee rooms for their meetings.
The funding is to enable the Sports Forum to provide coach
.Sports Forum £2,000 Yes education and sport specific elite performance and

development.

Chorley

Council




Agenda Page 115 Agenda Item 13

The future of Core Funding - Making it
Happen

This report recognises the valuable work being undertaken within our communities by voluntary,
community and faith groups. It also showcases the vast array of organisations and projects that
the Council currently fund.

However, it has been recognised that to ensure that this funding is directed to where needs are
greatest, there is a requirement to review the current process. At the moment, applications are
assessed on a number of factors including value for money and their ability to deliver the
Sustainable Community Strategy. Over the next year, we will review this process to make
recommendations as to how any funding to this sector can be aligned to a more effective
commissioning model. This will ensure that any funding spent within this sector achieves
outcomes in the areas of greatest need. A new process will be agreed and adopted in time for the
next application round in January 2014.

Chorley

Council



Agenda Page 116 Ag ltem 1

orley

Council




Agenda Page 117 Agenda ltem 14

Chor Iey

Council

Report of Meeting Date

Director of People & Places
(Introduced by the Executive Executive Cabinet 15 August 2013

Member for People)

CLAYTON BROOK VILLAGE HALL - COMMUNITY MANAGEMENT

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.

To consider a request from Clayton Brook Community House to progress the transfer of
Clayton Brook Village Hall into community management.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.

The recommendations are;

a) That officers be instructed to work with Clayton Brook Community House to pursue
the option of community management at Clayton Brook Village Hall.

b)  That a condition of community management is that Clayton Brook Community House
look at the best type of organisational structure to manage the facility and show how
the representation on this organisation would draw from as broad a cross section in
the local area as possible.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT

3.

The Council have received a request from Clayton Brook Community House that Clayton
Brook Village Hall be transferred into community management.

The community management of Council assets is an established policy. We have other
community centres that are in Community Management at Fairview and Tatton. We also
have a number of playing pitches and open spaces that are in Community Management with
local organisations.

The recommendation is that we progress community management at Clayton Brook Village
Hall, working closely with Clayton Brook Community House.

This work with Clayton Brook Community House would need to consider whether the existing
group is the appropriate organisation to take on the community management and will also
need to consider how representation, on whatever organisation is considered appropriate,
has representation from the broadest possible cross section of the local community.

Confidential report Yes No
Please bold as appropriate

Key Decision? Yes No
Please bold as appropriate




Agenda Page 118 Agenda ltem 14

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)
(If the recommendations are accepted)

7.  The recommendation, if approved is consistent with the Council’s policy of transferring assets
into community management. This empowers the local community and gives them greater
ownership, involvement and influence on decisions in their local community. There is also a
potential financial saving with this delivery model.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED
8. Not to consider transferring the Village Hall into community management.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES

9.  This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives:

Involving residents in improving their local v

. A strong local econom
area and equality of access for all 9 y

An ambitious council that does
Clean, safe and healthy communities v | more to meet the needs of v
residents and the local area

BACKGROUND

10. Clayton Brook Community House have written to the Council requesting that Clayton Brook
Village Hall be transferred into community management.

11. The community management of Council assets is an established policy. We have other
community centres that are in community management at Fairview and Tatton. We also
have a number of playing pitches and open spaces that are in community management with
local organisations.

12. The recommendation is that we progress community management at Clayton Brook Village
Hall, working closely with Clayton Brook Community House.

13. This work with Clayton Brook Community House would need to consider whether the existing
group is the appropriate organisation to take on the community management and will also
need to consider how representation, on whatever organisation is considered appropriate,
has representation from the broadest possible cross section of the local community.

14. Clayton Brook Community House are a registered charity and have many years experience
of managing a community asset. That said, we would encourage them to seek independent
advice as to whether the management of a village hall would further their charitable aims. It
could transpire that the advice is that another organisation is established to manage the
village hall.

15. Assuming there is support to develop community management, a further report would be
brought to Executive Cabinet to outline the proposals and seek approval to proceed.



Agenda Page 119 Agenda ltem 14

16. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are

included:

Finance v | Customer Services

Human Resources Equality and Diversity

Legal v | Integrated Impact Assessment
required?

No significant implications in this area Policy and Communications

COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER

17. The net cost of running the Village Hall is currently budget at £16,000 for 2013/14. Until the
details of the community management scheme is agreed it is not possible to say whether
any savings will be achieved. | will report back to the Executive on the financial implications
once more details are available.

COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER

18. Consideration will have to be given to any TUPE implications of the transfer of this service.
Agreements to confer a right of exclusive occupation can easily be produced.

JAMIE CARSON
DIRECTOR OF PEOPLE AND PLACES

There are no background papers to this report.

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID

Jamie Carson 5815 25/07/13




Agenda Page 120

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 121 Agenda Item 15

Chor Iey

Council

Report of Meeting Date

Director of People and Places
(Introduced by the Executive Executive Cabinet 15 August 2013

Member for People)

ALLOCATION OF SAGAR HOUSE S$106 EQUIPPED PLAY
SPACE CONTRIBUTION

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.

To consider a request from Eccleston Parish Council for a grant of £77,000 towards the
provision of a multiuse ball court with associated landscaping, paths and lighting on the
recreation ground at Drapers Avenue, Eccleston.

2.  To agree that the remaining S106 balance (£8590) is to be spent on a Council owned site in
or near to Eccleston which is recommended for improvement in quality.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

3. That Members consider and approve the requests.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT

4.

A S106 agreement was signed on 1 September 2010 for Sagar House (Pontins) in
Eccleston. Schedule 4 refers to Equipped Play Space Contribution, this money is for the
provision layout and equipping of an open space in accordance with the Council’s Planning
Policy. It doesn’t specifically state the money has to be spent in Eccleston. The Council is in
receipt of £92,890, £7,300 of which has already been allocated to Eccleston Parish Council
for a swing. Drapers Avenue Recreation Ground is owned and managed by Eccleston Parish
Council.

Eccleston Parish Council have been working with the Young People’s Service, Football Club
and Eccleston Open Space Committee who have identified a lack of provision for all weather
sports in the parish. Consultation was undertaken with residents and the members of the
youth club to draw up a specification of the ball court. The Parish Council went out to tender
to provide an all-weather ball court (MUGA) on Drapers Avenue Eccleston. Five quotes were
obtained and the lowest accepted. A company called Lightmain have been chosen subject
to allocating the funding and obtaining planning permission. Eccleston Parish Council have
approached Chorley Council to ask if £77,000 could be granted to them in order to deliver
the project.

Confidential report Yes No
Please bold as appropriate
Key Decision? Yes No
Please bold as appropriate




Agenda Page 122 Agenda Item 15

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)
(If the recommendations are accepted)

6.

7.

There are currently no all-weather facilities in Eccleston. The ball court will be a first for the
village.

Drapers Avenue is the principal Neighbourhood Park/Recreation Ground in Eccleston. It
caters for all age groups and has buildings which house the young people’s service, scout
hut and football club. It has adequate parking and amenities to serve the community. The
MUGA will be very well used in this prime location.

There is a clear need and desire for the ball court, as shown by the involvement of the young
people of the village through the whole process from inception to completion.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

9.

To use the S016 funding for an alternative location in the Borough.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES

10.

This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives:

Involving residents in improving their local | V A strong local economy
area and equality of access for all

Clean, safe and healthy communities N An ambitious council that does more |

to meet the needs of residents and
the local area

BACKGROUND

11.

12.

13.

Drapers Avenue Recreation Ground is owned and managed by Eccleston Parish Council.
Eccleston Parish Council were approached by the Young People’s Service, young people
of the village and the football club in September 2013 to ask if they could have an all-
weather ball court (MUGA) on Drapers Avenue Recreation Ground Eccleston. Reasons for
the request are:

a. During last summer holidays Chorley Council GUAG were holding activities on
Drapers Avenue, the field was waterlogged for the majority of the time resulting in
limited opportunity to play outside.

b. It would be possible to play a variety of sports on the MUGA including football,
netball, basketball, dodge ball, tennis and handball.

c. It would be a safe place to play when dark outside, instead of playing on the
streets or car park causing anti-social behaviours and annoying local residents.

d. It would be of use to the whole community

It would be a focus and meeting place for young people

The associated health and wellbeing benefits of being able to play out all year

round

o

The young people put together a petition to prove the sincerity of the request throughout the
community. They researched and visited ball courts at various sites across the area to
decide what surface, size, lighting, line markings, fencing they would require and drew up a
full specification.

The Parish Council agreed to go out to tender using the specification put together by the
youth group. The location of the ball court was discussed with Chorley Council Officers
within Parks and Open Spaces and Planning, local residents of Drapers Avenue and
Eccleston village residents. It is sited away from residential properties; lighting will be on a
timer and will be directed at the ball court with minimum light pollution.  The MUGA will be
28m x 14m with fencing to all four sides to a height of 3m. The surface will be tarmac. Steel
fencing will be powder coated green. See plans appended to this document.



14.

15.

Agenda Page 123 Agenda Item 15

5 competitive quotes were obtained and evaluated by the Parish Council and the preferred
contractor/supplier chosen. The total cost of the all-weather ball court is £77,000.
Eccleston Parish Council are not able to put in any match funding towards this facility but
they are providing the land, have worked up the proposals and tender process, will submit
the necessary planning application, will project manage the installation of the ball court and
will provide the on-going maintenance and insurance of the ball court.

Referring to the Draft Chorley Council Play Area Strategy and KKP Open Spaces Study,
Eccleston has three play areas. A small site on The Hawthorns providing springy animals
for 2 — 6 year olds owned by Eccleston Parish Council, a small multi unit play area for 4 — 8
year olds on Middlewood Close owned by Chorley Council and the large neighbourhood
park at Drapers Avenue which caters for all ages from 2 year old— adult. All sites are
recommended to be protected. From the quantity assessment for Eccleston, the settlement
is found to have a surplus of provision for children and young people and all of the
settlement is within a 10 minutes’ walk of a children’s play area. Therefore no new play
areas are required but existing sites can be improved if funding allows.

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT

16. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are
included:
Finance V| Customer Services
Human Resources Equality and Diversity
Legal V | Integrated Impact Assessment
required?
No significant implications in this area Policy and Communications

COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER

17.

The use of the £92,890 S106 contribution is reflected in this Council’s budgets as follows:
£7,300 has been transferred to the revenue budget to finance the swing; and the balance of
£85,590 is within the 2013/14 Capital Programme budget for S106-funded Play, Recreation
and Public Open Space projects. Should members agree to the request from Eccleston
Parish Council for a £77,000 grant towards provision of a multiuse ball court, it would be
shown as a separate project in future capital programme monitoring reports. If the £8,590
balance of the Sagar House contribution is to be used to fund low value improvements to
an existing Council-owned site, it could be transferred to the revenue budget in a later
monitoring report.

COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER

18.

There are no legal restrictions on making this grant.

JAMIE CARSON
DIRECTOR OF PEOPLE AND PLACES

Background Papers

Document Date File Place of Inspection
10/00866/REMMAJ — Pointins http://democracy.chorley
Ltd, Sagar House, Langton 14 Dec 2010 .gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=2 Website
Brow, Eccleston, Chorley 0441
Report Author Ext Date Doc ID

Lindsey Blackstock 5218 11/08/13 001




Agenda Page 124

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 125 Agenda Item 15

LIGHTMAIN

M'lgk‘”"“"’"‘”k
Our Ref: ECCLESTON/APR13/POSTAL/CH1941
03 May 2013

Mr. A. Platt, Clerk to the Council
Eccleston Parish Council

9 Ambleside Avenue

Euxton, Chorley

PR7 6NX

Dear Alan
ECCLESTON PARISH COUNCIL MUGA

Lightmain would like to thank Eccleston Parish Council for the opportunity to tender for the above
project and we are pleased to provide our quotation along with the following documents in support of
our submission. As requested, we have also provided the information on CD in pdf format.

Completed Project Management document incorporating:
e Form of Tender
e Anti-Collusion Certificate
Design Proposals/Associated Graphics
Proposal for dealing with potential drainage issues
Proposed Programme of Work & Timescales
Health & Safety Plan & Method Statements (Appendix I)
Key Worker Information (Appendix II)
Guarantees/Warranties/Specifications/Maintenance (Appendix III)
Company Profile/Background Information (Appendix 1V)

Please note that our prices reflect our highest specification and the use of the best quality materials
which means that the facility will endure the rigorous usage for which it is intended long after other
courts constructed from lower grade steel or chain link fencing have needed to be replaced. If,
however, you are offered what seems to be an equivalent specification at a lower price, please allow
us to detail any differences in specification and consider offering a similar solution that could match
that price. We would recommend that before making a final decision on the choice of supplier that you
compare sample MUGA fencing from each of the companies who have been invited to tender. We
believe that the quality of our products and services are second to none.

Unlike some of our competitors who import lower grade steel product from the Far East and Eastern
Europe, Lightmain’s heavy duty MUGA’s are made in Britain from materials sourced in Britain at our
own fabrication facility in Rotherham and are top of the range for quality. The integrity of our steelwork
carries a fair wear and tear warranty of 25 years.

We also have our own powder coating facility which means that with the extra processes Lightmain
has introduced over and above standard powder coating processes that we can offer a 5 year
warranty on the paint finish.

Manufacturing our own products also means that we are able to offer a bespoke service to suit our
clients’ specific needs.

PROVED
K

“»

ROSPA

on Road, Wah-upon-Deame, Rotherham, 563 70G e Rt scaty e e
ghimain.co.uk Web:www lightmain co.u

G R
\\_O‘N Eg, 15,

Y 2

H A Reg o 542582 l””
BALI Constructionline

REGISTERED




Agenda Page 126 Agenda Item 15

~<:"-->§{ '

LIGHTMAIN
Lightmain was awarded the MoD Defence Estates contract for MUGAs across military establishments
following a rigorous selection process which involved 14 companies. Lightmain’s success was

primarily based on quality, durability of product and value for money. In addition, a Lightmain MUGA
facility is used as an example of excellence by RoSPA for their 2 day operational training courses.

Please also note that our projects are installed by our own directly employed staff which means that
we have total control over both the quality of the installation and the timescale for completion.

It may also be of interest to know that in recognising that our work brings us into contact with the
young and vulnerable, all of our staff have been List 99 and CRB checked.

I hope that | have covered everything that you need for the moment, but, should you have any queries
or require any additional information please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely

o %

Trevor Lafferty
Managing Director
LIGHTMAIN COMPANY LIMITED

OVED
o?®

-«"

&

)
] ROSPA
2
L] r i A Wath. 1 e N # [NY T The Society for the
z Lightmain Company Limited, Hibbard Works, Station Road, Wath-upon-Deame, Rotherham 563 70G T foptiaciaty s

°, ARG TR TG TR, | — revention of Accidents
2 Tel: 01708 763410 Fax: 01709 763411 Emall: sales@/ightmain.co.uk Web:wiw: ightmain.co.uk —

Y 2

H A Reg o 542582 l””
BALI Constructionline

REGISTERED



Agenda Page 127 Agenda Item 15

LIGHTMAIN

M,[gmnm—w“k

ECCLESTON PARISH COUNCIL
LIGHTMAIN REFERENCE CH/1941

GROUNDWORKS (As Item 4.1) £25,270.00

We are able to offer a £2,000.00 discount for

retaining spoil on site £23,270.00
SOAKAWAYS/DRAINAGE (As Item 4.2) £ 4,000.00
PATHS (As Item 4.3) £ 2,000.00

CABLEDUCT (As Item 4.4) included in Lighting costs
FENCING FOUNDATIONS (As Item 4.5) included in MUGA costs

MUGA (As Item 4.6) — Sample fencing will delivered 07.05.14
28m x 14m x 3m high heavy duty MUGA consisting of:

o 781 lin.m x 3m high Lightmain heavy duty true rebound fencing ingzt:gtneﬂ
with straining posts to reduce noise/panel reverberation :
: e ) pod seating
(See appended Appendix Il for specifications/noise additional
reduction measurement tests) £1.800.00
e 2 no curved back DDA compliant open goals ’ each
e Curved corners
e 1 no chicane
e Tennis/Volleyball net complete with post fixings £32,256.40
Discount 10% - Total (supplied and installed) £29,307.50

LIGHTING (As Item 4.7) consisting of:

e 4 no unique Lightmain integrated mid-hinged 6.7m high
columns

8 no x 400watt Halide sports floodlights

Electrical distribution unit, photocell and timer arrangement
Connection to existing community building

Ducting as per tender spec

(See Appendix Il for specifications/photographs of previous
installations)

NB. This lighting spec provides the following output which
exceeds the tender specification:

e Average illuminance of 200 lux

e  Uniformity of 0.71

e Maintenance factor of 0.8 £17,400.00

ELECTRICAL (As Item 4.8) included in Lighting costs

LINE MARKING (As Item 4.9) £ 600.00
ACCESSORIES (As Item 4.10)

Tennis/Volleyball net included in MUGA costs

Plaque (left) incorporating Council crest and wording tbc £ 350.00
Plaque (right) incorporating Youth Centre logo and wording tbc £ 500.00

TOTAL FOR PROJECT (assuming retention of spoil on site)  £77,427.50

SROVED
’!

& All prices are subject to VAT at rate prevailing at time of invoice
$ .
: ROSPA
z Lightmain Company Limited, Hibberd Works, Station Road, Wath-upon-Deame, Rotherham 563 706 e Rt scaty e e
% Tel: 01708 763410 Fax: 01709 763411 Emall: sales@/ightmain.co.uk Web:wiw: ightmain.co.uk —
‘ HA Reg No. 2642562 I””
BALI Constructionline

REGISTERED



Agenda Page 128 Agenda Item 15

LIGHTMAIN

M'[gk(mww“k

DRAINAGE

In order to ensure that the new facility will adequately drain, Lightmain will carry out the following
procedures:-

e Set the new ballcourt surface to a crossfall. Fall between 1:80 and 1:100

e Insert a perforated pipe (as per tender spec) to collect excess water

e Pipe to lead into a constructed soakaway pit which will incorporate in inspection chamber cover
(for safety reasons)

e The specification of the tarmac will be an open graded construction which will allow any standing
water to be absorbed through the surface

ADDITIONAL BENEFITS OFFERED

e Discount of £2,000.00 on groundworks cost for retention of spoil on site

e 10% discount on standard MUGA costs

¢ Mid hinged lighting columns integrated into MUGA fenceline enabling easier mowing access
around installation

e Optional extra of integrated pod seating at budget price

e Integrated tennis/volleyball facility providing additional play value

ENVIRONMENTAL BENEFITS

During the construction phase, Lightmain ensures minimal impact to the environment by taking the
following steps.

Carry out a tree protection plan and confirm a suitable access route for vehicles

Consider any existing features of the site prior to commencement

Minimise any noise by co-ordinating deliveries and excavations within a 9 — 5 time period
Source locally produced materials to ensure a low carbon footprint

All of Lightmain’s products are manufactured from UK sourced (Sheffield) steel and produced in
our purpose built factory in Rotherham (South Yorkshire)

e Any excavations will be reused wherever possible on site to avoid unnecessary landfill waste

",.ovm
&
“ o ROSPA
b P e
R (2 |
BALI Constructionline

REGISTERED



Agenda Item 15

Agenda Page 129

Extension to Proposed Programme of Works If Required & Weather

Dependant

G,
2
z
. El
=
&
~ &
5

)
4
apaoad?

A3 LSTDAN

NMVE  Liuononnsios
NI

vH) =

JuaI2 ypm paaibe ssajun wdpQ's - wWegQ'g 14 - UOJ\ @ 0} }JOM JO SINOH
‘suojjelieA syJom jo awwesBoid asned Aew Yd1ym suoijeLieA ajis pue suoiipuod Jayjyeam oj j3oalqns ||y

-:9JON asea|d

sbunaaw ssaiboud ayis Apjoapn

|IOUN0Y Ysied U0ISa[00g 0} JaAOpUBH

uonoadsul uone|ejsul 1Sod

Buiueld pue juswjeisuiey

sBupew aul

alis Uo [10ds [spoway

1S8) pue Uo1}0aUU0D [e01}08]e 818|dwo)

abeubis pue sjpued YOO |BISU|

JeuIe) 8SI1N00 BulieaMm |[B)su|

Aiddns 0y syJom Buijges [eoljos|e ay|dwo)

sisod YON Ilesul

sAemyjed [jejsu|

JBWIIE) 8SIN0D BSk( ||ejsu|

aseq auols | adA} | O\ pue abpa 99d YONIA [1BIsu|

abeulelp pue sayoual} 8|qed Buipn|oul SUOIIBABIXS pUB 8oUBIEd|0 d)IS

Juswysi|qe)sa ayis g Jno buiyes

8IS Uo Bunesw 1e)s ald

pieme buiuue|d 10} S}99M g-9 JO SOUBMO||Y

uoneolyioads pue SYIOM SSNOSIP 0} bunl@aw JoBIU0D Bld

U810 AQ J0BHUOD JO plemy

4 UL [PM|NL P |44 [UL PM[NL P[4 [UL [PA[NL I {14 UL PM|NL PIN |JIe)S 3ld SHIOM J0 uonduoseq al
¥ M3IM € M33IM [2EEID EEI
SHHOM 40 FNNVHIOOHd

[IoUNO0Y ysued uojsajao]

©__ NIVWLHEIT
| R




Agenda Page 130

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 15

Agenda Page 131

ynoo urewybl@sales (lews3 M 0LyE9. 60240 Buoydejel M
Q. £9S ‘Weysayloy auseaq ‘uodn Yiep ‘PEOY UOHBIS ‘SHIOM P2eqaiH * AILINIT NIVINLHDI

s19n00 deo sjeS €K

B

sBuiuado a|qisse0o. JeYOIBBYM K¢ sjuswdenus pueH 10 1884 ON €€ ysaw quiijo Huy €€

\

A o s A Y - e =

ﬂ-'

SHINH0J d3aNno .v

W09 XY8 0340 J0IM e
A‘ V09 Xav8 03AHND

SIHONOo0™4 'v

ININEVIN INIT TY8L3)SYE ONV TIvEL004

)| I A‘ STINVd L1417 IT9NIS HIIH WE
=5 =

vonwganois3iozd > U 4d ¥ SANYY 481 LN



Agenda Page 132

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 133 Agenda Item 16

Chor Iey

Council

Report of Meeting Date

Director of People and Places
(Introduced by the Executive Executive Cabinet 15 August 2013

Member for Places)

LAND DRAINAGE ACT 1991 - REVIEW OF LAND DRAINAGE
POLICY

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.

To advise Members of a review of the Councils Land Drainage policy and seek approval for
amendments to the policy for the purposes of clarity.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.

Members are asked to approve the retention of the priority basis on which Council
resources are deployed to assist householders/landowners with land drainage
investigations.

Members are asked to approve the principles in paragraphs 9 to 12 below in the application
of the Land Drainage policy

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT

4.

8.

In June 2007 the Council adopted the permissive powers contained in the Land Drainage Act
1991 and set out the circumstances under which land drainage investigations and associated
powers would be deployed by the Council.

In the light of officer activity in this area a review of the policy has been undertaken to clarify
areas of uncertainty and ensure the policy is consistently applied given the limited resources,
capacity and capability the Council has in terms of land drainage issues.

In the vast majority of cases the issue of land drainage is a private matter to be resolved by
the land owners or occupiers where the issue arises and ultimately the matter would need to
be resolved through civil proceedings between the respective parties.

The current policy which is contained in the report to Executive Cabinet 28 June 2007
identifies several situations where insufficient land drainage provision or defective land
drainage infrastructure (ditches, field drains etc.) could have an adverse impact. These are:

Definition

Internal flooding — domestic premises

Imminent threat of repeat internal flooding — domestic premises
Nuisance to highway network/environment

Other internal flooding — non domestic premises

Flooding to amenity areas in proximity to property

Flooding to amenity areas remote from property

Fields/farms

Footpaths/rights of way

o

VOO0 =2

The current policy determines that Council resources will only be deployed in situations 1
and 2.




Agenda Page 134 Agenda Item 16

9. It is proposed to retain this application of resources but based on the following broad
principles:

a. Flooding to domestic premises means ingress of surface or flood water to living
accommodation and does not extend to gardens, garages or other outbuildings.

b. There is a general principle that flood defence measures to land and property are
the responsibility of the owner or occupier of that land and property.

c. Where flooding has occurred following a severe weather event then the policy
would not apply, notwithstanding that the Council may direct resources in terms of
an emergency planning response and assistance in a recovery phase during and
following a severe weather event.

d. Where the cost of investigation work puts the Council at financial risk due to costs
not being recoverable, an element of discretion will need to be applied. When the
resource required to continue an investigation becomes disproportionate to the
benefit of Council tax payers in general, then the Executive Member for Places
would determine if that investigation should continue.

10. Therefore the policy would only be applicable to land where, under normal weather
conditions and rainfall levels; there was ineffective, inadequate or defective land drainage so
as to cause flooding as described in situations 1 and 2 above.

11. In all other cases the land/premises owner or occupier will be advised to seek a resolution as
a private matter between the parties concerned.

12. In terms of Council land and assets that give rise to land drainage issues affecting third
parties then the Councils Property Services resource would take appropriate action in all
such situations

Confidential report Yes No
Please bold as appropriate

Key Decision? Yes No
Please bold as appropriate

Reason 1, a change in service |2, a contract worth £100,000
Please bold as appropriate provision that impacts upon | or more

the service revenue budget by
£100,000 or more

3, a new or unprogrammed | 4, Significant impact in
capital scheme of £100,000 or | environmental, social or
more physical terms in two or
more wards

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)
(If the recommendations are accepted)

13. To ensure resources are effectively and proportionately used to seek a remedy where
flooding to domestic properties can be attributed solely to land drainage deficiencies or
defects or where an imminent risk of flooding occurs in such circumstances.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED
14. None.



Agenda Page 135 Agenda Item 16

CORPORATE PRIORITIES

15. This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives:

Involving residents in improving their local A strong local economy
area and equality of access for all
Clean, safe and healthy communities N An ambitious council that does more

to meet the needs of residents and
the local area

BACKGROUND

16. The purpose of Land Drainage Act 1991 and the Councils role as enforcer is not to provide
a remedy to private land drainage issues, but to use statutory powers to identify a cause,
specify a remedy and require the respective land owner or occupier to implement the
remedy by formal means if necessary. The Act makes provision for the Council to
undertake works in default and recover the costs.

17. In some circumstances land drainage engineering and associated hydrological
survey/modelling skills are required to investigate the problem and specify a remedy. The
Council does not have such capability and would need to ‘buy in’ such expertise.

18. The costs of any land drainage investigation work would not be recoverable and therefore
dependant on the nature of the problem the Council must retain the discretion to deviate
from the policy and withdraw from investigation work. Land owners/occupiers affected by
such a decision would be advised to seek a private remedy and independent legal advice
on the matter.

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT

19. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are

included:
Finance V| Customer Services
Human Resources Equality and Diversity \
Legal v | Integrated Impact Assessment
required?
No significant implications in this area Policy and Communications \

COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER

20. There is a small budget provision of around £1k for land drainage investigation work;
therefore any requirement above this amount would have to be funded from alternative
sources. The Council is able to recover the cost in respect of any investigation works under
the current legislation.

COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER

21. The legislation remains unchanged and the Council have no obligation under it to take
action. The Act provides only the power to undertake works at their discretion (to be
reasonably exercised). The policy assists in evidencing the reasonableness of the Council’s
actions.



Agenda Page 136 Agenda Item 16

COMMENTS OF THE HEAD OF POLICY AND COMMUNICATIONS

22. In line with the Equality Scheme, an integrated impact assessment will be undertaken to
identify any potential adverse impact of the change to the policy on groups identified as an
equality strand in the equality scheme. If necessary, an action plan will be prepared to
mitigate the adverse impact.

JAMIE CARSON
DIRECTOR OF PEOPLE AND PLACES

Background Papers

Document Date File Place of Inspection

Land Drainage Act - Land

. . 25 June 2007 Modgov Council Intranet
Drainage Policy

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID

Simon Clark 5732 July 2013 Landdrainage2013




Agenda Item 18 Agenda Page 137

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Page 142

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Contract Award - Refurbishment Works 98-102 Market Street
	6 Individual Electoral Registration
	7 Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 Report 1 (end of June 2013)
	Appendix 1 - General Fund Summary
	Appendix 2 - New Investment
	Appendix 3 - Retained Business Rates
	Appendix 4 - Reserves & Provisions

	8 Capital Programme Monitoring 2013-14 - 2015-16
	Appendix 1 - Aug 2013 EC - Capital Prog 2013-14 - 2015-16.pdf
	Appendix 2 - Aug 2013 EC - Developers Contributions.pdf

	9 Chorley Council Performance Monitoring Quarter One 2013/14
	10 Chorley Partnership Performance Monitoring Quarter One 2013/14
	11 Contract Award - Energy Utility Contracts
	12 Park and Open Spaces Memorial Policy
	App 1 - POS Memorial Policy Consultation Responses.pdf
	App 2 - POS Memorial Policy.pdf

	13 End of year core funding report 2012/13
	Core Funding 12 13 report 2.docx

	14 Clayton Brook Village Hall Œ Community Management
	15 Allocation of Sagar House Section 106 Equipped Play Space Contribution
	Lightmain costs.pdf
	Lightmainplan Sagar House

	16 Land Drainage Act 1991 - Review of Land Drainage Policy
	18 Approval for the contract award procedure and evaluation criteria for resurfacing of three Town Centre car parks

